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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SPEEDON NETWORK LIMITED
Report on the Indian Accounting Standards Ind AS Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Speedon Network Limited (the
“Company”), which comprize the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and
Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant aceounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsihility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

2, The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS inancial statements
lo give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performanee (including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Scetion
133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
aecordanee with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cffcctively for ensuring the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or errar,

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS finaneial statements based on our audit,

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the
aceounting and auditing standards and matters which are required ta be included in the audit repost
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thercunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the [nstitute of Charlered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirernents and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial staternents are free from material
misstaternent.

6. An audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS finaneial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial stalements.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Speedon Nebwork Limited
Audil Report on the Finanecial Statements
Pape 2.0f 4

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audil opinion un the Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

8, In ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid [nd AS financial staternents give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
arvepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2018, and its total
comprenensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehenzive ineotme), its cash fows and the
changes in equity for the vear ended on that date,

Other Matter

9. The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report dated
May 10, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS financial statcments. Our opinion
is not qualified in respect of this multer.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of
India in termms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (the “Order”™), and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given Lo us, we give in the Annexure B a statoment on the matters
specifled in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

11 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

fa) We have soughl and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary [or the purposes of our sudit.

(k) Inouraopinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report arc in
agrecment with the books of account

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Aceounting
Standards specified under Section 123 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified az on March 41, 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{£) with respect Lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A,

{z) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

[NDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Members of Speedan Netwark Limited
Audit Report on the Financial Slalements
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Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Anditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the besl of our
knowledge and belief and according Lo the information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 41, 2018 on its
financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 37

ii. 'The Company has long-term contracts as at March 41, 2018 for which there were no material
foresecable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2018;

iti. There were no amounts which were required Lo be transterred to the Iovestor Edueation and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018,

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company
[or the vear ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Walerhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: FRN o12754 M/ N500016
Chartgred Accountants

w

Weeraj Sharma
Place: Pune Partner

Date: June 25, 2018 Membership Number: 108391



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred 1o in paragraph 11 {f) ol the Independent Auditars' Report ol even date to the members of Speedon Kelwork
Limited on the financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2018

Page iofu

Report on the [nternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal finaneial controls with reference to financial statements of Speedon
Network Limiled {the "Company”) as of March 21, 2018 in conjuncton with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charlered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal {inancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the aceounting records, and the Limely preparation of reliable finaneial information,
as required under the Acl.

Auditors' Responsihility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Gnancial controls with
reference to [inaneisl statements bazed on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneizl Reporting (the “Guidance
Nuote™) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and il such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with rteference to finaneial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, énd testing and evaluating the design and operating effcctiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstalemenl of the finaneial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Relerred Lo in paragraph 11 (D) of the Independent Auditors” Keport of even date 1o the members of Speedon Netwark
Limited on the financial statements for the vear crded Mareh 31, 2008
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

B,

Acompany's internal financial contrel with reference to financial statements is a process designed Lo
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
prinviples. A company’s internal financial control with reforence to finaneial statements ineludes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, it reasonable detail,
accurately and [airly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the eompany; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

.

Because of the inherent hmitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
malerial misstatements due Lo error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal finaneial control with reference to financial statements may
hecome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procediures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8, In cur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements and such internal Anancial contrals over with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal eontrol stated in the Guidanee Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial
Heporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Yot Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LIP
Firm Registration Number: FRN 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Lor

Meera] Sharma

Place: Pune Partner
Date: June 25, 2018 Membership Number: 10830
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Heport
Heferred to in paragraph 1o of the Independent Auditars’ Report of even dale to the members of Speedon Network
Limsiled en The fnancial statements as of aod for the vear coded Mareh 31, 2008

i. (a) TheCompany is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets except for locabion-wise details of Optical Network Terminal devices
and telecom boxes installed in societies/apartments, telecom devices lving with subsceriber
Jeuslotmers and certain other assels.

(b} The fixed asscts are physically verified by the Management according te a planned programme
designed to cover all the items onee in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, fixed assets has
been physically verified by the Management in earlier vear and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification. Assets in the nature of Optical Network Terminsl devices and telecom
boxes installed in societies, apartments and telecom devices lving with subscribers /customers are
ot physically verified. As informed by management these assels are under continuous operational
surveillance.

(¢} The Company does not pwn any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the
financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable
Loy Lhe Company.

il The Company is in the business of rendering of serviees and consequently, docs not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{it) ot the said Order are not applicable to the
Company,

1. The Company has nol pranted any loans, secured or unsecured, 1o companies, firms, Limited

Liahility Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 18g of the
Act, Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (ida), (Gii)b) and (iii)c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
securily to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186, Therelore, the provisions of Clause g(iv)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company,

W, The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

i The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenanee of cost reeords under  sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii, (a] According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including income tax, sales Lax, service lax, duty of customs, cess, zoods and service Lax (with
effect from July 1, 2o17) and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities,
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Repaort

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Speedon Network
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 208

Page 2 of 3

{b) According to the information and explanations given (o us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, serviee-lax, duly of customs, cess and goods and
service tux which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of
sales tax as at March 31, 2018 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, is as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amounl Period to which Forum where the
statute dues (Rs. In the amount dispute is pending
_ laes) relates
The Tamilnadu Sales Tax 34.86* 2013-2014 Appellate Deputy
Value Added Act Commissioner (CT) (FAC)
2006 Chennai 6

*Amount disclosed above is net off of amount paid under protest of Rs. 8 71 lacs

vili,  The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government. The Company has compulsarily convertible debentures as al the balance sheet date.
Therefore the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company.

i The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{ix} of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

X During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance wilh Lhe penerally accepted awditing practices in India, and according to the
informalion and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instanee of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the vear, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the vear, hence the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Act is not applicable.

Xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3{xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts)
Hules, 2014,

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable Lo the Company.

XV, The Company has not cotered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 30xv) of the Order are not applicable ko
the Company.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report

Referred Lo in paragraph 1o of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Speedon Network
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Page 3 of g

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: FRNo12754N /Nsooo16,
Chartered Accountants

L

Neeraj Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 108301

Place: Pune
Date: June 25, 2018
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STERLITE TECFAMOLOGIES LIRITED
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Speedon Metwork Limited
Motes to fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

t. Corpoerate information

Speedon Metwork Limited (the 'Company') is a public company domiciled in India and insorporated
under the provisions of the Companics Act, 1956, The Company is a whelly owned subsidiary of
Sietlite Technelogies Limited. The business of the Company is to lay telecom network i.e., to deploy
active equipments of last mile aimed at facilitating the delivery of Voice, Video, Text, Data Services
atel othay related tetecont and media services by vavious service providers to business and househalds
ol paymett basis.

2. Significont secounting polietes

Tais note provides a list of the significant sccounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied o oll the years presenled, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basiy of preparatlon

The standalons finoneinl statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) nutified under Section 133 of the Companiss Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015! and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone Ind A financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,

The standalone Ind AS financial statemerts are presented in [ndian Rupees in Lakhs, exeapt when
otherwise indicated.

Corrent versus non-corrent classification

The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on curtent/non-current
clazzification. An asset is currenl when it js;

Lixpected to be reslised or intenced to be sold er consumed in the normal operating eyele

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the repotting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at
least twelve months after the reporting period,

Al nther assets are clazsifiad as non-current.

A lighility i3 cwrrent when:

» It is expected to be seltled in the normal operating eyele;

= Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

s [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at leagt twelve months after
the reporting pericd.

The Company classifies all other liahilities as non-current,

=i eni Lﬂ}f. assets and liabilities gre classified as non-current assets and linbilitics,
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Speednn Networl Limited
Motes o financial statements for the year soded 31 March 2018

has ascertained operating cyele of 12 months for the purpase of current and non-current elassitication
of assets and liabilities,

1) Business combinations - Comnon Control Transaction

Business combinations imvolving entities that are controlled by the company are aecounted for using

the pooling of interssts method as follows:

_ The agsets and liabilities of the combining entities are veflected at thelr carrying amounis.

. Mo adjustments are made to reflect fai values, or recognise any new assets or lakilitics.
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies,

The financial information in the finemcial statements in respeel of prioe periods is restated as if the

business combination had occorred from the beginning of the preceding period In the finaneial

staterments, irrespective of the actual date of the combination, However, where the business

combination had cocurred after that date, the prior peried information is restated only from that date.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transforor is
appregated with the corresponding balance appearing ir: the financial statements of the transferee or is
adjusted apainst general reserve,

The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the
transferee.

The differsnce, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
cotsidecation in the form of eash or other azsets and the amount of shave capital of the transteror iz
transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves.

b) Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, repardless of
whether equity instruments or other asssts are acquired, The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the aszets tranaferred; liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquired business; equity interests izsued by the company and fair vatue of any
aaset or linbility resulting from a contingen: consideration arrangement.

[dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
arc, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisi-ion date. The Company
recognises any non-controlling intevest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
gither at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate shave of the acquired entity's net
identifable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The exceas of the consideration transferved; amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired {8 vecorded as goedwill, If those ameounts are less than
the fair value of the nat identitiable assets of the business acquired, the difference iz recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is cloar
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the busincss combination as a bargain purchase. In
other cases, the bargain purchase gain is rc:nuguisnd directly in equity as capital reserve.

u_,_.-.-\.-
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Speedon Network Limited
Notes to tinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Contingent consideration is classificd cither o5 equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
finaneial lability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in tair value tecognized: in
profif or loss,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date cewying value of the acquiter's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is vemeasured to tair value at the acyuisition da'e. Any
gains or losses arising from sueh remeasurement arc ecognised in orofil or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate,

¢} Foreipn currency tranzlation
Tunctional and presendation currency

ftems included in the financial swtements of the company are measuied using tae cutrency of the
primary econcmic enviromnent in which the entity operates {“the funstional cutrency'). The financizl
statements ar presented in lodian rupee (INR), which is company’s functional and preseniation
CUrTShCy.

Transactions and balunees

Foreign currency transacticns arc translated into the functional currency uging the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and |csses rasulting fiom the setilement of auch
transactions and fiom the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated i forcign
cuttencies at yeat end exchange vatcs are generally recognised in profit or logs, They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation, A moenetary item for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to covur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity’s ret
invesiment in that foreizn operation,

Foteign exchange differences regwided as an adjustreent to borrowing costa ave presented in the
ataterrent of profit and loss, within finance costs. All ather toreipn exchange gaivs and losscs are
presented in the staternent of profit und loss on a net basis within other gains/losses),
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fuir value wag determined. Trenslation differonces on asscls and
Yintitities covred ot faiz value ore reporiedas past of the frir value gnin or loss. Fiae example, translation
differences on non-menitary asséts and Habllities sueh A8 equily mstruments iwld ot fair value through
jrofis oy Joss are regopnised n profic ov loss a8 panl of the fair vele ERY: o Joas aind tragslaion
differences on nen-monetary asscls such as equity investments elassified a5 FVOCT npe recognised in
other comprehensive incame.

Nen-monetary items that are tueasured in terms of histarical cost in 4 foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the Inilfal transactions.

d) Revenue Recognifiun

Revenue is recopnised to the extent specific criteria have been met for sach of the zctivities as
described below, il is probable that *he economis benefits will fow 1o the Company and
the revenue can be wellably measured, repardicss of when the pavment is made. Revenue is mics Bl
e olatelie of the consideration received or reecivable, taking into account cantractually defi el
en A A vhent nad excluding taxes or duties coilected on behaif of the zovernment, The 'Cu;ﬁéﬁ“j@ g™
= ﬁ\i'ﬁ'l::ﬁf{ﬁ]::éiga;ﬁfj@@{i is the principal in al! of its revenue Arrangements sinee it is the primary u,}iﬁg:{}'[ ifall i
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Speedon Netwark Limited
Notes 1o lnuncial statements For the year ended 31 March 2018

Rendering of services

Revenues from setvices ars recopnised pro-yata over the peried of the contract as and when services
are vendered. When the contract outcome cannat be measurad reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of the expenses incurted which ars expected to be recoverad.

as the related scrvices are parformed. Revenue i excess of billings is classified as unbilled revenue
while billing in excess of revenue is classified as urearned vevenue in the Balanee Sheet.

e} Other Income

1. Interest inconie
laterest ncome ig accrued on a time bagis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and i the
affective interest tate applicable. [nterest income i3 included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss.

f) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is 2 reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the company will comply with ail attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or logs over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented
within other income,

Government grants relating to the purchese of property, plant and equipment are included in nen-
current liabilities as deferved income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver the
expected lives of the related assets and presented within other ineome,

When loans or similar assisiance are provided by governments or related institutions, with 2n inferest
rate below the current applicable mazlet rate, the effect of this faveurable interest is regarded as a
government grant. The loan or assistance is initlally recoprized and measured st foir value and the
poveriment grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the
procseds received. The loan s subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to
financial liahilitica.

g) Income Taxes

Current income fax

The income tax expense or credil for the period i the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary ditferences and to vnused tax logses,

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substaniively
enactec at the end of the reporting perind. Manapement periodieally evaluates positions faken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It
establishes provisions where appropiate on the busis of amounts expected to be paid w the tax
auntharitizs,

Deferred tax

s
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Speedon Network Limited
Noes Lo financial statermnerits for the your ended 31 March 2018

the initial recoguition of an asset or liability in a fransaction that iz not a business combination and, al
the tirne of the tranzaction, affects neither the accounting profit nar taxable profit or Joss,

Deferred tax liabilitizs are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

© When the daferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of poodwill or an asset or liability
it @ transaction that is not a buginess combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

v In respect of taxable temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the Liming of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be concrolled by the Company and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Dieferred tax assets arc recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax sssets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a [n respect of deductible temporary differences hetween the carrying amount and tex bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branch, agsociates and interests in joint ventures, deferred fax asgets are
recognised only to the extent that it iz probable that the tempovary differences will reverse in the
foresceable frture and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
he utiliaed,

The cartying amount of deferred tax agsets is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced o the extent
that it ia no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deforred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferved tax nssets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised fo the extent that it has become prabable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax nsset to be recovered.

Deferred income fax is determined vsing tax vates {and tax laws) that have been enactad or
subatantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised ot the liability is settled.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in profil or Joss, except to the extent thal it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or divectly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax sssets and deferred tax labilities are offast if a lepally enforceable Heht oxists 1o st off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the coment tax asscts
and tax Ii_ﬂbilities are offset whin the entity has a legally enferceable vight to offsst and intend either
to settle om a net basia or to wealize the asset and settle the liability simultanconsly.

h} Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equiptnent and Capital work in progress are stated at historical cost, net of
accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Such historical eost includes

the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and botrowing casss if the recognition

i criteria are met, When significant parts of the property, plact and equipment are tequired <o be replaved
fff;:?.iquje}“m,!ﬁﬁ’mn Company depreciates them ssparately based on their specific uscful !i‘p‘ﬁh‘f}ﬁ,ﬁﬁ}ﬁﬂ;ﬁ

f;i&"".”- u—”;f-i"bﬁﬂ%%ﬂ y. Inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant ard
By

§ad N igipd _{‘q@‘%ﬁmplmd}nmﬂ if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All ather repair ;tr({ﬁ:iat@éﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
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Speedon MNetwork T.imited
Notes to financint slaterments for the year ended 31 March 2018

costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incwred. No decomimissioning liabilities ave
sxpovied oo be incurred on the assets of plant and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construetion activity is capitalised. Indirest expenditure incurred
duning construction period is capitalised a2 part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure
san be atributable to construction activity or is incidental there to, Income earned duving the
construction peried is deducted from the Lotal of the indirect expenditure.

Subsequent costs are included ir the asset's cavrying amount oi recognised ns o separale assel, as
appropriate, anly when it is probable that future economic benefils associated with the itam will fow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any
compaonent accuunted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintsnance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting petiod in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is caleulated using the strzight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lves. The Company, based on technical asscssments made by
technical experts snd management estimates, depreciates the certain items of tanpible assels over
estimated useful lives which ars diffevent Frun the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T o the
Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives arc realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Table below provide
the details of the useful life which arc different from wselul life prescribed under Schedule II of the

Companies Act, 2013;
Asset Category Useful Life considered | Useful life (Schedule 14} |
Plant and Machinery 1-18 Years * t Continpus  process plant =25
ears
S Sl Others - 15 Years
! Oatical fibre cable {included in plant and | 18 Yeurs * 18 Years g
_machinery) AT = e I P
Purpiture ane fixtores 2 19 =
Otfice equipinents PRs ESeSEEs SRR | Y S
Dty processing equipments -6 Servers and networks 6 years and
b s s cxmfecn i oo deskiope and Inplops 3 yes
Elcorical fitings { 5 T

% Considered on the basis of management’s estimation, supporied by technieal adviee, of the vseful
lives of the respective assets,

An item of property, plant and ecuipment and any sipnificant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future econamic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
logs arising on derecognition of the assat (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the aszet) is ircluded in the statement of profit or logs when the
azset is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the aszets
carrying amount is preater than its estimated recoverable amount,
,\;—:-"«'f:.:-—"—w_"?.e-'qu, ' ; : ; . s
7 (- Dulag griklgsses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrving ul_'qﬂﬁ,ﬂi:‘ﬁ'}j%‘ are
/f o ,*{51?'-;‘&@3@4:;&"‘]: ]gﬁt or loss withir other gaina/{losses). e
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Speedon Networl Limited
Notes o financial slaiements for the yewr ended 31 Maich 2018

The assels residual values and uselul lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, af the end of each
teporting period,

1) Intungible Asses

Intangible assots soquired scparately are measured ou initial recognition al eost. Following imtial
recognition, intangible asscts are caried at cost less sccumulaled amortisation and accumulated
irapairment losses, Internally gencrated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are
uot capitalised and the expendituic is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss i the period in
which the expenditure is incurred,

The usefi] lives of intangible assets ave assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Inlungible assets with finile lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impattinent whenever thers is an indication that the irtangible assel may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amertisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life ave reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting peried. Changes in the expocted useful life or the expeeted pattern of
cunsumplion of futwre ccoromic benetits embodied in the asset arc congidercd to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit ov
toss.

The Cowpany dues not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful iives.

Guins or losses adasing from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured ag the difference
betwuen the net disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the asset and arc recognised in the
staternent ol profil or loss when the asset is derecognised,

Duct taken on Indefeasible Right of Use (TR is amortized over the apreement period on a straight line basis,

Customer acquisition costs consist of payments made to obtain sonsenls/permissions for laying of fiker
cables and other telecom infrastructurs in residential and commercial complexcaltownships. Such cost
is amartized over the period of the consent/permissicn on a straight line basis,

Softwares are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of five years.
it Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attiibutable to the acquisttion, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily talies a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale uie capitalised a5
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expenaed in the period in which they oceur,
Bortowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds, Berrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent rogarded 45 an
adjustment 1o the horrowing costs.

k) l.enses

The desermination of whether an artangement is (or LL}ﬂiﬂiUb:I a lease is based on the substance of the
e J|I‘E’iﬂgﬁl‘:‘tilﬂm at the inception of the lease, The avruogement 1s, or contains, a lease if Iu[ﬁig;u;m_m" the
,;f'{' fi:iﬁ@t‘:sru‘stﬂa dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement coffi
fd f_??" o T e tnﬂma{-.m agsets, even if that dght is not explicitly stated in ke arrangement. f'-a. ;
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Speedon Metwork Limited
Notes to financial statements tor the year endec 31 March 2018

4 lenze is classified at the incepfion dare a3 a finance lease or an opernting lease, A lease that transfers
sitkstantially all the risks and rewards incidental to cwnership ta the Company is classified ag a finance
lease,

Finance leases are capitalised at the leases inception at the fair valve of the [eased property or, if lower,
at the present valie of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportionad between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so 15 to achieve a constant rate of interast on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finanee charpes ave recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss, unless they are divectly aitributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in
accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs,

A leaged aswet 1w depreciated owver the usahul life of the asset. Tlowewver, iF there is no reasonahle
certainty that the Company will obtain cwnership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated usetul 1i7e of the ussst and the lzase tertn,

Leases in which a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company ave classified as operating lease. Operating Jease payments are recognised as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the payment are
structured to increase inline with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected
inllationary cost incraases,

I} Impairment of non-finanecial assety

Goodwill and intangikle assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject ta amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicete that the carrying amount may not be recoveradle. Ar impaimment loss is
tecognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recovernbie amount, The
reccverable amount is the higher of an assat's fair value less costs of dispesal and value in use. For the
putpesss of assessing impairment, assdis are pronpad of the lowest levels for which there are sepdrately
identitiable cagh inflows wehicl-are lavgely indeperdont of the eadh infiwa fram of her assets or growgps
ofassels(cash-geverating unitz), Mon-finareial assets other than zoodwiil that suffered an impainment
ate teviewed for possible roversal of the impairment at the end of each rsporting period.

m} Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has n present obligation (legal or constructive} s a result
of 2 past event, it is probabls that an outflow of reacurces cmbodying ceonomic bensfits will be
requited to settle the obligatien and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
wecagnised as a separate asset, but only when the wimbursernent is virtually cortair. The Expense
relating te a provision is presented in the siatemcat of prefit or loss net of any reimbursement,
Pravisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a curient pre-tax
tate (hat reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the
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Spesdon Metwork Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 37 March 2018

The cempany classifies its financial nssets in the following mesgurement categories:

¢ Those to be messured subsequently at fair value (either (irougn other comprehensive income,
ar through profit or loss)
L Thﬂ.‘iE mCﬁSUl’Cd ﬂ,i i'l!'ﬂﬂ-rti.SEd cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for manazing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows, For assals mensured ot fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instiwnents, this
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For inveatments in equily
instruments, this will depend on whether the company has made an jrrevocable cleetion at the time of
inisial vecognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprohensive
incolre,

The company reclassifies delt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
fl3getd changes.

i} Measurement:

At initial recopnition, the Company measures a financial assct at its fair value plus, in the casc of a
finuncial assel nol at fair value through profit or legs, transaction costs that arc divectly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss ave expensed in profit or loss,

Financial assets with cimbedded derivatives ars considered in their entirety when determining whelher
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debi instrutents

Subsequent measurement of debt Inslruments depends on the company's business medei for managing
the asset and the cash flow charscteristivs of the assel, There ave three measursment categories into
which the company elassitics ils debl instruments;

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whete those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain orloss ona
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and i3 not part of a hedging
telationship is recognisad in profit or loss when the asset is derecogrised or impaited. Interest income
from these finarclal assets is included in finance income vsing the effective interest rate method.

Tair value through other comprehensive Ineome (FVOCTh Assefs that ate held for eollection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the finand:al assets, where the azsets' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other commehensive incomes
{(TVOCI). Movements in the earryving amount e talen through OCI, exeept for the racognition of
impairment gaing or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchanpe paing end losses which ars
tecognised in profit and loss, Waen the financial asset iz dereeognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclazsified from equity o profit or loss and recognised in ather gaing/
(losses). Intersst income from these financial assets ig ineluded in other income caing the effective
intsrest rate method.

P :;—;-i%fj;fﬁjrrﬂlug\ through profit or loss: Assefs that do not meet the eriteria for amertizad g:ﬁ&tg&_-;uFf},@\C[
i ':-ﬁﬁfi;ﬂlﬁnaﬂiﬁi\m fair value through profit or loss. A gain ar loss on a debt inﬁ,’:ﬁﬂ:{riéﬁ_'{ﬁﬁ{"{gg

K’:::'-"-“ql.\ e =k 5 . 3 5
i G aE t{ﬁﬁﬁtq&‘e‘&ﬂg}r{aﬂmmd at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedping élu@nsiip s
' rﬁﬁﬂgﬂiﬁﬁﬂq\ﬁ% f{}f'rﬂ-it or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss' Within: Q‘it':m
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Speedmit Network Limited
Notes 1o financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

pains/(losses] in the period iu which it atises. Interest meome from these financial assers is included in
ather income.

Fouity inatruments

The company subsequently messures all equity investments fuiv value, Where the company's
manapernent has electsd 1o present (v value gains and losses on equity investtments in other
comprehensive incote, there is ne subsequent reclagsihoation of fair value gaine and losses Lo profit
ar lass. Dividends from such fivestments are tecognised in profit or loss as other income when the
company's right 1o receive payments is cstablished.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
oain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss, Impairment losses (and roversal of impaizment losses)
on equity investments measured at FYOCT are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Hquity investment in subsidiaries and joint venture are carried at historical cost as per the accounting
policy choice given by IND AS 27.

The Company makes investments in certain joint ventures and associates with the objective to generale
growth in the medium term and with identified exit stiategies, Such investments are managed on a fair
value basis. The company has elected to measure investments in such jeint venlures and assaciates in
accordance with Ind AS 1G9,

iii} Impairment af financial assels

It accordance with ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL} model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the folluowing financial assets and credit risk
axposure J

u) Finaneial assets that are cebt instraments, and are measured af amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance;

b} Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

¢} Trade recetvables or any contractual righl W receive cash or another foaneial sssel lal vesult Lo
transactions that arc within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,

The Company follows ‘simplified approzch' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

o Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
6 Al leage caceivables resulting feomn transactions within the seome of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not requite the Company to track changes in eredit risk.
Rather, i recognises impairment loss allowance bazed on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on cther financia! ussets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has besn a sigmificant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition,
Tf credit risk has not increased significaatly, 12-month ECL s wsed 4o provide For linpairment loss,
However, if credit risk has increased sigrificently, lifetime ECL s wsed, 1, in g subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no looger a significanl increase in credit
ossEesinee initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recogmising impairment loss allowance based un
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Specdon Mebwork Limited
MNaotes to financial slatements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Lifetime BCL are the expected credit losses resultivg trom all possible default events over fhe expected
life of a financial instrument, The 1 2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetin:e ECL which resulls [rom
default events that are possible within 12 menths after the reporting dase.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are duc to the Company in accordanue
with the contract and ail the cash [lows that the enfity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
dizcounted at the original ETR, When estimating the cash flows, an entiLy is required to consider:

s Al codractial terms of the financial instrument (ineluding prepaymeant, extension, call and
similar aptions) over the sxpected life of the Anancial instrument, However, in rave cases when
the expected life of the financizl instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
tequired to nse the remaining contractual tens of the finaneial ingtrument;

v Cash flows from the sale of collaters! held or other credit eniancements that ave integral to the
comtractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and luss, This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’
in the statement of profit and loss. The balanee sheef presentation for various finansial instruments is
described below:

s Tinancial assats measured as ot amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measwrement of
those asscts in the balance sheet, The allowarce reduces the net emzying amount, Until the
asset meets writc-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowancs from the
Eross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in eredit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or oviginated credit-impaived (POCT) financial assets, i.e.,
fAngneial asgetz which are credit impaired on purchases origination,

iv) Derecognition of finamncinl asset

A financial asset is derccognised only when the Company has transterred the rights to séceive cazh
Mows (rom the financial assct or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, bul assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to cne or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company cvaluates whether it has transfened
substantially alf risks and rewards of ownership of the [inancial asset. In such cases. the firanecial
asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
pwnership of the financial asser, the financial asset i3 not derecognised.

Whera the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the finarcial asset is derecognised if the Company
haz not reteined control of the {inaneial azwet. Wheve the Company retains control of the financial

asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of coutinuing invelvernent in the financial
ansil,

¥} Reclasaifiention of tinancial asscts

i g Comyany determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognifSm b er

=, ,I{,;ilqﬁ@i:'iﬁnggt"i.‘[u;..‘ no teclassitication is made for financial assets which wre equily Inatriitenty ind
7 fnaneisbh#hilies, For financial assets which ars debt instruments, a reclassilication 1§ age oniy 1

g‘hun: i a'}:l’gﬁ;gﬁ_&f i the business model for managing those assets. Chunges to the huﬁﬁé&smu;iai;h:’ :




Speedon Network Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018

expected (o be infrequent. The Company's senior manapement detstmines change in the business
model s 4 reault of extoraal or iasernal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are eviden! lo exicmal parties. A chenge in the business mede! aceurs when the
Company vither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company teclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification progpectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period Following the
change in business mode!. The Company coes nol restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impaitment gains ur losses) or ntersst,

o) Financial linbilities

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior o the ead
of financial vear which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and aie usually paid within Jo days ul
recognition. Trade and other payables zre presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initiaily at theiv fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs imeurred, Borrowings ars
subsequently measured at amertised cost. Any difference berween the proceeds (net of transacticn
casts) and the redemptinn amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the botrowings
using the effective interest method. Fess paid on the establishment of loan facilities ere recognised as
trarsaction costs af the loan o the extend that it is probable that some or el] of the facility will be drawn
down, In this cage, the fee is deferred uniil the deaw down ocours. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be dvawn down, the fee s capitalised as a
prepayment for linuidity services and amertised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed fiom the bulance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transfered to another party and the consideration paid, including any
nun-cash assets transferred or Labilities assumed, is recopnised in profit or Josg ag other gainaklosses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the ertity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap}, » gan or loss is recognised in
profit or Ioss, which is measured ag the difference between the canying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are rlassitied ag current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right #o defer
gettlemnent of the lighility for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of
a material provigion of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting pericd with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not
classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the repurting period and befors the approval
of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Cash and cash equivalents
i ek
/'F"”_i..si-::'-""'?'":r;:'..: T . ; ) 2 T i
§7 o8 enree -'ﬂgﬁ,%ﬁc__l__::ﬂl\& equivalenl in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on henglend Shor-t2m
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Speedon Networl Limited
Notes Lo financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018

For the purposs of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents eonsist of cash and cash
equivalent, as defined above, net of outstanding, bank overdrafls as they are considered an integral part
of the Company®s cash management.

q) Earnings per share
Bagic carnings per share

Basic sarnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the yreighted average number of equity shares outstanding cuting the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in cquity shares fssued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

¥} Presentation of EBITDA

The Company presents Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amaortisation ("EBITDA’) in the
statement of profit or loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA is not
defined in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule 111 allows companies to present ling items, sub-line
items and sub-totals ko be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the financial statements
when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s finaneial position or
perfurmance,

Acsordingly, the Company has elected to present EBITIDA as a separate line item on the face of the
starement of profit and loss, The Company messures EBITDA on the basis of profit! (loss) from
continuing cperations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and
arnortization expense, finance incoms, finance costs and tax expense

4) Aceounts receivable

Trade receivahles are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective irterest methed, less provisien for impairment.

1} Segment Reporting

Cperating segments are report in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief
Cpetating Decision Maker (CODM). The Bourd of Directors has been identified az being the CODM.

u) Rounding of ameunt

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been roonded off to the nearest lakhbs
as par the requitement of Schedule L1, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Goimg Coneern Assumption

During the year the company has inewrved losses of TNE 349,87 Lakhs and is carrying accumulated
losses of TMR 3,762.91 Lakhs pertaining to prior years. The ontstanding loan has been ohtained from
the holding company and there is no cutstanding loan o other parties.

Basis the terms of the payable balances, which requires the Company to repay only as and when it
has funds to repay and the management’s intention is to continue with the entity. Hence the financial
statements have beon propared on going concern basis,
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended 3 | March 2014

2.3 Recent necounting pronouncements

4) Ind AS 115- Revenoe from Contract with Cusfoiners:

Tnd A% 115, Revenue from contracts with customers deals with reveniue recognition and
eatablishes principles [or reporting uselul information to users of financial statementa about the
nature, amount, Hming and uncartainty of revenue ard cash flows arsing from an entity’s
coairacts with customers. Revenue is recopnised when a customer obtains control of a promised
pood ot service and Lhus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
qervice in an amount that reflects the consideratiun W which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those gonds and services. The standurd replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11
Construction cantracts and related appendices.

A new flve-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognised:

identily comtracts with customers

identify the separate performance cbligation

determine the fransaction price of the contract

allocate the transaction prica to each of the separate performance obligations, and
recognise the revenue as each performance obligation ie satisfied,

LT = PR % ]

The new stundard is mandatory for financial years conmencing on or after | April 2018 and eacly
application is not permitted.

The company is in the process of agsessing the detailed impact of Ind AS [15. Fresently, the
cortpany is not able to reasonshly cstimate the impaet that application of Ind AS 115 is expected
ta have un ity financial statements, except that adoplion of Ind AR 115 is not expected to
significantly change the timinp of the company’s revenue recognition for product sales, Consistent
with the current practice, recognition of revenus will continue o oceur at a peint in time when
products are dispatched to customers, which iz also when the control of the asset i3 nanaferred to
the cugtomer under Ind AS 113,

The company intends ta edopt the standard using the modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumnulative impact of the adeption will be recognised in vetained sarnings as of 1 April
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated,

b) Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign currency transactions and advanee consideration

The MCA has notificd Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideraticr. The appendix clacifies how to determine the date of transaction for the exchange
rate tc be vsed on initial recognilion of a related assel, expense or income where an entity pays or
receives consideration in 2dvance for forelgn currency-denominated contracts.

For a sitiple payment or receipt, the date of the trangaction should be the date on which the entity
inilially recognizes tae non-monetzry asset or liability arising trom the advance consideration (the
prepayment or deferred incomelcontract Hability), I there are multiple payments or receipts for
ane item, date of (ransaction should be determined as above for euch payment or receipt.

w appendix can be applied:

. i, a’,ﬁ%ﬁ{:ﬂp:ctivd}e for vach petiod presented applying Ind AS 8;
i 0 i 'ni'_fg;ﬂlf‘{aj;:fiaprivﬂ]y to items in scope of the appendix thut arg initially recognised
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Speedon Network Limited
Motes to financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2018

- on or after the beginming of the reporting period in which the appendix is first applied (i.e,
1 April 2018 for entities with March year-end); or

- from the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information (ie,
1 April 2017 for entitics with Mavch year-end).

Management has assessed the effects of applying the appendix tn its foreigh currency fransactions
for which conzideration is received in advance. The Company expects this change to impact its
accounting for long-term revenne contracts involying multiple advance payments in foreign
CUITERCY.

Other propouncements

Following accounting pronouncements are not expected to have significant (mpact on the
company's financial statement,

e Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income taxes regarding recognition of deferrec tax assels on
urwealised losges which clarify the accounting for deferred taxes where an assel is measured at
fair value and that fair value iz below the nsset’s tax base

o  Amendments to Ind AS 40 Investment property - Transfers of investment property which
clarify that transfers to, or fiom, investment property can only be made if tharﬁ bag been o
change In use that is supported by evidence,
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Mates fo fnnneiak sintonieads for the vear enced 31 March 2003

MOVE 1 CAPITAL ARND OTIER COMMITHENTS

Fatinted nmeunt of corleacls renminisi 10 e axecuted e Cpibel aeenint end nod provided for (Be: cf advancest is 75, 542 Lacs (34 Murch
2017 Ra. 1L3.50 Lacs)

MOTE 20 DETAILS OF LOANE AND ADVANCES GIVEN TO SURBSINDTARIES
The delsils are pravided ps reqeived by regatotion 3300 ceed with part A el Schedule ¥ Lo SEBL (Listing Ohligneian wd Discidune

Roguirsmznts) Reguinljas:, 2005
[its In lzesy

I__-_.-.-.-..-»---u--— T E-__,.,_.__.__:“'!EUI'L!WTH_—F-— gt 31-Flar-17 e
i Mante of Sebaidiney : ﬂ’utgtmldlng_ Maximun Ealence Chndgtuiniling " Maxinum

i = I Anownt Antwm ol
‘Sterlite Tuleayateme Limited ] [T - 106 Gd4d]  64d

NOTE 30: BETAILS OF DUES T MICRG AND SMALL ENTERIFRISES AR DEFINED UNMDER MEMED ACT, 2006

Deseriptivg 31 Mureh 2018 31 darch 2T
(Rs dielnesy . [Is, In baend

{il  Tha principal soivnl wel the intercst due theresn (00 be ghown scporeicly) emching unpu 9y
supplicr a8 & (he end of engh aceouiting year.

Tringlpal anaumt dize fomicrn sl sonll erterises 179 -
Interest duz vae nhave " .

i The amoun of intsest peid oy the buyer in eors of sestion 149, of e Micie Stwalt and Mediem
Enlerprise Daveapaient Act, 2006 along willl the emounls of dhe puvment madz 1o the supplice
nevasnd the oppecnled doy diring 2ach acoaunting year.

fiti} ‘The anownt af dniciest die and phyable B fhe pocvd ol deluy in owking pyaient (whic lave bea
palel hui heyend the appeinted day ditlng the yeer) bul without adding the ixterest spevifiad unde - =
Micra Smoll and kedion Enterprise Develogruent act, 2604,

W} The amount of interes) aceoed and remaining wapnsd ot the 2wl oF each ocpauntlg yeor. " -

W) The awount of fenber imlecsst rsmnlidig cive ond payable even in the succesding veurs, undd such
dobe wlign (e interest cues as abowe are aelually paid wooibs small epterprise for the purpose of
digallowenes & o deductible sxpendilure under seclion 23 of (ke Mica Swall snd bedivin
Enterprise Cavelopmen? A, 2005




SPEEDDN NITWORK LIMITED
Piules o Finrncinl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018

NOTE 3] : MELATED PARTY THANSACTIONS

Mz of relnged inely nnd nneuse af relalmreh|psi
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Sierite Techinologics Liited (BT21 {hinmeedinla bedding <emgony)
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Wealewn lwvestintls Limiled, Dahpess  (UlEmate haliling coouapany)

e retaled patios wily whye treneaction fave trken plece during hs yedr;
Vel oy 3ubasldin ry

Bdalinposhica Tranamisziun Comemenioaion nhazmicie Liniled (MTCIL
Siorfite Tulessetons Limilod PSTELY  (Sifsidiany} dinconieented an 2LO00LE)

Direclor Bratails

Fotirga Seniveaa Rao
Sapzin Jandsl
Ehuemendrn Jais
Traifk fravin fparenl
Lalil ¥utntan Tandon

Trnpueligss ndlk redied posla durleg the yenr nnd autstendlng balancis pre ne Gl
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Sl teelngive adiies el e

() Serviess prosided RHERE | | i Ak . 3 i ;

(o Unbilled favenus . 1347 & = .

Tuiezmal o leana fekean 28 (] 5 B 5 =
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alr. 5 A - F i 4 1840

S E Al Aaat Aral Avnl 5 AEat Axal
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Sterlite Telesystems Limited

Financial Statements for FY 2017-18



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLF

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT
1O THE MEMBERS OF STERLITE TELESYSTEMS LIMITED
Repovt on the Indian Aveounting Standards Ind AN linancial Staternents

1. We have andited the accompuanying fnancial statements of Sterlite Telesystem Limited (the
“Company™}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at Mazeh 91, 2018, the Stutpment of Profit and
Loss (including Oiber Comprehensive [neome), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Bquity for the year then ended and a suneary of the sipuilicant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AB Flnancial Statements

a. The Company’s Soard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Lhe “Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statemnents
to give a truc and fair view of the financial position, finsneial performance {(inchuding other
comprehensive income), cosh Aows and changes in equity ol the Corpany in accordance with the
secounting principles generatly accepted (n India, inciuding the Indian Accourting Standards
specified in the Compenies (Indian Aceounting Standards) Bules, 2015 (o8 atnended) under Section
133 uf e Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate aceountirg, records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate
secounting policies; making judgments and estimates (hat are reasunehle and prudent; and design,
imglementation and maintenance ol adequate internal finaneisl contyols that were oparating
effectivily for ensuring the rocuracy and completencss af the secounting records, relevant © the
presaration and preseatation of the ind AS financial statcments that ghve a e and fair view ond
are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error,

Aunditors’ Responsibility
a3 Our responsibility is to express st opinion on these Ind AS financial staiements based on our audit.

4. We have taken ink scoount the provisions of the Act and the Rules mads thereunder inclucing the
acconnting and auditing stancards and matters which ave requived to be included in the andit repurl
undler Uhe nrovigions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

5. We conducted onr audit of the Ind A8 financial statements in separdanes with the Standards on
Auditing speeified under Secdon 143010) of the Act and nther applicable authorltative
pronouneements issued by the Institule o Chartered Acconntants of India. Those Standards and
pranonncements tequire that we comply with ethical reguircments and plan and perform the mudit
toubtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind A8 financial statements are free {rom material
misstatemmt.

f. An sudit involves performing procedurcs o oblain audit evidence abowl the amounts and the
disclosures it the Ind AS £nancial statements. The proecdures selected depend on the auditors’
judgrment, including the assessenent of the risks of material misstatement of the Tnd AS financial
staternonts, whather die Lo frand nr erear. Tnmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal Gnancial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Tnd AJ financial statements
that give a Leue and falr view, in order to design audit procedures that are apprepriale in the
circumstances, An audit also inclides evaluating the sppropriateness of the accouating policies used
and the reasonableness of the sceounting estimaces made by the Company's Direetors, as well as

I Hfﬁ-‘ﬂiuatiﬂg the averall presentation of the Ind AS firancial statements,
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Price Waterhiouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AURITORS REPORT

T the Membess of Sterlite ]P!esyqtemﬂ. Limitad
Audit Beport on the Fingneial Slalements

Page zaf 3

7. W believe that the andit evidence we have oblained is sufliclent and appropriate to provide a basis
for o audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

B. Iuouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the Eﬁrplu[m' tons given to us, the
sfaresaid Ind AS financia) statemants give the information required by the Act in the manner 2o
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the aeconnting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affaies of the Company as ar March 31, 2018, and its tolal
comprehensive jncome {eomiprising of loss and other comprehensive incotac), its cash Quws and the
changes in equity for the vear cnded on that date,

Other Matter

g. The Ind AS [inzncial statements of the Company for the year ended March 34, 2017, were audited by
angther firm of charlered accountants under the Companies Acl, 2013 who, vide eir report dated
May 10, 2017, expressed an unmaodified opinion on thoge Ind AS finareial statements,

ohar opincan is oot qualified in respect of this watter,
Report on Other Legal and Regolatory Heguirements

1a. As requived by the Companies (Audilor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Gover, 1m-art<:'f
India in kepms of sub-sectinn {i1) of section 145 of the Act [tl‘c rder™), and on the basis of such
chevks of the books and reeords of the Company ag we considered appropriate and aceording to the
information and caplanations givan to us, we give in the Annexure 3 a statement o the mazters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

11, Mg required by Section 147 (3] of the Act, we raport that:

{2} We have sought and obtained all the information and explarations which o the best of our
kuowledge and belief were necesaary for the purposes of our audil.

(b} Im ourepinion, proper bonks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 9o far as
it apnaars trom our exaination of thoss hooks.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profil and Loss (induding other comprebenaive insome), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Chunges in Equity dealt with by this Repurt are in
apreement with tha books of occount.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial staternents comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Saction 133 of the Act.

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as om March 41, 2008 token
ont recood by the Board of Directors, none of the divecltors is disqualified as on March 32, zoz8 [vom
being appointed as a director o terms of Scelion 164 (2 of the Act,

([} With respect tc the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Grancial statemensy
of the Compeany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

IMDEPENDENT AUMTORS REMCRT

Tor the Members aof Sterlite Teleaystems Limited
Auwdil Report on the Fineneial Statements
Pagegofa

(g) With respect to the othar matters Lo be inclnded in the suditors' Report in acoordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowladge
and belief and according 1o the information and explanations given to us:

i, The company does not have any pending Htigation as at March 11, 2018 which would impact
its [inancial Position;

fi. “The Company did not kave any long-term contracts ineluding derivative conivacts as al Warch
a1, 2018

it There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Proiection Fund by the Company during the year ooded March 31, 2018;

iv. The reporting an digclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes s not apilicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2018,

For Price Waterhousze Chartcred Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Nunber; FRN ma2ysqN/Ngoo0i6
Churleged Accountants

los

Neera] Sharma
Flave: Pone Purtner
Drate: June 25, 2018 Membership Number: o801
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annexure A w Independent Anditors” Report

Heferred wo in paragraph 11 (f) of the Tndepandent Aunditors’ Keparl of cven date o the membess of Sterlite
Telegystems Limited on the financial statements [oc the year ended March 31, a0

Page1ofs

Report on the Inlernal Financial Confrols with ceference to finaneial sintements vnder
Clause {1} of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the At

1. We have andited the interpal financial contools with reference o financial statements of Sterlite
Telesystemns Limited (the “Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statementa of the Company for the  year exded on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for nternal Financial Controls

2, The Company's munagement is reaponsible for establishing and maintaining nternal finaneial
controls based on the internal contrel over financial repestting criteria established by the Comaany
considering the essential comphnertg of internal control sizled in the Guidance Note tn Audit of
Intemal Finaucinl Controls Over Financial Repurting issued by the Instituie of Chartered
Aceowntants of Indin £10AIN These respomsibililies include the design, implementation avd
maintenance of adoguate internal fnancial controls that were sperating effectively for ensuring Lh
orderdy and efficient eonduct of iis huginezs, incloding adherence to company's policies, the
salogunrding of ils assels, the prevention and detection of [rawls and errors, the aceuraey aid
enmplateness of the accounting records, and the tinely preparation of vl iable finaneial b formation,
as vequired under the Act.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

4, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Compaery's internal finaveial contrals with reference
to Brancinl statements based or our audit, We condusted our 2udit in aceovrdanee with the Guidanee
Note on Audit of Internal Vinaneial Contrels Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Nole®) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143020} of the Act to the exten
applicable to an audit of internal financial eontrals, both appliceble Lo an andit of internal financial
controls and both fssued by the 1AL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requircments and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance aboul
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established
snd mainlatned and if such controls opersted effectively in all material cespects,

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to nbtain audit evidence ebout the adequacy of the internal
finaneial enntrels system with eference to fnancial statemenis and their eperating effectivencss, Our
audit of interns] fnanclal controls with veference to financial statements included nbtadning an
understanding of internal financisl contrals with ceferance to financial stataments, assessing Lhe risx
that a mawrizs wenkmess oxiale, ard testing and evaluating the design and cperating effectivenss of
internal control hased on the assessed risk, The prosedures selected depend oo the nudile’s
judsenent, ineluding the assessment of the risks of materinl misstatement of the finaneial
slateioents, whether due 1o fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficiect and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion oo the Company’s internal finencial controls system with reference 1o fnancial
statements.
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Annexure A to ndépendent Aaditors’ Report

sicfereed to in parsgraph 11 (5 of the Independont Auditers” Reporl of even date to the members of Sterlite
‘Pofegystens Limitred an the faeciil alatenipnls fur e vear ended Mareh 31, 208

Pageaal 2

Meaning of Internal Finaneial Controls with reference to finanecial statements

6, Aocmpany's Inlernal fingneial comtrol wilh reference to finaneial stabementa iy 2 process dealgres Lo
provide reasonable sssurance vegarding the eliahilivy of lnancial peposting and the preparation of
finaacial statements Ffor extorinsl puiposes in accutdaree with genesliy aceepied accounting
principles. A company's internal finuieinl cortrol with referenee (o finaneial slatenents includes
thuse policies and proveduras that (1) peetain to U maintenanee of reeords that, inreanemable detail,
aceurately and faivy rellect the Lrarsaetions and dlspositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
rensonable agsurance that transaelions are recondud 2 neeassany Lo pormil preparation of Hranetal
statements in aceordance with gamcraliy accepted accounting principles, and thal recsipts and
gependilnres of the company.are Deing made omby (s accordanee with aukorisations of manngemienl
and dirertors of the eompany: and (3) provide reasnnible assurance regaiding pravention or lmely
dutection of unouthornsed acquisition, wse, o1 digposition of the company’s s thal aoukd hive a
material effect on the [inancial statements.

Inherent Dimitations of Internal Finaneial Controls with reference o financial
staternents

. Beeayse of the mherent Tmitations of internal lnaneint conteols with reference o [inancial
stiterments, including the possility af collusion or improper fanagemen override of cuntrols,
ieatoril misstatpinonte die o eveos of Daud niwy aceir and not b detected, Also, profections of any
eenluation of the internal fnaneial controls with referemaes Lo frspieial statenwents to uinre ;‘mriudﬁ
ave subject 1o the visk that the nlernal finaneinl control with reference to financie) statcrents may
become inadequate beonuse of changes in eonditions, or that the degree of compliane: with ths
policies ar proeodures may deteriorats,

Upinion

8. In pur apinion, the Company has, @ all material respects, an adeguate intornal finimeial coirliols
syRtern witth telorenme b francial statenenls and such Internal fimoisial contrels with rofrrence Lo
financial statements were operating effeelively as al Biareh s, woid, based on the internal gianteol
areer finencial reposting criteria established by the Compaiy considaring the ssseatial components of
salernal pontrol slated ity Guidanee Note on Audit of Talernnd Finencial Controls Over Fluansial
Reporting issned by the Inatirmiz of Chartered Accountints of India,

Faor Price Waterhouse Chartered Acconntants LLP
irm Regiatration Number: FRN a12754N N500016
Charlereed Acoowntants

¥

Mecraj Sharma
Flace: Pune Parlzer
Date: June 25, 2008 Membership Munber; 168391
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Annexure B to Independent Anditors’ Report
Referred to in parapraph 10 of the Independent Avditors’ Reporl of even date to the members of Sterlite Teleaystems
Limited an the financial statements as of and for the yenc anded March 33, 2018

i “here are no fxed assets in the company. hener the regquiremments under paragraph 3(8) (a), (12
and {c) are not applicable to the company and net commented upon.

i3, The Company's Husiness does not involve any inventory and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) of the said Order are nol applicable to the
Compary.

il The Company has aot granted zny loans, secured or unsecured, Lo companics, firme, Limited

Liahility Parinerships or nther parties covered in the register maintained under Section 18y of the
Avt, Therefore, the provisions of Clause ;(iii), (1ii)a), (i) and Gii){c) of the seid Order are not
applicalile to the Company.

iv, The Company has not granted avy Inars ar made any investiments, or provided any guarantees o7
secuiily to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186, Therefore, the provisions of Clause
a(iv) ol the said Order are not applicable to the Company,

W, The Company has not aceepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of tho Act and the Rules framed there under Lo Lhe extent notified.

i, The Central Government of India bas nol specified the maintenance of cost records ander sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company,

vil. {2} According to the information amd explanations given to us and the vecords of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Comgany is regubar in depositing the undispuled statutory
dues, income tox, serviee tax and goods and serviee tax (with effect from July [, 2007), a3
applieable, with the appropriate anthorities,

(by Avcording 1o the infonmation and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax and serviee tax which have not been deposited on
aceount of any dispote.

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any {inancial institation or bank or
OGovernment, nor has it iszued any debentures as at the halanee sheet date, the provisions of Clause
Alwiti) of the Oeder ave not applicable to the Company.

ix. The Company has not caised aiy moneys by way of initia: public offer, further public offer
{including debt instruments} and term loans. Accardingly, the provisions of Clause gix) of the
Order ave not applicable to the Company.

x During the course of onr examization of the boohs and recovds of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the peserally accepted suditing practices in Indis, and acccrding to the
informaticn and explanations given to us, we have neither come acrozs any instance of material
fraud by the Compary o an the Company by its officers or employees, poticed of reported during
the vear, nov have we heen informed of any such case by the Management.

. The Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the vear hence
prosvisions of Section 17 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable,
xid, As the Company is not a Nidhi Conpony and the Nidhi Kules, 24 are not applicahle tno i, the
e, provisions of Clanse 3(xi1) of the Drder are not applicable to the Company.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLY

Annesure B to Independent Anditors’ Repord

Referrod (o iy paragraph ol Ui Tedependent Auditers’ Report af gven date Lo the merchers of Sterlite Telesyssenns
Finidied on e fingieial statements for the year vided Mureli 51, 2008

Puge 2ol 2

xiid

wiv.

The Company has cnlered into bpnnenetions with related parties ln compliance with this provisions
of Sections LF7 andt (88 of the Act. The details ol suich relpted purly Wangaclions have been
dizeloged 1o the Onancial stalemiziis as requirad poder Tud AS 24, Related Party Pisclosores
gpeeified nnder Section 133 ! Uie Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Ancaunls) Rules, 2014,

The Company has nol made any preferential allotinent or private placenwent of shiares or fully or
portly aamvertible debenlures duslng the year undler review, Accordingly, the provisinns al Clavse
afwivy of theOrder ane hed applicable to the Compaay,

‘The Company hes nol enteved into amy nun-eazh transactions with its dircclors or parsons
contneied with him, Accondingly, the provisions of Clause alav) of the Order are not spplicable
te thi Company.

T'he Company is not requived to be regristerad under Section 45-14 of the Beserve Hank of Fudia

Act, 1g3q. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 300} of the Order are not applicasle o the
Lo pany.

Yor Price Waterhouse Chartered Acsountants LLE
Iiym Registration Mumber: FRNo12754N/ H500016

{:harﬁd Aceountants
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Meeraj Sharma

Flace: Fune Partner
Dute: June 25, 2008 Momhership Mumbers 105551
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STERLITE TELESYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY POR THE PERIOD CHNEED 3 MARCH 2018
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Stevlite Telesystemy Limited
Maotes to financial statemnents for the year ended 3 1 March 2018

1, Corporate information

Sterlise Telesysterss Limited (the 'Company') is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company was incorpmated on 21 Beptember
2015 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bpeedon Metworl: Limited.

The Ind AS financial Statements were aulthovised for fssue n pecordance with resnlution passed
by the Bomd of Ddreetors of the Compeny on July 04, 2017,

2. Sipaificant accountlng policies

This note provides a lisl of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial staterents, These policies have been consistently npplied to all the years presented, unless
atherwise stated,

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial stafements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AB) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
{Indian Acccunting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared oo a historical cost basis.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements ave presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated,

Current verdns non-ciervent elassificntinmg

The Company presents assets and lisbilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An assel iv current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cyele;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cush or cash equivalent unless restrieted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve monthe alter the reporting period.

| m & @

Al cther assets are clagsilied as non-cusrent,

A lability is corrent when!

Ii is expested to be settled in the nommal operating cyela,

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It i due to be settied within twelve montha after the reporting periad; or

Thers iz no unconditionsl right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months atter
the reporiing period,

The Company classifies al. other liabi ities as non-cutrent,
Deferred tax asscts and lighilities are classified as non-cwrent assets and liahilities.

vete of the Company is the time beiween the acouisition of qussts for pracessiiig-and thelr
sl or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products and the ﬁiﬁn~
ety for processing and their realisation in cash and cash e.quv.mlan.,a’ t}m 2‘ 'iik}'
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Stevlite Telesystems Lintited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

ki nscortained operaiing eycle of 12 months for the purpese of current and non-cucrent classification
of assets and liabilities.

a) Foreipn currency translation

Mmetional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financlal statements of the corapany aze meagured nsing the eurrency of fhe
primary sconomic envivonment in whizh the entity operates "the functional currency’), The financial
stateinents are presented in Indian mpee (INR), which is company’s finstional and presentation
CUFLERCY,

Transactions and balances

Torsign currency ‘ransactions are translated inio the functional curiency using the exchange vates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and Labilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year cod exchange rates ave generally recognised in profit or loss, They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying nel investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A tnonetary item {or which setrlement
iz neither planmed nor likely to pecur in the foresseable future is considered as a part of the entily's net
investment in that frcign operation,

Forsign exchange differonces regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cosls are presented in the
statament of profit and loss, within finance costs, All other foreign exchangs gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on & net basis within ather gains/{loases).

Non-monetary items that are mueasured at foir velue in o foreign envrency are transluted using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carricd at fair value arc roported as parl of *he fair value gain or loss, For example, translation
differences on non-monctary agsets and linbilities such a3 equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or lpss are recognised in profit or loss ns part of the fair value goin or loss and teanslation
differences on non-monsiary asssts such as equity investments classified as FYOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Moen-monctary itlums that are measured in termns of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the cxchange rutes at the dates of the initial transactions.

bl Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recogniscd to the extent specific criteria have been met for each of the activities as
deseribed below, it is probable [t the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can 9c rehiably measured, repardless of when the pavment is made. Revenuz Is mepsued
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defincd terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected cu behalf of the gevernment. The Company has
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in zll
the revenue arangements, it has pricing latitude and is also exposcd tc inventory and credit risks.

Rendering of services

Faeny the confract outcome cannot be measured lcllabl}r, EEVEMIE 15 m@pﬁrﬂﬁnﬂ ‘?rﬁgf 415]
xpenses incurred which are expected to be recovered,

ﬁﬁ%ﬂ % om services are recognised pro-rata over the peried of the contract as and wheh services
'& .
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Steclite Telesystems Limited
Nuoies In financial statements fot the year anded 21 March 2018

¢l Governmeni grants

Grents from the government are recognised st their fair value where there is a reasonable assuranee
that the grant will be recelved and the company will comply with all attached conditions

Government grants relating ta ineoms are delerred and recognised in the profil or loss over the
periad necessary to mateh them with the costs thet they aze intended (o compensates and preseiied
within other income.

Governmenl grants relating to the purchease of property, plant and squipment ate included in non-
current liabilitics #s deferred income and are credited o profit or loss on & straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by govermments or related institutions, with an interest
sate below the current applicable market vate, the effect of this favourable interest is reparded us 2
sovertiment grant, The loan or assistence is initially recogniscd and measured at foir value and the
government grant is measured ws the dilference betwesn the initial carrying value of the foan and the
proceeds received. ‘The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting polivy applicable o
financial liabilities.

dy TIncome Taxes

Current ingome fax

The income tax expense or eredit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income kased on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assetz and liabilities sitributable (o temporaty differences and to unused fax losses,

The current income 1ax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax lawe enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reportmg period, Management periodically evaluates pesitions taken in tax
relurns with respect to situations m which applicabls tax repulation is subjest to interpretation, It
ostablishes provisions where sppropriste on the basis of amounts expeeted to be paid fo the tax
atthouities,

Deferved lax

Defarred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax
bases of asseta and labilities und their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
teporting date, When the deferved tax agsel relating to the deductible temporary difference arizes from
the initial recopnition of an asset or liahility in 2 trensaction that iz not & business combination and, at
the tine of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

#  When the deferred tax lighility avises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel or Hability
in @ fransaction that 15 not a business combination and, af the time of the teansaciion, aiTects neitder
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or logs,

® In respect of taxable temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investmenis in subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests in joint ventures, whon the Hming of
the reversal of the tempovary dilfercnces con be controlled by the Company and i is probable that

_the temporary differences will not reverse it the foreseeable future.

iy

F B T Tkt 7 T#t‘h agsets are recognised for all deductible tempitasy differences, the car: "ﬁ}rw i njf-,u{t:_mmj
r},:'é e (w u{{,ﬁﬂ}rﬂ@ﬂ urused lux losses, Deferrad tax assels wre m:.ugmstd b the exten ﬂ-m_;‘lg ];m akle
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Sterlile Telesystoms Limited
Motes fo financial slatements for the vear ended 31 havch 2018

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary diffsrences, and the cavry
forward of wnused tax credits and unused tax losses can be witlised, cxeept:

 Tn respect of deductible temporary diflerences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branch, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extsnt that it is probuble that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseenble future and tuxable profit will be available against which the lemporary differences can
he atilised,

The zarrying amount of deferved tax asscls is reviewed at each reporting date aud reduced fo the exlent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be wilised, Unvecopnised defetred tax assets are 1e-assussed al sach reporting date
an ave recognised to the extent that it has become prohable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to he recovered i
Deferved income tax s determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacred at the reporting dats and are cxpected 1o apply in the yoar when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, ecxeept 10 the extent that it relatos lo ilems
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, Tn this case, the tax is also 1ecognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax avscis and deferred tax lizbilities are offset if a lepally enforceable right exists to set off
purrent tax assets againgt current fax liahilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the current tax assets
and tax labilities are offset when the entity has a lepally enforcenble vight 1o offset and [otend either
to settle on a net hasig or to realise the asset and seitle the liability simultaneously.

e} Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, eonstruction or production of an asset thal
necesanrily tzkes a substantial period of tims to get ready for its intended nse or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other bor rowing costs are expensed in the ]Je[md in which they ovcur,
Borrowing costs congist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in conmection with the
borrowing of funds. Bormowing cost also ineludes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to ihe borrowing costs.

f) Loases

The determination of whether an anangement is {or containg) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arcangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
alrangement is dependent on the use ol a speeific auset or assets and the arrangement conveys 4 right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly stated in the arrangement.

Company o5 4 lessee

A lense i3 classificd ol the inception date as & finatice lease or an operating lease, A lease that translery
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as & finance
lease,

{1 mrﬁ;?gm‘n‘ gses are capitalised at the leases inception al the fair value of the leased praperhoc, if lower,
{1’1”3. ;&umlue of the minimum Jease payments. Lease paymenis ae appmum:r;d"héﬁm&hﬁﬁﬂilm
arf ()

iction of the lease lisbility so as 1o achicve a eonstant rate of i m[umf: eyt Thiz tmﬂmmg
1 lalance o ﬂyeblmh l*t}r Finance churges are recoanised in finance costs in the -zt.ﬂhs' p’:nt pruhi, and
u, {E{_"“w“'{“"‘m& gﬂ/ﬁ
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Brerlite Telesystoms Limited
Motes (o firancial statements for the yeat ended 31 Muorch 2078

e s it

loss, unless they are direcily attvibutable o qualifying nssets, in which case they are capitalized in
aceordmee with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased asset i3 depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Howewver, if there is no reasonable
cerlainty that the Company will obrain owsnership by the end of the lease term, the ssset is depreciztad
ovet the shortor of the estimated nseful life of the asset and the lease term.

Lizases in whick a signilicant portion of the risk aud rewards of ownership are not transfered to the
Company we classified as operating lease, Operating lense paymnents are reeognized as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term uniess the payment ace
stroctured to increase inline with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected
in{lationary cost increases.

gy Impairment of non-financial assets

(Goodwill and ntangible assets that have an indsfinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently :f events or chanpes in citcumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impaitment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impainment loss is
recopnised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds ife recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount iy the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes cf asseasing impaivmernt, assets ave grouped al the lowest levels for which thers are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are lavgely independent of the cash inflows from ather assets or groups
of assuts (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
ure reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period,

k) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construetive) as a result
of @ past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will he
tequired o settle the obligation and & reliahle estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
When the Company expect some or all of a provision o be reimbursed, the reimbursemont |s
recopnised as a separate asset, but only when the reimburserient is virtually certain, The eXponse
relating to a provision is presented in the staternent ol profit or less ret of any reimbursement,
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

If the effect of the time value of money i3 material, provisions are discountad using a current pre-tax
vate that rexlects, when appropriafe, the risks speeific to the liability, When discounting is nsed, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as o finance cost,

i) Investment and Other Finzocisl nssets

i) Classification:

The company classifies its financial assets in the following messnrement catezaries;

_.2  Those to be measursd subsequently at fair valve (cither through other cemprobengive |

)i
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the finencial ussels and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For asscts measured at [air value, gains and losses will gither be
rezorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. Far investments n debl tnslruments, this
will depend on the businsss model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instrumuents, this will depend on whether the company has made an rrevocable clestion at the time of
initial recognition to account for the eyuily inveatment ar fair value through other omptehensive
HiCome,

The company reclassifies debit investments when and only when its business model for mnnaging those
assels chanpes.

i) Measurement:

At initiel reeopnition, the Company measveres a financial asset at its fair valoe plos, in the case of &
finaneial aseet nod at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cosiy that ave divectly atiributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried af fuir value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Financial assets with embedded devivatives are considered in their entivety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interast,

Db insteniments

Subsequent measrement of debr insfruments depends on the company's usiness model for managing
the asset and the cagh flow characteristics of the agsat, There are three measurement catepories into
which the eompany classifies it debt instroments:

Amaortised costs Assets that ave held for collection of conlractual cash Hows whers those cash flows
represent solely payments of pincipal and intevest are measursd af amortised cost, A gam orlossona
debt itrvestment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship iz recognised in profit or loss when the easet iz derecognised or impaired, Inferest income
from these financial aesets is included in finance income using the etfeciive interest rate method.

Fair value throwsh other comprehensive income (FVOCT): Asszets that are held for collection ol
contractual cagh fows and for selling the financial assets, where the agsets’ cash flows represent solely
paymetits of principal and intevest, are meagured at fair value through ether comprehensive ineome
(FVOCD, Movements in the carrying amoun are taken thiough OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenve and foreign exchanpe gaing and losszy which are
recoprised in profit and loss, When the finanecial asset iz devecopnized. the curaulalive gain or loss
previously recogmised in OCI iz reelassified from equity to prodit or loss and recopnized in other paing/
{loeses). Interest income from these financial agsets is included in other income using the offective
interest rale method,

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cosl or FVOCI
ate measured at fair value through peofit or loss. A gain or loss on a debl investment that is
subzequently measured at fair value through peofit or loss and is not part of 4 hedging relationskip is
teeoghised in profit or loss and presentad net in the statement of profit and loss within other
gamaf{lasaa&] in the period in which it arizes. Interest income from thase fineneial aw&tn _1...,11[0] uded in
e ¥ \,\
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Sterlite Telesystems Limited
Notes to inancial statements for the year ended 11 March 2018

The company subsequently measures all equily investrments ab fair value. Where the company's
management has elected 1o present fair value puins and losses an equity imvestments 1 other
comprahensive income, there is no subssquent reclassification of fair value gains and losses o profit
or loss. Dividands from such investments are recoguised fn profit or oss ay other income when the
company’s ripght to recetve payments is established.

Chanpes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value Usougl profit ar lass ave recognised in ather
geinf (losses) in the statement of profit and loss, Impainment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
an equity investments measured at I'VOCT are nol reported separately from other changes in fair valne.

Equity investment in subsidiaries and joint ventwre ave carricd at historical cost as por the accounting
policy choice given by IND A 27,

The Company makes investments it certain joint ventures and associales with the nbjective to gensiate
growth in the medium term and with identified exit strategies. Such investments are managed on a fair
value hasis. The company has clected to messure investments in such joint ventures and associates in
pecordance with Ind AS 108,

i) Impairment of finaneial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credil loss (ECL) model tor
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure!

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured ot amuortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables 2nd bank balance;

b} Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

¢ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial aseet that result from
wansactons that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind A3 18,

The Company foliows ‘simplified approach’ [or recognition of impairment loss allowanee on:
[y B et P

s Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables, and
= All leass recetvables resulting from lransactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approech does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk,
Rather, it recogrises impairment loss a/lowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
[tom its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company
detsrmines that whether there has been a stgnificant increase in the credit risic since initial recognition,
If eredit rigk has not increased significantty, (2-mounth BECL is used w0 provide fur impaivment loss,
However, if cradit risk has inereased significantly, lifetime ECL is used, I in & subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument imp:oves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
1isk sinee initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recopnising impaiment loss sllowance based en
12-month FCL

Lifetime ECL ars the expected credit losses resnlting from all possible default events over the expectad
life of & financial instrument, "The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
defanlt events that are possible within 12 months afler the reporting datz,
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Notes lo [inancial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2018

o All contractual termy of the tinaneial inshment (ineluding prepayment, extension, call and
similar aptions) over the expected life of the lmancial mstrument. However, in rare cuses when
the axpected iife of the financial instrument cannd ke estimated teliably, then the sotity is
tequired to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

s Cash flows from the sele of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral lo the
contractual terms.

EECL impairment loss allowanee (o reversal) recognized during the perod is recapnized as income/
expenge in the statement of pvofit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other cxpenscs’
in the statement of profit and loss. The halance sheet presentation for various fimsncial insteuments is
described below:

s Pioancial amsers meseured as st amowtised cost, contractual revenve receivables and lease
roseivables: ECL i presented as v aliowance, Le., a5 an intepral part of the measurement af
those assets in the balaqce sheel, The allewance reducas the net carrying smount. Until the
asaet meets write-ofl eriteria, the Company dees not reduces impaitment allowsnee from the
gross cartying amount.

For ussessing increese in eredit tisk and impairment loss, the Company combines finanuial instroments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysia that s
designed to enable significant increases in credil risk 1o be identificd on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial asscts, L.e,,
financial assets which ave credil impaived on purchase! origination,

iv} Durecognifion of financial asset

A financial ageet iz derecognigsed only when the Company has transferved the riphts to receive cash
[ows from the [nancial asset or retaing the contractua! rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
assel, bt assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows (o one or mere recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an zsset, the Company evaluates whether it has transfered
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised., Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownerghip of the financial assst, the financial asset is nol dergcognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all visks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company
has not retained control of the financial asset, Where the Company retains control of the financial
uzsot, the nzset is contirued to be recognised to the extent of continuing nyvolvement in the financial
agsel

v) Reclnssification of financial n=sety

The Company determines clessification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, Affer
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
finaucial liabilitiea, For financial assets which are dsbt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is & change in the business model fin manaping those aasets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the businesy
moadel as a result of external or interbal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations,

emmemChClAN e drC evident to external partics. A change in the business model ooours whon the

o

b

axsifics finaucial assels, it applies the reclassification prospettively: from the
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Sterlite Telesystems Limited
Mates to financial statements for the year epded 31 March 2018

chanpe in business model, The Company does not restate any proviously recopnised gains, losses
{including impaitment gains or losses) or interesl.

1) Financial Habilities

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of fizancial year which are unpaid, The amounta ure unsecured and. ure usually paid within 3¢ days of
resognition. Trade and other payables ave presented as curent Habilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period, They ave recognised initially at their Tair value and
subsequenlly sneasured at umortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Bowowings we initially recopnised al fair value, net of transaction costs incutred. Borrowings are
subscouently ineasured at amortised cost. Any difforence between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) und the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the elfective intercst method, Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities ace recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred uniil the draw down ocours. To the extent there 1s no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, lhe fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liguidity services and amoulised over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed flom the balance sheet when the cbligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancellad or cxpired. The differsnce between the carrying amount of a fisancial liability
that has been eatinsuished o translered o another party and the consideration paid, imcluding any
non-cash sysets ransferred or labilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses),

Where the terms of a financial liability are rencgotiated and the entity issues equily ingtruments to a
creditor to extinguish ail or part of the liability {dubt for equity swap), & gain o foss is recognised in
profit or loss, which is measuted as the difference between the carrying amount of the finaneial Hability
andd the fair value of the equily instruments issued,

Bomowings are classified as current lighilitiss unless the company has an unconditional right to defer
setflement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period, Where there is a breach of
a material provision o a long-term loan artangement on or befors the end of the reporting period with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting dale, the colity does not
classify the lishility as current, if the lender agreed, afler the reporting period and before the approval
of the financial staterments for issus, not to demend payment as 2 consequence of the bregeh.

k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash al banks aod on hand and short-term
deposits with an original matuity of three months or less, which are subject to an insigniticant risk of
changes in value,

For the puspose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents copsist of cesh and cash
;El%?ftﬁﬂ-ﬁ’gf defined above, nul of vutstanding bank overdraits as they are considered ;ﬂzﬁi}é@pﬁl patt
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Stertite Telesystems Limited
Motes o financial statements for the yesr enced 31 Mamh 2008

I Earnimps per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic sarnings per share is calenlated by dividing the profit attribulable to owneis of the Company by
the weiphled average number of equity shaves owtatanding during the linancial year, adjusicd for bonus
clerients in equity shares issued duging the vear and excluding treasury shares.

m) Presentation of TRTTDA

The Cotpany prasents Earnings before intereat, tax, depreciation and amerlization (ERITIZA™ m the
statement of profit or loss; this is not specifically reguired by lnd AS |, The teem BRITDA is not
defined in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT allows companics to present line items, sub.ling
items and sub-totaks to be presented as an addition or substitution ot the face of the financial staterments
when sich presentation ts relevant to an understanding of the company’s financial pesition or
pacformance, Azcordingly, the Company has alectéd to present EBITDA as a separate fine item on the
face of (e statiment of profit and loss. The Company messures ERITDA on the basis of profitf (loss)
ftom contitming cperations, In its measurement, the Company doss not include deprecintion and
amortization expense, finance income, finance costs and fax expanse

n) Roeunding of amowot

Adl amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 10 the nesrest lalkhs
a8 per the requirement of Schedule T, unless otherwize stated.

4.2 Going Congern Assumption

During the year the company has ineurred losses of INE 213 Lakhe end i carrying acourmulnted losses
of INR. 6,72 T.akhs pertaining to prior years, The outstanding loan has been obtained fiom the holding
company and there is no outstanding lean to other partize.

Bagis the terms of the payable balances, which requires the Company Lo repay ooly as and when it has
funds to repzy and the management’s intention is to continue with the entity, Henee the finaneds
staternents have heen prepared om going concern hasis.

23 Recent accounting pronoungemaents

Following accounting pronouncements are not expected to have signifieant impact on the

company’s financial statoment.

o Amendments to Ind AS 12 Incoms faxes cegarding recognition of defered tay gaxets on
unrealised losses which clarify the aceounting for deferred taxes whate an asset is measured at
fair value and that fair value is selow the asset's tax baze

e Amendments to Ind AS 40 Investment propurly - Transfers of investment property which
clarily that transfers to, or from, mvestment property can only be made il there has been a
change in use that is supported by evidence.

e New Accounting Standard introduced Ind A8 115- Revenae from contract with customers
which establishes principles for reporting useful information to nsers of Anancial statements
about the mature, smount, fimihg anc ancertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
cntily's contracts with customers

®  The MCA has notified Appendix B to Tnd AS 21, Foreign curtency transactions and advance
consideration. The appendix clarifies how to determine the date of transaction for the exchange

B l;-mu.&cr be used on initial recognition of a related asset, expense or income wlnmre Lly\fayx
,;:‘: e L:; i,,!‘ q{igﬂmq congideration in advance for foreign curency-denominated mmhgi,"t'é
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MOTE 32 OTHER FINANCIAL ABSETE
Moe-eoreni

Sccnrily deposits

Cilber eeeivables

Tatal otier www-correné fnnmeial agscts

NOTE 4 @THER ASSETS

M i-cireent
Balances with povecnmesit awsheeities

Tutnl other non-curresl ausets

MNOTE §: CASH AND CASH BOUIVALEMTE
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MNOTE 6: BHARE CAPITAL
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MOTE T OTHER EQUITY

Tetained enrnlings
CIjacming balunce

Add: Mer paofil For e year
Tl retalned carnlnnga

Tl other eymity
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feotes i financin] sintermonts for Ehe yenr ended 31 Maech 2008

MOTE 13 GARMIMGS TER SHARE (EPS)

Bosic EPS anovims e caleulemsl by dividing tie profiiloas) Far the venr aitribateble o equily hakibers by the waighted sweonge nupiher af Eopily sheces

gutstonding duriig the year
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WOTE 13: Fair valnea
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Iate 15 Tinnnckal vlzl maasgesaen! abjectives and policles

Thie Compeny dees ol live aoy opeestions, Tl Cronpoy's principa? [osneid Gabdliges, sotgige bersoseings, trade anl ollze poaldes s atber Gonmeind
tinbilities The wmin porowse ol dhese Doooeal Hsbilites i w0 Geaece thy Suecpany's sish Tew sequergments, The Compny’s princial Tnomsinl asies
inclde lireestments, fowas, irada and ather reezivables, eoals giod short-lerm depacits and atier Goaneial nzaegs.

The Cenpany 15 caposad bo credil risk and Heuidity gk, The Company's senier monaganen] pversecs the monagoiment of hese ngks.

I dtisk beiaragement policies of (e Compuny are cstaglished o identify oed annlyae dls risks Faced by e Coonpany, o sl appaeprete osk s md
canlrels and fo mwnites pisks ol nelliercies W Sindis, Bisk pmisgedsten polisies ml systems are approved ond reviesod cegelucly by Borsil o reflesi
changzs &t markdt candilions ond Use Campiny's aclivitics
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Wembers of Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Report an the Ind A% Financial Statements

Wife have gudited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Maharashtra Transmission
Communicalion infrastructure Dimited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balarce Sheet as
at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the slatement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Staternert and the Statement of Changes in Eguity for
the year then ended, and a summary of signilicanl accounting policies and other explanatory
inlae e lion,

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1345 of the
Campanies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respecl to the preparztion of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and Fair view of the state of affairs (financial positien?, profit or loss
{financial performance including other comprehersive income), cash Mlows and changes in equity
of the Comaany in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Iadia, including
the Accounting Standards specified under seckion 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
Clndfian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting recerds ir accorcance wilh the provisions of the Act Far
satequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
Irraguiarilies; selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making judgments
and cstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation snd
maintenante of adequate internal fnancial centrol that were operating effectively far ensuring
Lhe accuracy and completeness of the sccounting records, relevanl Lo Lhe preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS fingncial stalemenls Lhat give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an apinion on these Ind AS financial statements based an our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounling and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the pravisions
of Lhe Acl and lhe Rules made therevnder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, issusd by the Institute of Chartered Sccountants of India, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards reguire that we comply w'th ethical
requiraments and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the
Irg AS Tinanciak staterments aze free from material misstatement,

An audit involves perferming precedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounis and
disclosuras in the Ind AS flinancial statements, The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of Lhe risks of material misstatement of the Ind A5 financial
slalemenls, whether due to fraud or errer. In making thase risk assessmenls, the zuditor
considars infernal fnancial contral relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS linancial
statements that give atrue and fair view in order to desigr audil procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, An zudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Direclors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial staterments. W
believe that the audit 2vidence we have cbtained is suffizient and appreprizte to provice
for our audit epinion an the Ind AS financial statements.
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In qur epinion and to the best of our information and accerding te the ¢xo anations given to us,
the Ind AS linancial slatemenls give the intarmation required by the Act in the manner so
reguired and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles gererally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 of jt2 |oss
inchuding other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changas in equity for the year
enced on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements

Lo
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As required by the Campanies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 (“lhe Order™ issued by the
Central Government of India in lerms of sub-section {11} of seclion 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure 1 a statement an Lhe matters specificd ir paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

A= requircd by sectior, 143 (30 of the Act, we report that:

e have sought and astained all Lhe information and explanalions which to the hest of our
knawledge and belief were necessary for the purpese of our audit:

I our opinion, proper beoks of accouril as reguired by 1aw have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Slalernent of Other
Cemprehersive ncome, the Cash Flow Slalement and Statement of Changes in Equity deall
wilh by this Repart are in agreement wilh the books of account:

In our opinion, the aioresaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companmies {ndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

Cn the basis of written represontations received from the directors as on March 21, 2018,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in torms of section 164 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013

With respect tothe aceguacy of the inlernal financial caatrofs ower linancial reporting of the
Company and the aperating elfectiveness of such controls, refe” 1o cur separate Reporl n
Annpexure 2 to this report;

Wilh respect to the ather matters to be included ir the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Zompanies (Audit and Auditorsy Rules, 2014, in sur apinion and to the best
of our infarmation and according te the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impacl its financial
nositior;

The Company did not have any long-term conlracts including derivalive contracts far
which there were any material foresccable logsas.




fii. There were no amounts which were required to be ransferred to the [nvostor
Educalion and Protection Fund iy the Company.

FecrSRBCECOLLP
Chartered Accountants

[CAlFirm R?istratiﬂn Mumzor: 224982E/E200082

per Paul Alvares

Fartner

Mearnbership Mumbes: 105754
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Requlatory Reguirements™ of sur report of even date

Re: Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited (the "Company™)

2 3. The Company has maintained broper records showing full particulars, including
guantitalive details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b. Al items of progperty, plant and eguipmenl have not been physically verified by the
manggement during the year aut there is aragular programme of verificatran which, in
our opinion, is reasanable having regasd to the size ot the Company and the nature of
ils assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

€. According Lo the infermration and explaraiions given by the management, there are no
immavakle propertics, included in property, plant and equipment of *he Company and
accordingly, the requirements undsr paragrapt 3000c) of Lthe Order are not applicable
to the Company.

i, The Company's business does nal involve fnventories and, accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3000 of the Crder are not applicable to the Company and
herce not commented upan.

i, According Lo Lhe information and ¢xp analiens g'ven te us, the Cempany has not
granted any loans, sccured or unsecured ta companies, firms, Limiled Liability
Farlnerships or other parties cavered in the register maintained under section 132 of
the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the pravisions of clause 3¢ii) (20, (b) and (¢ of
the Order are not applicable Lo Lhe Company and hence nal commented upon.

iv. In cur opinion and according to the intormation and explanations given ta us, there a-e
no loans, investments, guarantees, znd securilies granied in rospect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 20132 are apolicable and
hence hot commaented upon.

¥, The Comaany has not accepted any deposils lrom the public. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 30v) of the Order are nol applicable to the Company and hence not
comimented upon.

Wi To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the cost records prescribed by the
Central Governmenl under section 148(1) of ke Companies Act, 2013, are not
applicable tc the Cormpany lor Lhe year ended March 31, 20-8.

Wi a. Uroisputed statutery dues including income-tax, service tax, value added tax and other
material statutory dues have generaliy been regularly deposited with Lhe appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The Compary did not
have any statutory duas towards provident fund, sales tex, custom duty, cxciza duty
and employees’ state insurance,

b.  According te the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues inr
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-lax, service tax, sales-L
af cuslom, duty of excize, value added Lax, cess and other material statutor




wiil.

xi.

%il.

il

which were outstanding, al the year end, for a period o more than six monlhs [rem the
date they became payvable, are as ‘ollows:

statement af Arrears of Stalutory Dues Gutstanding for More than Si¥ Months:

Name of the | Malure ol | Amount | Period Lo which the | Due Dale | Date of
Statute the Dues {Rs.) amount relates Faymrent
The Value a06,.672 June 2017 July 20, | Not paid
Maharashtra  added tax | 2017
| Value Added |
Tax Act,
2002

According to the infermation and expanaticns given to us, there are ng dues of income
tax, service tax, sales tax, custom cuty, eacise duty, value added Lax, goods and service
tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute,

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the Ind AS financial stalements and according to information and explanations
green by the manacement, we are of the opinion that the Company qas net defaulted
in repayrnent o dues to bank. The Company did net have any loans or berrowing in
respect of financial institution or debenture holders or government during the vear,

Bazed on the information and explanation given to us by the management, term loans
were applied for the purpose for which Lhe loans were obtained.

Based upon the audit procedures performed tor the purpese of reporting Lhe true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and cxplanations
given by the management, we repert that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Corepany has been naticed or reported
during the year.

Accerding Lo the informetion and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of seckior 197 read with Schedule ¥ of the Act is net applicable to the
company and hence reporting under clause 3{xi} are net applicable and hence not
commentod upon,

In our gginion, the Company s not anichi company, Therafore, the provisions of clause
2{xily of the order are not applicatie to the Company anc hence not commented upoen.

Based on our audit procadures parformed for the purpose of reperiing the true and fair
view af the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the managemaent, transactisns with the related parties are in compliance wizh
sectisn 128 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have boen
disclosed in the notes to the “fhancial statemznis, as required by the appl cable
accounting slandards. The provisiens of se¢ 177 are not applicakle to the COMPEDN] ﬂnﬂ
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insafar as it relates lo section 177 Dfﬂ'[[; “}‘- o
i nat gpplivable to the Company and hence notl commented upon. *f,r"



Hiv According te the informalion and explanations given to us and on an overail
exramination of the balance sheet, Lhe company has nat made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly converiible debentures
during the yoar under revizw and hence, resorting requirements under clause 3{xiv)
are not applicable bo the company and, 72nce net commenled upon.

XV, According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has nel entéred into any nen-cash transactions with directors or persons connect=d
with him az referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

vl According Lo Lhe information and explanatlons given to us, the provisions of section
45-14 of the Reserve Rank at India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSREC&CO LLP
Chartered Acteuhtants
1C Firm H@straiiﬂn Number: 324982E/E300003
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVYEN DATE OGN THE IND AS
FINANCIAL  STATEMEMTE OF MAHARASHTRA TRAMSMISSION COMMUNICATION
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Report on the Internai Financial Controfs under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 1432 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™;

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repeling of Maharashtra
Transmissian Communication Infrastruclaie Limiteg C'the Company™ as of March 21, 2018 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Tinancial statements of the Company for the vear ended
on that cate,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for estakr ishing and malntaining internal financial
controls based on the intermal controi over financial repasling criteriz established by Lhe
Caompany considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in Lhe Suidance Mote
en Audit of Inlerrzl Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporling issued by the Institute of
Chariered Accounlanls of India. These responsibilities include the design, imple nentation and
maintenance of adequate internz| financial controls that were operating effectively for ensiring
the orderly and efficient conduct of it business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frawds and errors, the zccuracy
and completeness af the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rzliable financial
informaticn, as required under the Companies Acl, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibliity

Qur responsibllity is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal tinancial contrals over
financial reparting based on gur audit, We conductad cur audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Coantrols Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and
the Standards on Auditing as spocificd under seclion 1430100 of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent apolicable t¢ an audit of internal finarcial contro s, beth applicable to an audit of
Internal Nnancial Centrels and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounluncs of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Mole renuire Lhat we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurznce about whether adequate internal
finantial contrals aver financial reporting was established and maintained and if such contrals
operated effectively in all material respects,

Jur audil involves performing precedurces to obtair audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial contrels system over financial reparting arc their operating e*fectiveness, Our
audit af internal financial contrels over financial reperting included ebtaining an underslanding
of inte-nal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk Lhaol & material weakness
exists, and tasting and evalualing Lhe design end oerating effectiveness of Internal control
based on Lhe assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the azzessment of the risks af material misstaternent of the Ind A5 financial
statements, whether due Lo fraud or error.

We baligve that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriole to pr
basis T2° our audit opinion on the internal financial conlrols system over finarcial repegi




Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporking

A campany's internal linancial contrel over tinancial reporting is a process designed 1o provide
reasonatle assuranca regarding the reliabifity of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
A5 linancial statements for external purposes inaccardance with generatly acceptad accounzing
principles. A company's internal financial contrel ever financial reporting includes thosa policies
and procedurcs that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (73
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to perimit preparation
of Ind AS financial slalemenls in accordance with generzlly accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
autherisations of management and directors of the company: and (3} provioe reascnable
assurance ragarding prevention or timely deteclion of uwnautharised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company®s assets that could hove a material effect on the Ind AS financial
statemonts,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherenl limilalions of internal financial contrals over financial repaorting,
including Lhe possibility of collusicn ar improper management override of conlrols, material
misstatements due to errar or fraud may occus and not be detectod. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial contro s over financial reparting Lo Tuture periods are subject
to the risk that the internal linancial control over financial reporting may become irsdequate
Eecause of changes "¢ conditions, or that the degroe of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deleriorate,

Oplnion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate inlerral financiat controls
system gver financial reporting and such internal financial controls ovar financial reporting were
operating effectively as al March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
resorting criteria cstablished by Lhe Cernpany considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Mote an Audit of Internal Financial Centrals Over Finanacial
Reparting issued by lhe [1stitute of Chartered Accountanls of lndig.

ForsRBEC & COLLP
Chartered Lccountanls
ICJ-!-._I Firm E{&qistratiﬂn boumber: 22498 2E/E300003
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MAHARARHTEA TRANS VUSSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTUSR LEMITED
rinees oo fipancial statvrnenis for the vear endad 31 BMarch 20138

i, {Torporaie fformsatien

Maharashtre ‘Transnnssion Commumication Infrastructore Timited ("M T or ‘the Cotnpany’) i3 5 Juoing
verues belween Sterlite Techuologios Limited '8TLY and Maharashira State Electricity Transmission
Company Limited ("WMSEICLY). The Company was incarporated under the provisions of the Cotnpanies Act,
1956 on 9 August 2012, The registered affice of the Company i located at Prakachganga, Plot No C 19, F-
Elock, Bandra Kurla Cuomplex, Bandra (Fast), Mumbai ME 400051,

The prineipzl commercial activity of the Company would be making available fibre cupagity on lease rental to
retail, wholesale and enterprissfcorporate custouners, drawn from Optical Power Ground Wire (OPGW)
nebworl

The Ind AS financial Slatements wore awthorised Tor {ssue in accordance with resolution nassed by the
Board of Ihrcctors of the Company un fune 29, 26138,

L. Significand 2eewnoting policies
2.1 Bagig of preparation

The tinancial statements of the Caompany have been prepared in acewrdance with Indian Areounting
Standards as defnied in Rule 2{1)(a} of the Companics {Indian Accounling Stundards) Rules, 2013, as
amended, preseribed under Scetion 133 of the Companics Act, 2043 ("Ind AS™).

The financial statemenis have been prepared on a higtorical cost bacis, except for the tollowing assets end
liahlitiey which have been measured at Cubr valie or rovalucd amoynt:

o Cerlain linanciad asscls measured at fair value (refer acceomting policy rearding financial
inmstruments).

Fhe fimanciai slatements are presenred in Indiun Rupess Millions, except when atherwise indicated.
2.2 Bummary of significant accorniing policies

The following is the sununary of significant accounting pelicics applied by the Campany in preparig s Ind
AS Oinancial siatements:

#)  Corredrt vergus nen-current elassification

The Compuny presents assels and liabiliies in the balance shee: based on ewtrent/nun-gurrent classification,
Au asset s current when It is:

= Expeeted to be realised or iatended do be sold or conswmed in 1he normal operating cycli:

v Held orimacdy for the purpose of tading;

= Haxpeeted to be realised withim bwelve montls alter the roporting period: or

n Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted funn being cxehanged or used o settle a liabilivy for at least
twelve months aficr the reporting period.

All other asscts are classilled as non-curieal.

A Nability s current whei

ks expected o be selthed in the normal oparating evele;

It is held peiveearily Tor the purpose of trading:

Il ds due @0 he seuled withio teslva months afler flie reportiog period: o
‘Flwre @5 no umeonditioual right o deter the seifement of the lishility for ar laast twelve TS g T e
CELUFLOTE P, i o A3

m

=




MATARASHTRA TIRANSMISATON CORMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMTTER
Metes to fnancial skianents for the vear ended 37 March 2018

The Cempany classifies ull other liabilities ws non-curren.

Oporating cycle ol the Company is the time between the acquisilion of asscly fop processing and their
realisation in ¢ash or cash squivalents. As the Compainy’s normal operating vyels iz not eleacly idenlifiable, it
i assumed to be teclve months.

Feb  Foreign currencics

The Compuny’s financial slulements ate prosented in INR, which is its functivnz] currency.  The Cennpany
docs nol have any foreign operation and has assessed the functional CUTTEneyY to b NI

Transactions and balanses

Transactioms in foreipgn cumrengies are initially recorded hy the Cowpany at their respecinve functionai
curteney spot ralis al the date the ‘ramsaction first qualifies for recogmition, Muonetary asscls and liabililics
deominatid in foreign curcencies are transfaled at the funclional eurrevicy spat rtes of sxchange at the
raparlings dare.

Differences urising on selliciment or franslation of manetary ilems are recogniscd in profil or Juss

MNon-memetary items that are measured 1o leons of histerical cost in a Fareign cusrency are translated using the
exchange rafes ot the dotes of the initial transaciwons.

) Fair value measurcnenl

The Company measwes finsneinl instruments such as investments in rotual fand at fair value al cach balanes
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or patd to transfer a liability in an orderdy
transaction hetween mmurke: participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption thet the wransaction to scll the asset or transfer the linbility takes place cither;

@ Inthe principal ynavket for the assel or Hability, o

* In the abzence vl principal market, in the most whamtageaus market for the asset or libility,

The priveipal or the most sehvantagzous warkel must be accessibles by the Company.

Fhe fair value of an asset or a liability is mesaswred using the asswimplicns that ket participants would uye
when pricing the assct or lability, assuming that maiket participants act in their ecanommic hest inierest.

A tair value measuretnent of & non-financial asset talees it sceount & markel participant's ability 1o pererate
weonomic benefits by using the assel i #s highest and best use or by selling il to wnother market participant
that would usc the assel in it highest and best use.

The Compaiy uses valuation technigues that ars appropriate in the cireamstances and for velieh snf¥icienl chaty,
are available to measare fair value, maximising the vse of selevant observahle ihpuis and minmmisog the yse
ul unohservakle inputs.

All ssiets and labilities for which Ndr wihie i measored or diselosed in the nd AS foarnal stalemisns are
calegorised within the fair value hierachy, described ag follows, hased m the lawesl level input that is
sgnificant o the folr value measmrement a8 2 while:

Level 1- Cuoted (unadjusied) market peices in sctive merkels for identical nasets ar liatilites;

Lavel 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is stgniticant to the fair vulue nisasireninl
13 directly or indirertly abservable;

Eewve! 3- Yalumlion rechnigoes lor which the lowest level itpral Lhat 13 significant to the Tur v
1z unabscivable.




PIAMARASHTEA TIRANEMISSION CORMMUNICATION TNFRASTRLUCTURE LIMITED
Mares L [inuncial statements Ror il vesr onded 31 March 2018

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the linaneial statements on g recurring hasis. the Clonmpany
deteemines whether wansfors have ocowred betwoen Tevels i the higrarghy by re-asscssing categopsalion
{based on the lowest level input that is signilivant 1o the fair value imeasurement as a whale! at the cnd of each
reporting period.

Pur the putpose of fair value disclosures, the Company bas detenmined elusses of assets and Labilities an the
Basis of the naturs, cliaracterisucs und risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fair vale hicrarchy, as
expained above,

This note sununarises gecuumnbng policy for fair value, Gther frie value related disclosures are given 1 the
reluvenl notes.

d) Hevenue Recopniton

Revenue i recognised to the extent that it iz probable that the seonomic beoslits wili flow o the Company
and the revenne can be reliably measured, regardiess of when (he pavment is being muds, Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or recsivable, taling o account eombraciually
detmed terms of payment and excluding taxes or dulice collectad on bekalf of the government.

Value added tax (VAT) / Goods and Servies Tux (GST) is ool received by the stoup on its ewn aceount,
Rather. il i 1ax colleclted on value added w the commadity hy the selles on behalf af the EOVEITMEDT,
Avcordimgty, it s excluded from revenue,

Sula of goads

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownarship af the
goods have pessed o the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sa'e of goods is
rieasured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of raturns and allowances, trade
discounts and volurne rebates,

Itcome froms services

Revenues fiom serviees are recogniscd pro-rata over the period of the vontracr as and when services are
rendered,

Revemue from projeot

Fized Price Contracts:

Revenue frnn Bxed prive contracts of last mile connectivity is recogmised besad on the stage of completion of
the individogl coniract using the percentaze completion methad, provided the order outcome as well as
expevied total costs cact he reliably estimated. Whers the profit from a contract cannot be eytimated seliably,
Ievenue 15 only recopmised equalling the expenses ineurted 1o the extent that il is probuble that the CAPEnSas
will be recavered. The stage of complciion js measured by the proporiion that the cortract crpenses incurred
Lo ¢fale Desr to the estimated Lotal conlrel. expanses.

The estimartes of contract cost and the revenue thereon are reviewsd periodically by managerent and the
cumulative ceffiel of any changes it estinmics is recognised in the period in which such changes are
determined. Whaora 5t ts probable that total contract exsenses will exesed total vevenues From a contract, the
expected lngs 15 recognised immedately us an expenge o the statement of profit and loss.

Prepayments from customers are recognised as liabilities, A contract in progress for which the selling price of
the work performed excesds interim billings and expected losses is recognised as an asset. Contacts in
progress lor which interim billings and cxpected losses excend the selling price are recogniserss==haliliry,
Expenses relating to vales worlc and the winning of cantraels ure vecopnised  the .qtratcrnen;:?ﬁp_ﬁu Liﬁﬁ}&ss
g8 lneurred, g




HAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNIOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIVMITID
Iotes 1o linsacial statements For the vear ended 31 March 2005

Tuivrewi tveane

Interest income Is acerved on a thie basiz, by relence w the principal ootstanding and ot the effestjvs
interest eale applicable. Tolerest ncome is weluded in finance fncome in the statement of profif and loss,

) Taxes

Corrent lncome tax

Curent ineoimne tax axsets and Liabilities are measursd at the smount expeeted to e recovered o or paid 1o
the tax authoritics, The 1ax raws and tex laws used o compnute the amound are these that are enacted or
substantively enacted ar the reporting date,

Curent Income lax relating o items recognised outside of profit or loss is reeapnised sotside of profit or loss
(ither in vibwr comprehensive income or in cquity), Current fax jtems ure recogoised in corrclation to the
under]ying fransaction cither in OCI or dircethy in equity. Managernent periodically evaluates positions taken
L the lax returns with respect to situations in whish applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
esluhlishes provizions where appropriate.

Deferrad tax
Deterred tax is provided using the liabilily method an teinporary dilTerences between the lax bases of assels
and liahilitics and their earying amounts for financial reparting purnescs at the reperting date,

Diefurred tax labilitics are recognised for all taxable lemporary differsnces

Deferred lax ussels are recognised for all deductinle temporary differcnces, the carmy forward of unosed wx
credits and any unused tax losses. Deforred tax assels ave recognised to the extent thal it is probable that
taxable profil will be available against which ihe decuctible temporary differences, and the camy forward of
whused Ly credits and unused max losses cen be 1Hilised:

The carrying amount of delemred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date aid reduced to 1he extent that it
1% 1o longer probable that sulficient taxable profit will be available to allow w1l or part of the deferred fiv asseat
to be utihised, orecognised deferred tax asscs are re-assesscd at sach reporting date and are recognised 1o the
extent that it hiag becoms probable that fuhure (@xable profits will wllow the defimed tax assal to he recoverad,

Peferred tax assits and Habilitics are measured af the tax raws that are expected (o upply in the year when the
asset 15 realised o the liabiliny is setiled, Dased on rax rates fand fax laws) that bave been cnacted or
substardively enacted at the reporting date.

Dreferredd tax refating 1o items recogmised omtside of profit ar luss is recogmised ovtside of profit or loss.
seltrred tax torns wre recognised in correlation o the undarlying transsetion either 10 OCT or iveedy in
BLLily:

Deterved tux assefs and deferred tax Liabilides arc offsst i s legally enforceable vight exists 1o set off coreent
fax assels apainst coorent tax liabiliies and fhe delerned taxes relate to the same faxab.e Conmpany aud the
sdme fnxation aul herity,




MAHARASHTIGA TRANARUSSION CORMMUNICAVHOIN INFRASTRUCTTEY LiRITED
Mates to Nl statcrents ot the vear ended 3§ Merch 2005

i

1 DProperiy, plant and cquipmend

Capital work in progress, proporly, plant and sgeimment are stated at cosh, nel of aceumulated depreciution and
atcumelated impairmend losses, ifany. Such cost includes the coet of replacing part of'the property, plant ad
cyuipmernt and borrowing costs for lomg-tenm construction projects 1f the recognition crileria are met, When
sigmilicant parts of the property, plant and squipment are required to be replaced at jutervals. the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful Hves. Likewise, when o major Inspeclion is
performed, {5 cost i recogniscd in the carrying amauet of the plant and cquipment as o replacement i the
recopnition eriteria are satisfied.  All other repair and maintenance costs aee recopnised i stulement of prodir
or loss as jficurred. Wo decomenissioning labilities are expected or be mewrred on ihe assets of plagr and
equipmeni.

Expenditure directly relaling o constraclion activity s capitalised. Iudizeet expendilure incurred during
constnetion period is capitalised as pert of the construction costs to the oxient the cupenditure can be
atiributable w comstruction activity o 15 incidental thcre to, Ineome samsd during the consiriction period is
deducted thom the total of the indirect caponditure

Prepreciation on the item of proserty, plant and equipment is calewlated on & slraight ling basis using the vates
arrived al based on the useful lives csimated by the management which are Zojual to fhe lile preseribed under
the Schedule 1 tn ihe Companies Act, 2013,

An itcm of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upuon
dispasal or when no fulure peonomic benelits are expecied from its wse or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
un derecognition of the asset (culeolated as the difference between the net disposal procecds and the currying
aronnt of the asset) is inchided in the siatement of profit or loss when the assel is derecognised,

The residual values, usefil Hves and methods of depreciation of property, plant and ciuipment are raviewed al
each tinanedal year end and adjusted prospectively, 17 apprapriste

2 Intangible Asvets

Intangible asseis acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Followinyp mitial recopndtion,
inuingible assels are carried at cost less acoumulated amortisation and sccunmlated iripairment losses.,
Internally generated imangible agsets, excluding capitalised develooment costs, are not capitalised and the
capenditure is recapmised in the Staterment of Peofit and Loss in the period in which the cxpendimre is
Incuered.

Mhe useful Hves ol intanpible assels are sssessed as cither finits or indefitite

Inrangible asscls with finite lives are amortised over heir usefil economic lives and assessed for impaircient
whenever there is an indication that the ntangible asuet may be impuived. The ameortization poried and e
amortisation methad for an istangible usset with 4 finite vsetul life ave reviewed af Teasl at the end ol cach
reporting period. Changes i the expectad ssetnl life oc Lhe sxpecled pattern of conaumption of [nue
economic benafits embodied in the assel are considercd to modily the amorlisation period or methed, as
appwopiiate, and are tredted as changes in accounting cstimates. The amortisation 2xpense vo nlupoible agsely
with Tinite lives is recagnised in the statement of profit or Juss,

The Company doss ol have any intangible usscts with lndelinite nsefil fives,

Right of way (ROW) pertains W the sight sranted by Maharasitra State Eieviricity Transmisgion Cunpany
Limited to the Company 1o establish communication netwerk in the state ol Manarazhizs. ROW iz srmartized
on & straigli line basis aver a period of 20 years for which tie right hus besn aransteed.

(aing or losscs arising froam dereemitian of an intangible usast pre mensured sz the aifference between flie
net dispirsul proceeds and the cavrying amount of the assel and are recopnised in the statement OF pen i1 br loss
when the asset 18 dercoommied 5 -



MAHARARINTRA FTRANERISETON CQOMMUNICA KON INFRAS PRECTURE LINITED
Motes o lingncial statcmenes for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2018

i Borrowims Cests

Borrowing costs directly allibutable to the aequisition, construstion or production of an usset that necessarily
tzkes # substantial period of fime to et ready tor iits intended use or sale are capitalised ag part of the cost of
the asset. All other horowing eosts are expensed in the peviod in which they oeeur. Borrowhig costs consisl
of interest and other cosls that the Commpany ncurs in cornection with the bomrowing uf tunds, Rorrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as ag sdjustoent {o the bor POWInE Costs.

i} lmpairment of non-finacicial nsscts

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whetlier there is an indivalion that an asset may bz impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment 1ssting for an assel is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable ameount. Au asset’s recavershle amount i Lhe higher of an asset’s or cash-penerating unit’s
(CGU} fair value loss costs of disposal and its waluc in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the assel docs not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of thoss from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrving amount of an assel or COU exeesds it recoverable
amount, the assct is considered impaired and is written down to is tecoverable amount,

T assessing valuc in use, the estimnated tomre cash [lows are dizcownted to their present value using a pre-tax
discoun rate that reflects cuirent markel assessiments of the time value of money und the risks spocitic tw Lhe
asset. Lo determining fair value lesy costs of disposal, recent market transactions ave tnken iolo accoum. 1070
such wansactions can be identificd, an appropriste valuption model is vsed. These coleulations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quated share prices for publicly taded compunies or other available lar
value indicators.

The Company bases s impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and lurecast caleulutions, which are
prepared separalely for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated, These
budgets and forecast caleulativns generally cover a perivd ol [ive years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calevlated and applicd to project futurz esh fows alier the fifih weal. To estinite cash Ulow
projections beyond perieds covered by the most recont budgets/lurseasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
i the budget using a sieady ar declining wrowrh rate for subsequent years, unless an increaging rats can be
Justifiead. Tn any case, this growih rate does nol excesd the long-term average mowth rute for the products,
industries, or country or countries in whicl: the entily vperates, or for the markel in which the ssvet is vsed.

Imipairment lngses of continning operations are reeognised in the statement of profit and logs, except for
prraperlies previously revatoed with the revaluation surplus talen to OO For such prroperties. the 1mpairment
15 roengmised i CCL up o the amount of any pravious revaluation aurplos.

An assessment 15 made at each reporting date 1o detormine whether tere i an Tndication that rrevionsly
recopgnised Unpairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indivation exists, the Company
calrtinzles the asset’s ur OO recoverable amount. A previunsly resogniscd nmpairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the ussuniprions usud 10 determine the asset’s reciverahle amoent ginge the lasi
impanacent loss was recosmised. The revirsul iz limited so that the carrvime pmouit of the assel does not
exeved ity recoverable amount, por exseed e carrving amount that would have been determined, met of
depreciation, had ne impairment luss been recugnised Tor (the asset in prior vears, Such raversal ie recaphized
i the staterent of profit or loss unless the assel is camicd at 4 revalied i, iewlhich case, the reversal i
treated as a revaluation inerease,




MAHARASHTIZA TRAKEMEEEION CORMBMUNTCATION [NFRASTRUCYURE LIBTTED
WNooes to financial staements for the year ended 31 March 2018

I Provisions

Provisions are recapmscd when the Company has u present abligation (lepal or eonstructive) as a result ol a
pest event, il is probable that an ontflow of resources embodying economie benefits will be reguired 1o settle
the ohligation and a reliable cstmuace van be made of the smomt of the oblipation. When the Company
expects somc ar all of a provision to be reimburged, [or cxampls, under an insuranec conlract, the
rcimbmrsement is recopnised a: a sepavate asset, bt only when the rsimbursement is virtually cortain, The
expense refaling o 4 provision is presented in the statement of praf3t or loss nat of any reimhirsement.

[l the effect of the time value of money 15 marerial, provisions are discountod using a currenl pre-tax rate that
teflets, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Fabilily. When discounting is wsed. the increase in the
provisian due to the nussage of time is recopuised as & finance cost,

Y  Retirement aud aiier employes beneflts

Retirernonl Henefit in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The Company has oo
obligation, other than the eonfribution payable 1o the provident fund. The Company recognizes contetbuton
pavable to the provident fund as an expense, when an emslovee renders the related service, If the contriltion
payable 1o the seheme for service received belore the balance shect date exceeds the conmribation already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme ks recognized as a liabiliny aller deducting the contribution already paid, If
the contribution alysady paid exeeeds the contribution due for services received befors the balance shect date,
then excess is revopnized as an asset to the exient that the pro-payment will lead o, for crample, i redaction
1 fiterre puyment o 3 eash refund.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan i India, which requires cantributions to be made to 3
separately administered fund.

The cost of providing bezefits under the defined henefit plan s determinad weing the projected unit cradit
mcthol.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarizl guing and logses and the return on plan assets (excluding amonos
weluded in net imeresl on the nes defined benefd Hability}, are recopnised immediately fn the balance shet
will a comresponding debit or evedil o refained eaenings through OCT in the periad i which ihey cccur.
Rermeagurements 2re not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Met mivrest is calculated by applving the discount vate 1o ihe net defined honafit liability or wsset. The
Campany recopnises he [ollowing charges in the net defined henefit obligation as wn expense it the
statsivent of profit and loss:

" Bervice CoSER CoMmprising cwrent service cogls, past-service costs, sins and losses on enrtailmends and
tol-rouline settlements; and
no Met Interest crpinse or Incone

I} Finapcial instrumenis

A finaneial imstrument is any contract that gives vise ‘o a financial assct of one entily and & financial liability
ar eyuity instrument of another catity.

Finzncinl asgots

Inikial reepgnition and measurenient

All inaneial ausets are recopnised imtially at fair value plus, 10 the case of financtal assets not cecorded at fir

vilue through profit or luss, transzelion costs thal are altributable to the scquisition of the linangial asser.

Furchuses or sales of Mnzneial assets that require delivery of assels within a tine Daome "”f\,}";‘ﬁﬁe\?:&y

regalstion or convention in the matkel place {reguiar way trades) a1s recognived on the ws Tont oy

dete that the Campany cominits 1o porchase or s=ll he azsel, . \\ ',I'n".
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MAHARASIPFRA TRAMNSMISELN COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTLER [LIMITED
okes o fonaneial staleraents for the yoar endad 31 March 2008

Subseguant NERISUT CREEL
Vo purposcs of subsequent measurement, loancial issets are classilicd in four catepories:

1. Diebt instrounents at amortized cost

i Debt instroments at fair valus through other comprehensve meome (FYTOC
i, Debt insruments, derivatives and equily instromants at fair value through profit or oss (F VTPL})
v Equity instruments measured 21 fair value teough other comprehiensive incoms (FYTOOD

Dhebi instrunienis at amnriised cosl
A 'debt watrument” i measured st the amortised cost i hoth the following conditicns are mel:

a)  The asset 15 hield within o business model whose objective s 1 hold assets for collecting contractual cash
Howa, and

bl Contraclual toms of the asset give vise v specilied dates to cash Alows that ars solely payments of
principal aid interest (SPPIY on the principal smount outstanding.

This category is the mest relavant fo the Company. After initial measurement, such Franein] gssets arc
subseruently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlevest race {BIR) fsthod  Amortised cost is
caleuluted by taking irto account any discount or prewium an segzition and tees or costs Lhat are an intepral
part of the EIR. The BTR amertisation is ineluded in fisasee income in the statement of profit or toss, The
losses arising from impabiment are fecopnised in the statement of profit or loss. This cstegory secrally
applies fo teade and ether receivablas. For move informalien oo receivables, cefor (o note 4.

Debt instrument at By T
A *deblinstrument’ is classified as at the FVTOO! If bath of the fullewing criteria ore met:

a}  Fhe ohjeclive o the Business model is achicved both by collecting comtractusl cash Hows and selling the
[imancial sssets, and
b} The assat’s contracival cash o Tepresent $FP.

Deht msiruments inclnded within the FVUCHT category are messured initiallv s well as at each repuThng
date at fair value. Far value movements are recognized i the other somprehensive income (O, Howresver,
the Company recopnizes interest inewine, impairment losss and reversals and fisccigm cachange gain or loss in
fhie stalement ol profit and foss, On derecognition of the assel, cutnulative gain or loss previausiy recosnised
in O] iz reclassitled frow the equily to statement of profic and Joss, loterest carned whilst hokding PV TOCT
debt inatrarnent s reparted as interest income using the BIR method.

Deht instomcot at TYTPL
FYTTL 15 a residhes: vategory (o debl instruments. Arey debt instriument, whicl does not meat the eriteria for
caligorization as at amortized cost or a8 Y TOCT is classified as at FYTEL,

T addirion, the Corpany may elect to desiprate a debt instroment, swhich otherwise mests amortived cost ar
FVTOCL eriteria, as wt FYTPL. Howevar, such eleetion iz allowad only 17 doing so reduces or climninates a
wegseramenl or recognition incensistency (relerred to as ‘accounting mizmatch’).  The Company has not
designared any debt ingtrovnenl ax al FVTEL,

Debt instrumends incladed within the FYTPL category are measuted ar faic valus wilh gl changes recognized
in the statgment of profit and loss.

Trereanp wilion
A Tinancial assel (or, whore applicable, a part of a finareia] asset or part of a group of similar Hoancial assete)
i preomarily dercsopnised (e, removed from the Coanpany's combined halinee sheet) whan- e

g
o~
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RATARASIITRS TRAREMISSIN COMMUNICATION INFREASTRUCTLRE LIMITEDR
Meres Lo fnancial stargments o the oo endod 31 March 2018

*  The cighls to reccive cash flows [rom the asset have expired, or

®  The Cotpany has oanstoried ifs rights o ceegive cosh flows fom the asset o hus sssumed an ubligation
te pay the reccived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party wnder a ‘pass-through’
arrangernent; and either {a) the Compuany bas transforred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the
asset, or (b the Company bas neither transferred nor relained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, bul has transomed control of the asset,

When the Company has transfereed il dghts to reccive cash tlows fron an asset or has cotered into a Ptz
through arrangemen?, it evaluates it and 1o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of owngrship,
When il has neither transforred nor retained substantially all of (he risks and tewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continnes Lo recomize the transferred assel o the extent of the
Commpany’s continuing involvement, Jn that case, the Conpany also recognises at associated liabihly, The
trams lerred assef and the associated Hability are teusured on a basis that reflects the rights and abligations thar
the Company has retained.

Comtinuing invelvement that takes the form of & juarantes over the Imnsferred assed is mepsured at the Tower
of the oniginal carrying awount of the asser and the muximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required 10 repay.

Tupairmeat of finsncizl assers
In acvordance with Ind AR 109, the Company applies expreted credit loss {021} model for messurement and
revugmilion of impairment 1oss on the thllowing financial assels and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al wmortised cost ¢, deposils, trade
receivables and bank balanee:

b} Trade reecivables or any contractual vight to receive cash or another [inanciat assel that result Grom
transactions thal wre within the scope of Ind A5 1 and Ind AS 15

The Company follows ‘siraplificd approach’ for recogniton of mampairinent lovs allowance: on:

8 lrade receivakles or cotract revenue receivables; and

= Alllzase reecivables resulting from transactions withio the scope of Ind 4% 17
The applicateon of simplified approach does not require the Company to track chanees in eredis rislk, Rather, it
recopnises rmpaitment loss allowance bascd on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting dite, tight from ils imitial
recopindtioh.

T'ov recoguition of impaitmen! loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether thure has been a significant increase in the credit visk since initial recognition. I7 vredit risk has oot
incroased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impaimment loss. Henwaver, if cradit risk has
Increased signifivanily, litetime ECL is used. 1, in a subscquent period, eredst qualiny of the nstrumei
improves such chat there is na longer g significant inerease in credil dsk since initial tecagnition, lhen the
BOLity reveris i recognising impairment lusy allowanee based o 1 2-monih B,

Lifetime BECL are the cxpected eradit losses resuliing from all possible default events vver the expeciul [ife of
n financial instrumen, The 12-month ECL ix a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from defaul events
that are possible within 12 months alfler the reporting date.

ECL 1w the difference between ail cuntractual cash flows thal ure due to the Company i aceordance with the
centract and all the cash Hows thil the entity expects w receive (ie. all cash shortlils), disconnted at the
original EIR, When estimating the cash Dows, an entity 12 required 0 cotsider:

£ Al comuractual terms of the financial instrament {inclading prepayment, extension, call and similar
rplions} over the expected life of Lhe financial instrument. [Tawever, in mre cascs when e expecied
hifz of the fluancial insirument cannot be exlimated reliably, then the entily ‘s required to use the
remaining contraclual tenm of the financial ingtromant;

v Cash flows lrom the sale of collareral hold or other credit enfinpcements 1hal ar
gotiraciual terms,




FIAHARASHTMA THANSRISSIEN COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTE S E LIMITED
Mares o financiak sigternents for the yoar onded 31 March 2018

ECL impenrmeent loss allowance {or reversal} reeognived during the period is recopnized as incomsa/ EXPELI
in the stawement of profit and less, This sinount is reflected ueder the head ‘other expenscs” in the staterment of
proric and loss, The balaree sheet presentation for various linancial instruments is deseribed below:

T Financial assels measured as atamortised cost, contractual rovenue receivables: ECL is presented as
a1 allowanece, i.c., as an integra) part of the tacusurament of those aesets in the balahce sheet The
allowance reduces ihe net carmying amoutt. Unkil the asset mects witte-off criteria, he Conpany does
not reduee impairment allowence from the groass carrying amomit.

For assessing inctease i eredi: risk and Impaireent loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
bazig af shared erpdit sk elaractenisties witl the cbjeetive of facilitating an analysis that s desizned 1o enzhle
signiflcant increases in credit risk to be identiffed un ¢ imely basis.

The Company dows not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCT} financial assets, Tz,
linuneia: assets which are credil impaired on purchase’ ongination,

Financial Habilities

Iaitial recognition amd measureweand

Finengia] liabilities ace classiliad, at inibzl recognition, as Gnancial Habilities at i value through protit or
logs, loams and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designared as hedging mstruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriare,

All Timancial labilities are recognised mitially af faur value and, in the case of lnans and bomrowings and
payvables, net of divectly atiributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial [mbilities inelude trade und other payables avd loans and borrowings,

Suhseguen meavarement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finangisl liabilitics st fair value throogh profic or loss

Fimanzial liabilities at fir value theough profit or loss inchude foancial liabilities held fior trading and linancial
labilities dusignated upon initial recognition as al [aic value through profit or logs. Finaneial Labilities are
clagsilicd as held for trading ¥ they are incured for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Lrains ar logses on liahilities held for tradinp ure recognized in the profit o loss.
Loans znd borrowings

This is the cagery most relevant to the Company.  After inlial recognirion, imerest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequent]y measured at amortiaed cost using che EIR method, Caing and losses are
recognised i profit or loss when the lizbilivies are derecognised 2y well as throurh the EIR amottisation
PIUCEES,

Amertised cost i caleufated by taking into awcount any discount or pramiun on acguisicion and Sees o cusks
that are an inlegral part of the IR, The EIR aiertisation is incladed as finance coats in Lbe statement of profil
und loss,

This caregory generally apphics to borrowings, Fo coore inlovmation refer nowss 1O and 11

PerecogRition
A tinaneiat liability Is derceogiised when the obligation imder the lishiliy is dizchareed or cancalled or
expires,  When an existing (inuncial linbility = replaced by another Irom the same lender on substantially

differemt terms, oc the wrms of an existing Hability ave substantislly moditied. such anffmﬂw
{L b,

modificatio is treated as the derecognition of the orginal liability and the recognition of o ngfe J1@H—#~Z\
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BEAHAKASHTIRA TRANSMISRION CURIMLUNICATION INFRASTRUOTURE LIMITED
Mepes to financial statetnents for the vesr cndod 21 March 2058

EMisetting of fimancial instrumwents

Vinunuizl assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the wel asaount 15 reported in the balance sheet i there is
g currently suforceable fegal ripht to offSel UGie recapnised amounts and there 15 an inwemion to settle on a net
besis, tor realisc the assets and settle the liabilities simulianecoushy.

m} Cash and cash eguoivaleris

Cash and cash cquivalents for the purposes of cash Qow statement comprise of cash al bank and m haod and
short-term mvestments with an oriptoal muiuniiy of threa months or less.

n}  Preseptation of EEITDA

Ttee Company presenls Eamings before interest, s, depreciation ané amertiselion (‘ERITRAY in the
statement of profit or loss: this 15 not specitically required by Tnd AS 1. The lerm ERITDNA is nol defined in
ind A5, [ngd A% compint Schednle OI allows companics 1o present line ifems. subeline toms and sub-totals
1o be presented as an addition or substitetion on Lhe face of the financial statements when such presentation is
relevant (o an understanding ol the company’s finaocial position o pertinnance,

Acceordingly, the Company has elected to present BERFUDA us g separate Tine item on the Bace ol Lthe starsmant
wl prodit and loss, The Conpany measures EBITDA on the basiz of proflt! (loss) from continuing operations.
In its measurement, the Cormpany docs not include depreciation and amortization capense, Mnancs ncome,
finanee eosls and fax cxpensc,

53 Rrandands issued but not yet effective:

The standards and amendments to standards ehat urc 1ssued, but net vet affective, un (o the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial staternzns are disclosed below, The Campany intends 1o adopr these elandurds, if
apphicahle, whan ey become effective.

Thee Ministry of Corporate Afinirs (MCA) has issucd the Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards)
Amendiment Rules, 2017 and Companies (hidian Accounting Standards) Amendmen: Eules, 2018 awending
the following standards:

Ind AR L1535 Revenue from Copiracts with Costorners

Ind A3 115 wae notified on 28 March 2H11% and establishes a five-step model 1o acsount for revenue avizing
from conlracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that relleots e
consideration o which a ety cxpests (o be entitled in exchange for rsnsferring goods or services to a
CUSEO .

The now revenue stmdard will supersade all current revenue recopnition requirements under Tnd AS. Ind A5
PL5 iy effective for the Company from Apeil 1, 2008 wsing cither one of two methods: (i) retraspecrively 1o
each prior reporting perod presented in accordance with lnd AY B Accounting Policies, Changes in

seounting Bstmates and Hrrors, with the option to elect corlain practical expedients as defined within Ind
A5 115 (the (Ul retraspeenve methed); or {11 retrospectively with the cummlative effect ol initally applying
Ind AS 113 iesoguiced ai i dule of initial applicatdon (1 Apeil 2018) wnd providing certatn additional
disclosures as defined in Ind AR 113 {the modilled rotrospective method).

The Campany has incotne primurily friom lessing of optical fibre lines to lelecom sarvics providers, interest on
bark deposics and dividends from liquid mtual funds. The Company conrinues 1o evalaate the available
transition methods and ifs conractual avangements, A reliable estimate of the quantiative Il‘{l‘pﬂﬁraﬁlﬁd AS
112 o the fmzncial starements will enly be possible onee the fmplementation has becn {‘fi-l'l'l]')rf;?&i{_fij,;" 1
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FMEAHARARH T A TRANSMISSION SOMMUNICATION IXFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Maotes to financial stalecacnes for the your ended 31 March 2012

Other Amendments to standards, lssued bot net effective, which are cither not applicahle to che
Company oF the impact is ol expected o e material

aj

bj

<)

d}

c}

Amendimeaits to Ind 112 Disclosurs of Inleresis in Ciher Parities;

The amendtienis ¢larify that the disclosure caguirements i Ind A% 112, other than these in parapmraphs
BIG- Bl&, apply o an eniity’s interest in a subsidiary, 2 joint venluve or an associale {or a portion ol i1«
intersst In @ joinl vonlure or an associate)} that is classified {or included in 3 dispasal group that is
clussitied) ns held for sale.

Amendmenis o Ind AS 12 Recognition of Delermed Tax Assets i Unrealised Logses

The amendments clarify thal an cntity needs fo consider whether fax 1w restricts the sonrees ol taxahle
profits agamst which it may make deduclions on the reversal of that deduetible temporary differcnes.
Furlhermore, the amendments pravide guidance on hew an ennty should determine Muiure txable profits
ard explam the eircumstances in which tazable profil may inchude the recovery of some assels lor more
than their carrying amount.

Translers of Investment Property - Amendrmsnty to Ind AS 40

The amendments clarifly when an eatity shonld tragsfer propaty, includive properly wnder construction
or development into, of oul of mvestment property. The wimerdments state that a changee I USE oCcuTs
when the properly mecls, or coases 1o wmeet, the definition of investmenl property and thers is cvidenpe of
the change in use. A more change 0 management’s inleniiong for the use of a property does nol provide
evitdence of a change in vse.

Ind A% 28 [mvestimenats in Associates and Toml Ventures
The amendmerts clavity that;

« Au entity fhat iz @ venture capital urpanisulion, or other qualilving entity, may clewt, at initial
recognition on an investmeni-hy-invesiment basis, o meusure its investmenls in associates and joind
venlures ab fuir valuse throwsh proft or Lloss,

= Man emity, that s ool itell an invesiment entity, has an inerest in an associile o foint ventare that
15 i investrment wlity, the eotily may, when applying the equity method, slect o retan e fhic
value measurement appiicd by hal investment entity associate or joinl venture to the invesirnent
enfity assgoiate’s of join venture’s inlerests in subsidiarics. This election is made separately for cach
mvestment endity associate or joini veniure, at the later of the date on which: (a} the invesitnent
entity astociale o joinl venture i8 initially reeognised; (b) the associate o joint ventire hecomes au
mveshient entity; and (o) the imegiment entity associale or joing vennire first becomes a parent.

Appendix B io Ind AS 21 Foreign Cutrency ‘Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Aspendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange taie lo use on initial tecognition of the
related asset, expense of incomi {or part of It) on the devecognition of a num-menerary asset or non-
nonetary Lability relating to advance consideration, the date of the trarsaction is the dale un which an
entily imtially recognizes the non-monetary assel or non-monctary Hability arising rom the advance
consideration. I there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity nwst detesndig Lthe
lransuction date tor each payment or veceipt ol advinee cansideration.

Ha
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Sterlite Global Ventures {Mauritius) Limited 2
COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their commentary, together with the audited financial statements af
Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Limited (the "Company") for the financial year
ended 31 March 201B.

ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year are as shown on page 8.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year under review.
(2017: Nil}

DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1. All directors served office
throughout the year.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financal statements for each financial year
which present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explainad in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statements.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Crowe Horwath ATA, have indicated their willingness to continue in office
and will be automatically re-appointed.




CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY 3
(UNDER SECTION 166(D) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001)

We certity to the best of ocur knowledge and belief that Sterlite Global Ventures
(Mauritius) Limited (the "Company') has filed with the Registrar of Companies, all such
returns as are required of the Company or the financial vear ended 31 March 2018.

\Rw‘"“:’_f,ﬁ
Authori ignatory

Date:

18 APR 2018

L e WWW.Sgggroup.com
33, Editn Covel Streg!, Poed Lowk. 11334, kauritius

FIA0 T 9A00 F 4230 2128833 [ mourtiusEigagroun.com
Rk C0P004720
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

(lpinian

We have audited the financial statements of Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Limited (the
“Company™) set out on pages 7 to 23, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) and which comply
with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors ' responsibilities for the auwdit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to pur audit of the financial statements in Mauritius
and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other information

Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the commentary of
directors, the Company Secretary’s certificate, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors” report.
Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors® report therean.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance or conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or atherwise appears to be materially misstated.

IT, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
te report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Sterlite Global Ventures {Mauritius) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with [FR5 and the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and for sach internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue 35 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, martters relared to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due o fravd or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
avcordance with [SA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriale Lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonahleness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Sterlite Global Ventures ( Mauritius) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that imay cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
Fair presentation; and

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that
we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

»  We have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as auditors;

= We have obtained all the informartion and explanations that we required; and

= In our cpinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appaars from our
examination of those records.

Use of this report

This report is made solely for the Company®s shareholders in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the Company’s shareholders
those matters we arc required to state in our auditors’ reporl and for no other purpose. To the fullest exten:
permitted by law. we do not accept or assume responsibility o anvone other than the Company and the
Company’s shareholders, for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

[ e Howeabt, AT4 ,Jc:é_L;{'ﬁ_-‘“’“"tw

Crowe Horwath ATA K.S. Sewraz, FCCA
Public Accountants Signing Partner
Licensed by FRC

Dale: 18 ‘FR 2518

Ebene, Mauritius
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 21 MARCH 2018

2018 2017
ASSETS MNOTES Usb UsD
Mon-current asset
Investment in subsidiary 7 12,375,000 12,375 000
Current assets
Other receivables and prepayments 8 2,070 2,070
Cash and cash equivalents 654,712 1,784
Total current assets 656,782 3,854
TOTAL ASSETS 12,031,782 12,378,854
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated capital g 12,381,447 12,381,447
Retained earnings/{accumulated losses) 594,685 (47,351)
Total equity 12976,132 12,334,096
Mon-current liability
Barrawing 10 50,000 40,000
Current liability
Other payables 11 5,650 4,758
Total liabilities 55,650 44, 758
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,031,782 12,378,854

These financial statcments have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

directors on and signed on ......... 1.8.APR.- 2045..... its behalf by:

e —

[

} DIRECTORS
¥

The notes on pages 11 o 23 forrm an inteqral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditors' report on pages 4 to &.
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8
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
NOTES 2018 2017
usbD UsD
INCOME
Dividend Income 689,638 =
EXPENSES
Licence fees 2,025 2,015
Professional fees 5,290 6,200
Accounting fee 1,600 400
Audit fea 1,955 1,768
Disbursements 100 375
TOTAL EXPENSES 10,970 10,758
Profit/(lass) from operations 678,668 (10,758)
FINANCE COSTS
Bank charges (845) (9B85)
Interest expense 11 (1,305) {790)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 676,518 {12,533)
Taxation 12 (34,482) -
Profit/{loss) for the year 642,036 (12,533)
Other comprehensive income - =
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 642,036 (12,533)

The notes on pages 11 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditars' report on pages 4 to &,




Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Limited

9

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Stated {Accumulated  Total equity

capital losses) /retained

earnings
usp ush usob

At 1 April 2016 12,381,447 {34,818) 12,346,629
Total comprehensive loss for the year . (12,533) (12,533)
AL 31 March 2017 12,381,447 {47,351) 12,334,096
Total comprehensive income for the yvear - 642,036 642,036
At 31 March 2018 12,381,447 594,685 12,975,132

The notes on pages 11 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditors' report on pages 4 to 6.
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10
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
NOTE 2018 2017
usD UsD
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation 642,036 (12,533)
Changes in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in other payables 892 (4,378)
Net cash generated from/{used in)
operating activities 642,928 (16,5911)
Cash Hows from financing activities
Funds received fraom holding company 10 10,000
Net cash generated from financing
activities 10,000 =
Net movements in cash and cash
equivalents 652,928 {16,911)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 1,784 18,695
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of
the year 654,712 1,784

fhe notes on pages 11 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statemeants,
Independent auditors' report on pages 4 to 6,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1

GEMERAL INFORMATIONM

The Company was incorparated in Mauritius, under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 on 10
August 2010 and holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence jssued by the Financial Services
Commission under the Financial Services Act 2007, The Company's registered office is at cfo
SGG Corporate Services (Mauritius) Ltd, 33, Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis, 11324, Mauritius.
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

I'he financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which comprise of Standards and Interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and interpretations issued by the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) approved by the International Accounting Standards Committese (1ASC) that
remain in effect.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards reguires the directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the Financial Statements are disclosed in note 5,

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations

The Company appliad for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017,

Amendment to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The
amendments clarify that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by an IFRS if
the information resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on the bases
of aggregating and disaggregating information for disclosure purposes. However, the
amendments reiterate that an entity should consider providing additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular transactions, events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the other comprehensive income
in associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity methed should be presented
separately from those arising from the Company and should be separated into the share of
Items that, in accordance with other IFRSs:

{1} will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and
(ii) will be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss when specific conditions met.

As regards the structure of the financlal statements, the amendments provide examples of
systematic ordering or grouping of the notes,

The application of these amendments has not resulted In any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Company.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2018

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(Continued)

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations (Continued)
Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
IFR5 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(a) Servicing contracts

The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing
involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and the
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in order to assess
whether the disclosures are required. The assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement must be done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures would
naot need to be provided for any period beginning before the annual pericd in which the entity
first applies the amendments. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
Company.

(b) Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to the financial statements

The amendment clarifies that the offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply to the
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report. This amendment must be applied retrospectively.
These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
Disclosure of information *elsewhere in the interim financial report’

The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference betwesn the interim  financial
statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial report (e.g., in the
marnagement commentary or risk report). The other information within the interim financial
report must be available to users on the same terms as the financial statements and at the
same time. This amendment must be applied retrospectively.

(ii}) Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginming after 1 April 2016 and earlier application is parmitted; however, the Company has
nat early applied the following new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements.

IFES 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in Movember 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of financlal liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the now requirements for general hedage
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was Issued in July 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairmeant requirements for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FYTOCT) measurement category for certain simple debt instrumeants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
{Continued)

(ii} Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Key requirements of IFRS 9

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortise cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash Flow, and that
hawve contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
period. Debt instrument that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved bath
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCL Al other debt
investments and squity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
changes in the fair value of an entity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

= With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value though,
IFRS 9 reguires that the amount of change in the fair value of a financial liakbility that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recoagnition of such changes in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39,
the entire amount to the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss,

» In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under 1AS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other wards, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are reccgnised.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption
permitted. However, the Company has not early adopted the above standard.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of IFS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-Slep approach e revenue recognition:

Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue {or as) the entity satisfies & performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new and revised Iniernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
{Continued)

(if) Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Company is still assessing the impact of the this new standard, but it is not expected to
have a significant effect on financial performance of the Company. There may be an impact on
the level of disclosure provided.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

In Decemmber 2017, the IASB published Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
Cycle, containing the following amendments to [FRSs:

« [AS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing
becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the “date of transaction’ for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when
consideration for that item has been paid or received in advance in a foreign currency which
resulted in the recognition of @ non-monetary asset or liability {e.g. a non-refundable deposit
or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
interpretation requires an entity to determine the date of transaction for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 with earlier
application permitted. Entities can apply the Interpretation either retrospectively or
prospectively. Specific transition provisions apply to prospectively application.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the financial statements. This is because the Company alrcady
accounts for transactions involving the payment or receipt of advance consideration in a
foreign currency in a way that is consistent with amendments.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
{Continued)

(ii) Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 12 Income tax -Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify the following:

1. Deacreases helow cost in the carrying amount of a fixed-rate debt instrument measured at
fair value for which the tax base remains at cost give rise to a deductible temporary difference,
irrespactive of whether the debt instrument's holder expects to recover the carrying amount of
the debt instrument by sale or by use, or whether it is probable that the issuer will pay all the
contractual cash flows;

2. When an entity assessed whether taxable profits will be available against which it can utilise
a deductible temporary difference, and the tax law restricts the utilisation of losses to
deduction against income of a specific type (e.g. capital losses can only be set off against
capital gains), an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference in combination with other
deductible temporary differences of that type, bul separately from other types of deductible
temporary differences;

3. The estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of some of an
entity’s assets for more than their carrying amount if there is sufficient evidence that is
probable that the entity will achieve this; and

4. In evaluating whether sufficient future taxable profits are available, an entity should
compare the deductible temporary differences with future taxable profits excluding tax
deductions resulting from the reversal of those deductible temporary differences.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
with earlier application permitted. The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material impact on the financial statements,

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows (Disclosure Initiative)

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
staternents to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2017
with earlier application permitted. The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material impact on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out bealow:
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial asscts are derecognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset cxpire, or when the financial
asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liakility is derecognised
when it extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured initially at fair value which is the value of consideration received or given plus
transaction costs and subsequently at fair value or at amortised costs.

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, borrowing and payables. The particular recagnition methods adopted
are dizclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Disclosures about financial instruments to which the Company is a party are provided in note
14.

(i} Cash and cash equivalants

Cash comprises of cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigniflcant
risk of change in valua.

(it} Borrowings

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges
are accounted for on an accruals basic and charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(ifi) Other payables

Other payables are recorded at anticipated settlement amounts,
Foreign currency translation

{7} Functional and presentation currancy

Ttems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in United States dollar ("USD"), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(i} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in the profit or lass. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity

Stated capital represents the proceeds received and in consideration for which, ordinary shares
were issued.

Accumulated losses include all current and prior period results as presented In the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis in the statement of profit or loss,

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies where the individuals or companies have the
ability directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making operating and financial decisions, or vice versa.

Revenue recognition

Revenue earned by the Company is recognised on the fallowing basis:
Interest income - as it shall be accrued, unless collectibility is in doubt.

Dividend Income - should be recognised when the sharcholders’ rights to receive payments
have been established.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Investment in subsidiary
Subsidiary undertakings are those entities in which the Company contrals an investee if all of
the following elements are present:

(i) power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investes, and

(ii) the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control. N )
De-facto contrel exists in situations where the Company has the practical ability to direct the

relevant activities of the Investee without holding the majority of the wvoting rights. In
determining whether de-facto control exists the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

(i) The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other
parties who hold voting rights,

(Ii} Substantive potential voting riahts held by the Company and by other parties,
(iii) Other contractual arrangements,

(i) Historic patterns in voting attendance.

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost, less impairment. Where an indication of impairment
cxists, the recoverable amount of the investment is assessed. Where the carrying amount is
greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount and the difference is charged to the profit or loss. On disposal of an
investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cerrying amount is
charged or credited to the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

5

SIGNIFICANT MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS IMN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make

use of certain critical accounting estimates. It alsc requires directors to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

The following are the management’s judgements made in applying the accounting policles of
the Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements., Critical
estimation uncertainties are described in note 6.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising therecn are dependent on the functional
currency selected. As described in note 4, the directors have considered those factors therein
and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the United States dollar
(USD),

Impairment of financial assets

Management assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financlal asset or group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidance of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
Incurred 'loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets that can be reliably estimated. There are no such indications
of events having Impact on future cash flows of the Company. Therefore, no impairment
provision Is regulred to be made by the Company.

Impairment of non-financial asset

In aszessing whether a full impairment test is required for the investment in the subsidiary, the
Company has considered whether it has recognised a dividend from the investment and
evidence is available that:

+ the carmrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the financial statements of the subsidiary's net assets; or

= the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period in which
the dividend is declared

The directors have noted that the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements is lower than the carrying amount in the financial statements of the subsidiary’s net
assets. Therefore, no impairment provision is required to be made by the Company.

Consalidated financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by the Mauritius Companies Act
2001 allowing a wholly or virtually wholly owned subsidiary company holding a Category 1
Global Business Licence and having any company not to prepare consolidated financial
statements. The financial statements are, therefore, separate financial statements which
contain information about Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Limited as an individual
company and do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a Group.
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements,
estimates and assumptions about recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, Iincome
Znd cxpenses.

The actwal result may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by
management and will seldom equal the estimated results,
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7 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 2018 2017
UspD ush
At 31 March 12,375,000 12,375,000
Details of investment in the subsidiary incorporated in China are as follows:
Class of MNominal
Name of investee shares Number of value of
company held shares held 9% Holding Investment
Jiangsu Sterlite Ordinary 12,375,000 100% 12,375,000

Tongguang Fiber Co, Ltd

The directors have reviewed the financial position and performance of the subsidiary. They are
of the opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of the investment is not less than its
carrying amount and the investment has not suffered any impairment for the year under

review,

B OTHER RECEIVABLES & PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
usD st
Prepayments 2,070 2,069
Other receivables - 1
2,070 2,070

9 STATED CAPITAL

2018 2017
usD UsD
At 31 March 125381.44? 12,381 447

The issued share capital of the Company comprises of 12,381,447 ordinary shares with a par
value of USD1 per share. These shares are entitled to voting rights and to dividends., The
shareholders have various rights under the Company's Constitution, including the rights to

income distributions subject to solvency test and other legal requirements.

reauired to attend and vote at meetina of shareholders.

Ihey are also

10 BORROWING 2018 2017
usD UsD

Principal amoiint
At start of the year 40,000 40,000
Additions during the yvear 10,000 =
At end of the year 50,000 40,000

The loan payable to Sterlite Technologies Limited ("STL') bears an interest rate of Libor+60

BPS, has no fixed repayment terms and is unsecurad.
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11 OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2017

usD Ush

Interest payable to STL 2,085 790
Accruals 3,555 3,968
5,650 4,758

During the year, the interest payable to STL amounted to USD 1,305, (2017: USD 780)

12 TAXATION

The Company is subject to income tax in Mauritius at the rate of 15%. It is, however, entitled
to a tax credit eguivalent to the higher of the foreign tax paid or 80% of the Mauritian Lax on ils
foreign source income, No provision for income tax has been made in the financial statements
as the Company does not have any tax liabiliy as at 31 March 2018 (2017 Tax less USD

£9,663).
Reconciliation of effective lax 2018 2017
usp ush
Profit/{loss) before taxation 642,036 {12,533)
Add: foreign tax suffered 123,613 -
765,699 (1,880}
Income tax at 15% 114,847 g
Deferrad tax asset 1,880
Tax losses lapsed 1,847 =
Tax losses brought forward (8,950}
Withholding tas 34,482
Foreign tax credit (restricted) (107,744) =
34,482 -

13 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year under review, the Company transacted with a related entitiyv. The nature,

volume of transactions and balances with this entity are as follows:

Amount due to holding company - Sterlite Technologies Limited

le over
2018 2017
uspD uspo
At beginning of the yvear 40,000 40,000
Additions during the year 10,000 -
At end of the year ) 50,000 40,000

The loan pavable to Sterlite Technologies Limited ('STL') bears an interest rate of Libor+60

BEPS, has no fixed repayment terms and s unsecurad,
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14

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Fees paid to key management personnel

There was no compensation paid to key management personnel for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: USD Nil).

Professional fees of USD 2,500 have been incurred by the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: USD 2,500) in relation to directorship services rendered by the resident
directors. However, these fees are not paid to the individual officers but to the Company's
administrator.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair walues
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Company approximate to their fair
values.

Currency profile
The Company's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in USD.

Risk and capital management

The capital of the Company is primarily for investment purposes in view of generating a retum
on the investment made by the shareholder. It is the Company's policy to finance its
investment and any operating expenses from eqguity Instruments. There were no changes in
the Company's appreach to capital management during the year,

The risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

(i) Liquidity risk

(i) Market risk

(iii} Interest rate risk

The Board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing this risks are as follows:

(f) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both narmal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. The Company has the continued financial support of its holding
company in this process. Changes in liquidity risk will not have any material impact on the
financial statements.

More than 1
321 March 2018 year Up to 1 year
Liabilities uso usp
Borrowing 50,000 -
Other payables - 5,650
Total 50,000 5,650
More than 1
31 March 2017 year Up to 1 year
Liabilities usp ush
Barrowing 40,000 =
Other payables - 4,758

Total 40,000 4,758
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14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(i} Market risk

Market risk represenls the polentizl loss that can be caused by a change in the market value of
financial instruments. The Company's exposure to market risk is determined by a number of
factars, including interest rates, foreign currency exchanoge rates and market volatility. The
Company conducts its investment operations in a manner that seeks to exploit the potential
gains in the market, while limiting its exposure to market declines. The Company is not subject
to significant amount of risk as the unguoted investment is mainly financed by its parent,
Changes in market risk will not have any material impact in the financial statements.

{iii) Interest rate risk

For the yvear ended 21 March 2018, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest
rates on its financial assets on account of its loan to subsidiary and bank balance and on its
financial liabilities on account of its loans from holding company which are at fixed/variable
interest rates.

The following table details the Company 's exposure to interest rate risks. The total interest
sensitivity gap represents the net notional amounts of all interest sensitive financial

instruments,

31 March 2018 usp
Financial Assets

Mon interest bearing 654,712
Variable interest instrument -
Total 654,712
Financial Liabilities uspD
MNon interest bearing 5,650
Variable interest instrument 50,000
Total E5,650

Interest rate sensitivity

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/ lower and all other variables were held
constant, the net profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 would increase/decrease by USD
500 (2017 USD 400). This is mainly attdbutable to the Company exposure to interest rates en
variable rate of interest rates on borrowings,

Interast Rate Low High

(1%) 1%
Variable interest instrument (50,000) 50,000
Impact an total assets of the Company (500) 500

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair valus measurements in its entirety, which arc described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirecthy.

Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the assets or liability.
The following tables set out the fair values of financial instruments that are analysed by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised:

31 March 2018 Level 3 Total
Assets usbD uso
Investment in subsidiary 12,375,000 12,375,000
Cash and cash equivalents 654,712 654,712
Total assets 13,029,712 13,029,712
Liabilities

Borrowing 50,000 50,000
Other payables 5,650 5,650
Total liabilities 55,650 55,650
31 March 2017 Level 3 Total
Assets Usp Usp
Investment in subsidiary 12,375,000 12,375,000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,784 1,784
Total assats 12,376,784 12,376,784
Liabifities

Borrowing 40,000 40,000
Other payables 4,758 4,758
Total liabilities 44,758 44 758

The fair values of cash and cash eguivalents and accruals approximate their carrying values
due to their short-term nature.

HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider Sterlite Technologies Limited, a company established in India and
listed on the Naticnal Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange, as the holding
company and ultimate holding company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no material events after the reporting date which would require disclosure
or adjustmant to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,
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AUDIT REPORT
SUGONG T(2018) No.E4003

To the shareholders of Jiangsu Sterlite Tongguang Fiber Co., Ltd.
I . Audit opinion

We have audited the financial statements prepared by Hangsu Sterlite Tongguang Fiber Co., Lid.,
comprising the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the income statement, owner's equity changes

staternent and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

In vur opinion, the financial statements of the Company present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as of 31 March 2018, and its aperation results & cash tlows for the year then

ended in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Enterprise of the People’s Republic of China.

II. Basis for audit opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Independent Audit Standards promulgated by the Chinesc
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In the paragraph “Responsibility of CPA”, we shall detailed
explain the corresponding responsibilities under the standards. We are independent with the engaged client,
and Tully abide by professional ethics during our joh.

IM. Responsibility of company’s management

The prepuration and fairly disclosure of the financial statements are the responsibility of the company's
management, These responsibilities include: preparing & fairly disclosing the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises of the People’s Republic of Ching;
Designing, implementing & maintaining of the intemal control system related with the preparation of the

financial statements Lo avoid any frauds & misstatement.




The management is responsible for the assessing & disclosure of the going —coneem issue assumption of

the company, unless the hgoidation of the company is determined by 1o other choice,

The government level is responsible (or the supervising of the whole reporting process,

IW.Responsibility of CPA
Crur targel 15 Lo express an opinion on the financial statement based on our audit. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to ensure there is no misstatement materially affecting the presentation
ot the net assels, financial position and results of operations in the financial statements in accordance with
the applicable financial reporting of framework and are detected with reasonable assurance. But the
rcasonable assurance is not ensure that all the material misstatements could be fully identified by our audit
procedure. If the individual misstatement (maybe from fraud or errors) aggregated materially atfact the
financial statement or economic decision, then, the misstatement should be identified.

During our audit process, the professional judgment and suspects shall be held, The details can be found as

tallowings:

{1). Identify & assess the material misstements which are resulted from fraud & error, design amd
conduct the corresponding audit procedures to colkct complete and appropriate evidence as the
opinion basis. Due to the fraud may involve with collaboration , forgery , knowingly omissions , fale
statement or override of internal control system, the potential risk from fraud is higher than the risk
resulted from the errors;

(2}. Understanding the related internal control system and taken into account in the determination of
appropriate audit process, but the purpose is not to give the opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control system:

(3). Assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policy applied by the management and
evaluating the rationality of the accounting estimates & disclosure;

(4). Conclusion of the appropriateness for the going concern assumption provided hy the
management. Audit evidence shall be collected for the possibk material uncerminty issues or may
affect the going-concern conclusion of the company. If the uncertainty conclusion reached, the

corresponding disclosure should be brought for the attention to the report users; otherwise, the




modified opinion shall be expressed if the disclosure is not sufficient. Qur audit conclusion is based
on the information colkcted end at the reporting date, but the [uture items or events may affect the
going concern assumption of the company.

(5]). Evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statement, including the soucture & contents
{disclosure] and the judgment whether the related transactions and business activities are fairly
presented.

Communications with governance have becn conducted, including the audit scope, time plan, audit

findings and the defects & weaknesses aof the internal control system identified during our audit.
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Appendix 11
Income Statements

Prepared by: Tiangsu Sterlite Tongeuang Fiber Coo, Lid.  April 2007 to March 2018

i enctary Uit

HW - TR
ITEM AMOUNT OF Al 3
CURRENT YEAR LAST YEAR
I. TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 378,933,478.44 303.567,792.61
Including: Operating income 37RO AT A4 I03,567,792.461
Ineluding: Income from main operation 377.518.234.78 256702687
Income from other operation 1,415,243 66 1,000, 765.74
Interest income
Eamed from insurance charge
e = Payment for service charge and commission fec |
Il. TOTAL OPERATION COST 231,676,328.68 220,833,038.83
Ineluding: Operation cost 195,307,744.45 193,003,538.45
Including: Cost of main eperation 195,307, 7Tdd 45 193,083 538,45

Other business payment

Main operation tax & additional cxpenses

2.705,558.82

2.495490.11

Bales expensc

4,109,011.88

3 A5625.36

Gereral & administrative expense 28 90R,764.27 L9668 526 47
Financial expense 647 2549 26 1,724,858 44
Losses from depreciation of assets |
Others
Add: Gain form fair value charge ( deficit, using ="}
Investment income { deticit, usmg "=") 205219882
Bemittance gain and loss { deficit, nsing "-'") ]
UL OPERATING PROFITS ( deficit, using "-") 149,309.335.58 §2.734,753.78
Add: Nen-operaling income 2.357,7R80L11 1,003,851.81
Less: Mon-operating expenditure 4097895 60,434,592
Including: Disposal loss lrom un-cireulating assets
|IV. SUM OF PROFIT ( deficit, using "'-"") 151,826,139.74 83,678,170.67
Less: Expenses for income tax 22.133,494.97 12,104,127 .61
V. NET PROFIT ( deficit, using "-") 129.692,644.77 T1,574.043.06

2

_

— s —




Cash Flow Sheet

Prepared by: Jiangsu Sterdite Tengguang Fiber Co., Ll April 2007 ta Marcl 2018

f

r_"__—- N St b

I :D&T.;immnﬁ-}t-'_nilf.'- LAY

ITEM

Rl g S ._"_f o

| T. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

(Cash received from sale of poods or rendering of services

426,745,237,09 |

Fefunds of taxes

(401,439, 34

(ther cash revervad rolating to the operating actvilies
Sub-Total Cash Inflows of Crperating Activities

430,516,272.50

3,126,595.17

Cash paid Tor poods and services

278 ,940,066.40

Cash pad o and on behatf of emnployees

33,756, 140.07

Paid all types gi‘[axes

Other cash paid 1o relaing to operating activilies

45,575,344.32
19,528 269,14

Sub-Total Cash Outflows of Operating Activitics

Mt Cash Flows from Operoting Activitics

112.314,396.31

Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Cash received [eom retum of investments

Cash recenvad from caming of investments

2052, 19882

Met cash received from disposal of Txed assets, intangihle assets and other long-tenm assels

Mt cash reccived from disposal of ssb-company and ather cperating bedy

Other cash received relating i investment activities

Sub-Total of Cash Inflows of Investing Activities

Cash peid fo acquire fived pssers, mlangible asscts and other long=term assets

2,05L,198.82

12600662,379.510

Cash paid o investnents

| Met cash rezeived t'rEm sub=company and other operating body

Other cash paid relating W investing sctivities

Sub-Total of Cash Outflows of Investing Activities

120,662.379.50

Med cash flows from investing netivilics
ILCASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

-L18,6 11 140.68

Cush received from the absosption of investments

Cash receved from borrpwing

Caher cash received relating o financing activitics

13 B40,000.00

Sub-Total Cash Inflows of Financing Activitics 13,840, (M0 (H)
Cazh repavments OF amounts bamrowed 9. 530.054.53
Cash paid for disuibution of dividends, profits or intercars 6,5 275‘5 FB.ISCI‘
Cther cash paid relating 1o the financing activitics

Sub-Total Cash Outflows of Financing Aclivities 16,356,634 13
Net cash Mows from financing activides -2.516.634.13
I¥. EFFECT OF FOREN N ENCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN -150,007.23

| V. NET INCEASE IN CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -#.992,425.73
iAdd: Cash & remaining ef cash squivalents al beginning of the period g SH0E2,806.49
| VL. CASH & CASH EQLIVALENTS REMAINING AT END FO THE PERIOD 49 960,3B0.74
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Appendix V

Jiangsu Sterlite Tongguang Fiber Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March, 2018

(All Amounts are in RMB unless otherwise stated)

I . GENERAL INFORMATION

Jangsu Sterlite Tongpuang Fiber Co., Ltd. (the "Company™ hereafier) is a Joint Venture
Company set up by M/s Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauritius) Lid,, a wholly owned subsidiary
of M/s Sterlite Technologies Ltd, India and M/s Jiangsu Tongguang Communication Co. Ltd,,
China according to the approval letter [2011] No 8384 issued by the People’s Government of
Jiangsu Province. The Company was registered with Nantong Haimen Administration Bureau
of Industry and Commerce on January 19th, 2001 with the business license numbered
320684400011561. On March 15, 2016 it got the business heense of a unified social code
91320684567766496K changed and issued by Haimen Administrative Approval Bureau The
Company’s Legal Representative is Mr.Ankit Agarwal. The Company’s approved business
scope includes optical fiber technology consulting, development, design, manufacturing of
optical fibers and optical fiber related products and sale of self-manutactured products. Optical
fiber, optical fiber preform, and fiber optic cable products, wholesale, import and export and
commission agency (excluding auction) of optical fiber, optical fiber preform, optical fiber

cable and related products, The registered capital of the Company is USD 16.50 Million ({ Le.

RMB 103.54 million } same as the actual capital. M/s Sterlite Global Ventures (Mauntius) Ltd.

has contributed USD 12,375 Million, accounting for 75% of the capital

infused till now and M/s Jiangsu Tongguang Communication Co, Lid has contributed USD
4.125 Million, accounting for 25% of the capital infused tll now. On 20th March
2014, Company changed the regstered capital as RMB 103,836,015.19 equaled with USD
16.50 Million.

II. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Financial Statement is prepared on the basis of the Going Concern Principle.




T

1. L '-'fl ot 7|
[I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE

Accounting System and Accounting Standards Adopted

The financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and Accounting System for Business Enterprises of the People’s

Republic of China and other supplementary regulations.

Accounting Year

The Company has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from April 1 to March 31,1t

is special purpose financial statment prepared for period Apr to Mar,

Recordine Currency

The recording currency of the Company is the Renminbi (RMB).

Basis of Accounting and Principle of Measurement

The Company has adopted the accrual basis of accounting and uses the historical cost convention

as the principle of measurement,

Foreion Currencv Translation

Tramsactions denominated in foreign currencies {currencies other than the recording currency) are
converted into Renminbi at the applicable rate of exchange (“market exchanpe rate™) prevailing at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreizn currencies are
converted in 1o Renminbi at the marker exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains or losses are dealt with as finance costs, except for those allributable 1o foreign
currency borrowings that have heen used specifically for the construction of fixed assets before

the assets are ready for their intended use, which are capitalized as part of the fixed asset costs.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

Accounts receivable and bad debt reserves

G
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The provision method of bad debes:
The company’s bad debt losses is using allowance methed of accounting. When bad debt  losses
are oceured, the corresponding provision for bad debts is written oft with approval of Board and
relevant management authorities,

The provision for bad debts method and ratio:

The provision for bad debts is made based on a combination of specific identification of
assessments of probability and extent of loss referring to special accounts receivable, and the
company should make provision of bad debis respectively. Specific accrual ratios are as follows:

Proportion of bad debt preparation  Proportion of bad debl preparation

Term overdue

for accounts receivable (%) for other reccivable (%)
Within | vear g =
1-2years 1] i}
2-3vears 20 20
3-Syears 50 50
More than § years 100 100
Inventories

{ 1)Inventory category: inventories include raw materials, inventory of goods, work in progress,
finished goods and =0 on. Cost of raw matenals, components and stores and spares is defermined

on a weighted average basis.

(2} The valuarion method of acquisition and use: inventories are recorded by using the standard
costing method when acquiring inventories. The cost of products includes standard costing and
the differences between the standard costing and actual cost.

(3} The mventory system:  the company 15 using the perpemal inventory system.

{4} Provisions lor deduction of the inventories value and methods: the inventory 1s valued at the
lower of s cost or its net realizable value. The inventory cost is higher than its net realizable value

and provision for decline in valve of inventory is credited t current profit and loss.

(%) Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, cost
includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacluring ovetheads based on normal
operating capacity.

{65) Net realizable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary (o make the sale,

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

10




(1] Cotenia of Gxed assets
Fixed assets are the tangible assets in higher unit value. They are defined as the production of
poods, the provision of services and the lease or management used for more than one year.

{2} Measurement of (xed assels

Fixed assets are recorded at cost on acquisition. The acquisition cost includes purchase price,
import taxes, transportation costs, insurance costs and other related costs that are necessary for the
fixed assets being ready for their intended usc.

{3) Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each category of fixed assets over their estimated
useful lives from the month after they arc put into use, using the swaight-line method. The
estimated residual value, uselul ke and annual depreciation rate of each category of Axed assets

are as [ollows:

Annual
Catezory of fixed assets Residual value Useful life  depreciation rate
Elecironic Kquipment 10% 3 vears 18%
ITouses and buildings 104 20hyears 4.5%
Machinery 1% 10-15vears 9%%-0%0
Office furniture 10% 3 years 18%
Lol of production 10%% 5 years 1 5%

(4) Measurement of subsequent expendirures on fixed assets

Subsequent expenditures on fixed assets for major reconstruction, expansion, improvement and
renovation are capitalized as a part of fixed assets cost when it is probable that future economic
benefits in excess of the original assessment of performance will flow to the Company, such as
extension of the useful lives of the fixved assels, substantial improvement of product quality, or
substantial reduction in product cost. Capitalized expenditures arising from major reconsiruction,
expansion and improvemenl are depreciated using the straight-line method over the remaining
useful lives ol the Axed assers. The increased cost of the fixed assets is limited to their recoverable
amount.

Subsequent expenditures on fixed assets except for the aforementioned are expensed as incurred,
Capitalized expenditures arising from the renovation of fixed assers are depreciated on a
reasonable basis over the shorter period of interval between the current renovation to the next and
the expected remaining uselul life of the renovated fixed assets.

{5) Measurement of fixed assels at the balance sheet date and impairment provision

Fixed assels are measured at the lower of carrying amount and recoverable amount at the balance

11




sheet date. When the recoverable amount of fixed assers is lower than the carrying amount, due 1o
[actors such as continuous decline in market price, technological obseolescence, damages or
long-time idleness, impairment provision for fixed assets i1s determined on an item-by-item basis at
the excessive part of the carrving amount over the recoverable amount, For fixed assets that meet
the conditions for full impairment provision, the impairment provision is determined at the full

carrying amount of fixed assets on an item-by-item basis.

Construction in proyress

fConstruction in progress 13 measured at actual cost. The actual cost 15 determined specifically
as follows:

A, Contracted projects under construction are recorded at the sum of construction price,
installation cost, and capitalized interest expense, amortization of premium or discount, and
foreign currency exchange differences that are relating 1o specific borrowings for financing the
construction.

B. Belf-built projects under consoruction are recorded at the sum of construction materials used,
raw materials used and related non-deductible input value-added taxes. goods in stock used and
related taxes and levies, cost of various services provided by the Company’s auxiliary production
departments, and capitalized interest expense, amorlizalion of premivm or discount, and foreign
currency exchange differences that are relating to specific borrowings for financing the
construction.

(2)Constraction in progress s measured at the lower of the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, Impairment provision is made for construction in progress if there exists evidence that the

value of construction in progress has declined,

Borrowing costs

(1) Recognition of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly atmibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalized, The other costs are charged to the Profit & Loss Account.
Borrowing costs include interests, ancillary costs, and foreign currency exchange differences
incurred in connection with borrowing. Dxcepl borrowing costs relating w specific borrowings

obtained for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalized as costs of the fixed

12




assets as certain conditions are mel, other borrowing costs are expensed as {ncurred.

1 2) Capitalization period of borrowing costs

A The capitalization of borrowing costs commences as the following three conditions are met: (a)
the capital expenditures are incwrred; (b) the borrowing costs are mewred;, (¢) the aequisilion or
construction activities have commenced o enable the assets w be ready for their intended wse.

B. The capitalization of borrowing costs should be suspended during the periods when the
acguisiion or constructon achivities are abnormally interrupted and the interruption period is
more than three consecutive months; the borrowing costs are incurred during the period unti] the
acquisition or construction activities are resumed.

C. The capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the assets being acguired or constructed are
ready for their mtended wse. Borrowing costs mewrmed therealter should be recognized as expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

{3) Capitalization amount of borrowing costs

The capitalized borrowing costs for each accounting peniod are determined by using the weighted
average amount of accumulated expenditures incurred in that period for the acquisition or
construction of fxed assels and the capitalization rate of the borrowings. The procedures are in

accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises—Borrowing Cosis,

Enterprise and local income taxes

The Company uses the taxes pavable method to account for the enterprise and local income taxes,
On October 10, 2005, the company obrained the certificate of hizh tech enterprizse, enjoving the

preferential policy of enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

IV. THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) MONETARY FUNDS

31032018 012017
ITEMS
RMB EMB
Cash at Hand 2,317.00 | | (HR.0H)
Cash on Bank 30,370,581.85 37,577 655649
Cithers 2956947990 21,364,052.80
Total 49.960,380.76 58,952, 806,49

13




2) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

314032018 /042007
. . Bad Debu Bad Debu
ITEMS Amount  Proportion . Amount  Proportion .
Provision Provision
RMB e EMB RME % RMD
Within 1 vear  11,766,732.36 10003 = 4012 466,03 10000 =
Total 11,766,732.36 L0 a 402 466.03 10L00 -
Major items of accounts receivable:
Customer names Ending halance Character
Ttangsu Tongguang Communication Co,Lid 6,307 865,43 Payment for goods
Jiangsu Tongguang Crplical Fiber Cable Co.,Ltd 391283747 Payment for goods
SiChuan Tongguang Optical Fiber Cable Co.,Ltd 1,297,707.28 Payment for goods
3) ACCOUNTS PREPAYMENTS
3A032018 010420017
. ) Bad Debt Bad Debt
ITEMS Amount  Proportion o Amount  Proportion o
Provision Provision
RMB %o RMEB EMB Y EMB
Within 1 year |6 339,39 10400 - 4.470,383.82 100,00
1-2vears - -
Total 1,640,389.29 L0000 - 4,470,383.82 100,00

Within the aforesaid balance, there 15 no amount due from sharcholders that hold 5% or more

of the Company’s voting shares.

4) OTHER RECEIVABLLES

314032018 01042017
ITEMS Amount Proportion — P.Eht Amount Proportion = ?Ebf
Provision Provision
RMB S RMB EMB Y EMB
Within1 year SB.515.41 100.00 - 48,720,00 B7.86 -
I-2vears > - - - -
2-3yeary £,730.00 12.14
Total S5K515.41 100, 1 - 55.450.00 100.00 -

Within the aforesaid balance, there 13 no amount due Gom shareholders that hold 5% or more

of the Company's voting shares,

14
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5) INVENTORIES PR
3170372018 014042017
ITEMS
RMEB EMB
FEaw materials 16,583.236.33 P4, 150,042 38
Croods in Transic 1489 746 64 [.738,616.42
Croods in Process 4684783 582 3,607,595.00
Finizshed Goods 218825563 3, 10656018
Packing 44 907 Ot 55,534,885
Stores and Spares 7.401,33732 551385100
Tirtal 32,692,340.43 28,262,209.82
6) FIXED ASSETS
Houses and Electrenic £ Office fur  wol of pr
Machinery Total
ITEMS buildings guipment niture oduction
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Cost
lst  April 2017 I5,656,04601  110835,261.84 L 14519536 388,117.12 O44,389.5%  148.969,509.91
Additions - 721419210 4920423 447179 - 726826512
Disposals - - - - - -
31st  March 2018 35,656,046.01  118,049,453.94 1,194399.50 39298891 044,889.58 1356,237,778.03
Accumulated
Depreciation
lst  April 2017 4092143539 2129468572 45278509 18635590 24533400  27,100,649.29
Add 1.604,706, 76 40480650 15037702 6052726 |68,011.74 9.448.909.78
Less = - - -
3lst March 2018 6,526,232.15  1I8,759,585.62 603,362.31 24688316 41349583 36,549,559.07
Net  book value
st April 2017 30,734,610.62  BO.540,573.12 69241017  200.761.22 69950549  121.868.860.62
3 st March 2018 29,129.813.86 RO.289.86832 50103728 14610575 53139375  [19.G8H,215.96
Ty CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
i 01/04/2017 Additions Amortization  31/03/2018
EMEB RMB EMB RMB
Machinery equipmunt 11,735,917.34 1,393,305.36 1L,735,217.34 1,593,305,360
The fiesl phase of the project
485 470,09 - 483,470.09

i Machinery equipment
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Amortization  31/03/2018

e 01042017 Additions
REMB RMEB RMB RMB
The second phase of the projec
RN . 85455707 . 854,357.07
The thied phise of the project = 116,215,052,55 - 114,215 052 55
‘The fourth phase of the project - 5,884,079.55 - 5.884.070.33
Total 11,735,017.34 125,032,464.62 11,735917.34  125.032.464.62
8) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
- 01/04/2017 Additions Amaortization 311/03/2018
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Land-use right 4,480,397 27 - 101 264.60 4388, 132.67
Sofrware 823162007 DTA64.10 181,465,589 T39.727.28
Tortal 5303.026.34 9756410 282,730,499 5,127,859.95
9) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
—— 31032018 01/04/2017
RMB RMB
State Bank of India ,Shanghai
= 1,141 60564
Branch
China Merchants Bank . 6,917 R08.27
Bank of China . 1,770644.62
Total % 9,830,054.53
10y ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
3032018 01042017
ITEMS Amount Hr.t_u:_@_}_r_:i_t_!_i_; Amount Proportion
EMDB Y RMB ]
Within | vear 31,185,071.38 Q8.3 31,208,531.59 100, 0
1-2 year 18999000 .61 - -
Total 3L,375,0681.38 100.00 31,208,531.50 100,00
Major items of accounts payable:
Cuslomer names Ending balance Character
STERLITE TECHNOQLOGIES LTI LIS,338,304.81] Payment for goods _
Shanghai Phichem material Co.,Ltd 3.217,740.00 Payment for goods

l&




1IN RECEIVED 1IN ADVANCE
317032018 0420017
ITEMS Admount Propofmion Amount Proportion
RMB %o RMB Yo
Within | year B20.194.04 §E_50 54953 76078 1H0.00)
1-2 vear 11,7471 1.41
Total B31,041.05 L. 00 5,953,260.78 100,00
Major items of received in advance:
Fnding balance Character

Customer names

Hunan ShenTong photoelectric technolopies Lid RO7T.R93.89

12) TAXES AND EXPENSES PAYABLE

received in advance for goods

S 310372018 01042017
EMB EME

Individual income tax 124 K24 50 4263117
Land use tax 25006400 20 A1)
Value added tax - 237911519
Property tax 66,029,12 66,029.13
Business income [axes 541764146 4,247.641.36
Ohther T.655.80 292 456,22
Total 564115068 7,087,871.07

13) AMOUNT OTHER ACCRUED PAYABLE

31/03/2018 01/04:2017
ITEMS Amount Propoction Amonnt Proportion
RMB Ya RMEBE Y

Within T year - - 296,330.76 100
Tatal - - 296,330.76 100.00

Within the aforesaid balance, there is no amount due from shareholders that hold 3% or more

of the Company’s voting shares.

14 LONG-TERM LOANS

31032008 01/04/2017
ITEMS
EnB RMB
China Merchants Bank I 3,340,000.00
Total 13,540,000.00 -




15) PAID-IN CAPITAL

3032018
- - . In original
Name of owners In recording curmency
CUTTEOCY i
) RWE
Lsn
Jingsu
Ti
ofgeuany 412500000 25.00 25,960,410,08
C{erl'luﬂ'lﬂﬂtlflll
Coy, Lted.
Sterlite Global
Ventures 1237500000 75,00 TTETEE05 14
[Mauritivg) Led,
Total 16,500,000.00 10000

16) UNDISTRIBUTED PROFIT

01042017
[ origrinal In recomding
CLFTENCY S CUITENCY
LIsD BMEBE

4, 125,000,00 2500 2506041005

1237500000 7500 T1.AY5.605,14

103.836.015.19 16.500.000.00 100.00 10383601519

- 042017 Add Less 31/03/2018
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Lndisteibuted profit 6745042105 129,692,644.77 18.306,273.51  178,845,792.51
Total a7,450,421.05 129,692,644.77 18,306,27331  178,845,792.51
17T OPERATING REVENLUE
o April 2017 to March 2018 April 2016 1o March 2017
RMB EME
Crptical sales 37751823478 302,567, 026,87
Wastage parts sales 1,415.243.66 1,000,765, 74
Total 178,933,478.44 303,567,792.61

18) OPERATION COST
April 2017 o March 2018

Items
EMB
Oprical cost 165,307, 744,45
Total 195307, 744,45

19) SELLING EXPENSES
April 2007 to March 2018

ltems
RMB
Transportation cosls 778,226,538
Advertising costs
Samples 3934837

18

April 2016 to March 2017
RMB
193,093,538.45

193,093,538.45

April 2016 to March 2017

RMB
220.773.67
61000
B03.32




April 2017 to March 2018 April E-L"I] & to March 2017

Items _—
RME EMB
Sales commission 3,326 846,93 362544137
Total 4,109,011.88 1,850,625 36

20) GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

lems April 20170 March 2018 April 2006 to March 2017
T RMB RMB
Tatal 28.906,764.27 19,668,526.47
Main: Research cost [ 5,065,000, 70 9 4xd 00321
Wape 2.850,219.47 2.709,309.47
Wellare 173050814 1,282 964994
Social security costs LLETT.8405.00 1.153,800.4]
Local Transportation THLN02.%] SEE,097.50
21) FINANCIAL EXPENSE
" April 2007 to March 2018 Apnl 2006 to March 2017
EMB EMB
Intcrest income -527.815.00 -785,933.58
Exchange gain or loss 1 99,079.06 166183549
Service charge 449.415.66 382.115.51
Interest expenditure 326.579.60 397.502.18
Discount interest - (5,035.54
Total 47,259.26 1,724,858.44

22) NON-OPERATING INCOME

April 2017 to March 2018 Apnl 200 eter March 2017
st RMBE RMB
Subsidy income 2.555.000.00 A06,205.00
Procurement incentive A16, 22000
Other income 2,780.11 28123881
Tatal 2,557;;Hu.l 1 1,43,851.81

23) NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURE
April 2017 to March 2018

April 2016 1o March 2017

[tems =

EME RMB
Other expenditure A1 9TE 45 0,434,92
Taotal 40,978.95 60,434.92
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24) INCOME TAX

liems

Currenl income Lax
Defemred income tax

Toral

April 2017 to March 2018

RME
22,133.494.97

22,133,494.97

April 2016 to March 2017
RMB
12.104,127.61

12,104,127.61

V.RELATED PARTIES

1. Related party relationship where control exisis

Mame Registered address
Sterlite Global Ventures {Maurtius) T.td ".T\-"[auritius:
Tangsu Tongpuang Communication Co. Lid, China
Sterlite Technologies Limited($T1.) India

Relationship with the Company
Investor
lnvvestor

Ultimaie holder

2. Eguly of the related parties with effective conirol attnbutable o the Company and changes

goes o Note [V.15)

3. Relative party transaclion

1.1 Purchase

Lnterprise name

Sterlite Technologies
Limited{STL)

3.2 Accepl service

Enterprise name

April 2017 1o March 2018

H2,144.544 91

April 2017 o March 2018

April 2016 to March 20007

128,357.623.01

Apnl 2016 o March 2017

Sterhite (Shanghai) Trading
Co.Lid

33 Sales

Enterprise name

Jiangsu Tongguang
Communication Co. Ltd
Sterlite (Shanghai) Trading
Co.,Lid

3,592,576.76

April 2017 to March 2018

166,269,573.60

14,418, 156,55

20

April 2016 to March 2017

125,701,300.59




VI. CONTINGENCIES K, 5% g

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has no material contingencies that need to be disclosed.

VI. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Ag at the approval date of the issue of the financial siatements, the Company has no significant

events occutring afler the balance sheet dale that need o be discloscd.

¥ % FTHEEND* +
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LB BRRERKIESITTFITFESFAHAR S
SHANGHAI HDDY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CO.,LTD.
CPA bk . bR L [ hEgeR1 6t BEHE - 200002 HEE . 3301127748 {EE . 63567207

Independent Auditors’ Report

HUHONGKUAISHIBAOZI (2018 NO.HFD-d0237
To the Board of directors:

1. Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements of STERLITE (SHANGHAI) TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
(the "Company’).which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changas in owners' equity and statement of cash flows for the
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In aur opinion, the accompanying financial staterments present faidy, in all material respects the
financial position of lhe Company as of March 31, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Chinese Enterprise Accounting Standards and

Enterprise Accounting Principles.
2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Chinese Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements secticn of our report, We are independent cf
the Company in accordance with Chinese Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Chinese Enterprise Accounting Standards and Enterprise Accounting Principles, and
for devising, implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
ta cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

4. Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

COur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
thal an audit conducted in accordance with Chinese Certified Public Accountants Standards of
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or effer and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the eccnomic decisions of users taken into on the basis of these financial
statements.

<SSR



As part of an audit in accordance with Chinese Certified Public Accountants Standards of Auditing, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order fo design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinicn on the effectivenass of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimales and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the gaing concern basis of accounting
and, based cn the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt en the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If wa conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained
up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to cantinue as a going concerm,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evants in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

My

Certified Public Accountant | _ T"-:;;;,

| S
Certified Public Accountant | ., [5]
iﬁr‘f .:;i

April 8, 2018 IS
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Sterlite (Shanghat) Trading Company Limired
The tootnote of the financiil stelements
Audit Report March 31, 2018

I. Company profile

Sterlite (Shanghai) Trading Company Limited(the ‘“company” Jas a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise ,was established on May 282015 invested by STERLTE TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED .Obtaining the business license of the legal entity which Neo 91310000328521792L.The
registered capital is RMBS5,000,000.00 and the operation period is 30 years.

The business scope is wholesaling electronic products and components, optical fiber, metal materials
and products {except precious metals, steel, aluminum oxide).The company provides the commission
agency (excluding auction),importing and exporting agency. And the company alsc provides the
related after-sales service, technical advisory services and other supporting business (Not related to
the state-run trade management, involving quota and license administration of goods, shall be dealt
with in accordance with the relevant provisions of the state to apply),(The business which is related to
admitted business do business in accordance with the admitted license).

Il. Basis for financial statements

The company's accounting statements are issued based the historical cost and on an accrual basis for
accounting principlas,

Ill. Address for enterprise Accounting System

The Company implement the Enterprise Accounting Principles and “Accounting System for
Enterprises”, the preparation of financial statements in line with the Accounting Standard for
Enterprises and "Enterprise Accounting System,” and reflecting the financial position, operating
results and cash flow information.

V. Important accounting policies

1 Accounting system

The company implements Enterprise Accounting Standards and Accounting Systern,

2  Reporting period

The Company has adopted year from Agril 1 to in the prior year to March 31 in the current year as its
accounting year.

3  Basis of accounting and cost model

The company adopts accrual basis of accounting and historical cost model.

4  Bookkeeping base currency & foreign currency translation

The recarding currency of the company is RMB. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies

- it A
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Sterhte {Shﬂnghajjl Tmcﬁng Cm:l]mny Limited
The footnote of the Mnancial statements
Audit Report March 31, 2008

‘currencies other than the recording currency) are translated into RMB at the exchange rates of the
transaction date quoted by the People’ s Bank of China, Foreign currency-denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
balance sheet, Foreign exchange differences deriving from these currency translations were booked
into “long-term deferred expenses — organization costs” in the preliminary period and the athers
as "financial expenses — exchange gains and losses”  in current period.

5 Standard of cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent those investments with short duration period, high fluidity and low risk in
fair value change but can be easily convertible to cash with already known amount.

Cash and cash equivelents of this company include: cash in hands, cash in bank, cther monetary
assets and the short-term investments due within three months.

6 Short term Investment accounting method
The company's short-term investments are mainly Equity investment and debt investments with

historical cost accounting method which is also applicable to sales of investment.
The lower of cost or market valuation method will be applicable to cost of ending periad of the
investment.

7  Bad debts accounting method

The bad debt lasses of the company will adopt "allowance methed” for accounting and will be
proportioned based on the recoverability of the balance of the receivable account at year end. The
company will conduct specific analysis to the receivable accounts for drawing bad debts pravisions of
the receivable account according to previous experiences, financial position and flow of the debtar as
well as other informaticn concerned.

a) Under the circumstance that the debtor dies, the receivable is qualified as not collectable as the
debtor does not transfer the debt;

b) Under the circumstance that debtor does not fulfill its obligation over a period of 3 years with
evidence that money still could not be received.

B Inventory

The inventary is mainly comprised raw materials, semi products, self-produced semi products,
finished goods and low value consumables

The inventories is calculated on actual cost

The weight average methodology is applied to daily inventories movement

The ending inventory will be computed based on the lower pricing between cost and net realized
value, when the net realized value is lower the cost, the inventory provisions for the impairment loss
will be recognized based on the difference

F)
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Sterhite (Shanghai) Trading Company Limuted
The foomote of the financia] statements
Audit Report March 31, 2018

9  Fixed assets & depreciation

Fixed assets are referring te a long-term tangible property that a firm owns and uses in the
production of its qoods, service provision, lease and operation management and is not expected to
be consumed or corverted into cash any sooner than at least one year's time.

The fixed assets will be measured at historical cost and the depreciation will be accounted by linear
method by categories

Annual depreciation  Met residual value

Category of fixed assets Economic use limit

rate rate

Electronic equipments etc. 3 years 30% 10%

10 Fixed assets provision for impairment losses

Where the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount (book net value) based on

individual item, the difference should be recognized as provision for impairment loss on fixed assets

in the following circumstances:

a) Fixed assets that are not in use for a long time and won' t be used in the excepted future, as
well as without transfer value

b) Fixed assets that can’ t be used any more due ta technology advance

¢} Fixed assets that can be used but lead to production with inferior quality

d) Fixed assets with no more use value and transfer value after damage

e) Other fixed assets that 're literally unable tc bring economic interests to the enterprises

For those fixed assets that are already accrued for provision for impairment loss in full amount, the
provision of depreciation doesn' t zpply any mare.

11 Long term prepaid and deferred expense

Cccurred during the start-up organization: In addition to purchase of fixed assets, all the other
expense occurred in organization period will be accounted into “Long term prepaid and deferred
expense” firstly which will be accounted it as expense dated from production and operations period.
Gther long-term prepaid expenses will be amortized in benefit period averagely according to the
actual amount of accounting.

12 Sales revenue

Goods sales can be recognized under following conditions:

a] The main risks and rewards of the ownership of goods has been transferred to the buyer;

b] It will not be retained management associated with ownership of the right usually and ne control
for the goods sold;

¢) Economic benefits for the transactions refated will inflow into the company;

d) Revenues and costs related to reliable measurement,

3
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Sterlire (Shanghai) Trading Company Limired
The footete of the financial statcments
Audit Report March 31, 2018

Services sales can be recognized under the following conditions:

a) Total revenue and total cost can be measured reliably;

b} Ecoenomic benefits for the transactions related will inflow into company;
¢} Invoice issued or with the evidence of recognition of income

13 Corporate Income Tax

The company adopts tax payable method for the calculation of corporate income tax

14 Tax ite_m_

Tax category | Tax rate Tax base
Value added tax 5%, 179% Service revenue Goods sold
Corporale income tax 25% Taxable profit

V. Explanation for the change of accounting policy and evaluation & the correction of previous

Errors

NOME

VIi. Notes the financial statements of the main items

In addition to special description in the following currencies stated are RMB

1.Cash and cash equivalents

Item 2018.3.31 2017.3.31
Cash 0.00 0.00
Cash in bank ' 140,925 52 710,907.20
Other cash equivalency 850,000,00 0.00
Grand total 890 225 52 710,807.20
2, Accounts receivables
2018.3.31 2017.3.31
Aging Accounts y Accounts %
receivables - , receivables
In 1 year 276,561.74 100.00% 29617 43 A00.00%
Grand total 278,561.74 100,00% J29617 43 100.00%
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Sterlite (Shanghaiy Trading Compzny Limited
The foutnote af the Mnancial stalements

Audit Report March 31, 2018

J.Advances to supplier
2018.3.31 2017.3.31
Aging Advances to %, Advances to y,
supplier ' supplier
In 1 year 93 929.96 100.00% 0.00
Grand total 53,529 96 100.00% 0.00
4.0ther accounts receivables
2018.3.31 2017.3.31
Aging " Other accounts i Other accounts ”
receivables receivables
In1year 183,150.00 100.00% 224 150.00 100,008
Grand total 183,150.00 100.00% 224 1580.00 100.00%
5.Fixed assets
Item 2017.3.31 Addition Disposal 2018.3.31
Criginal cost 30,241 .45 30,241.45
Office equipment 30,241.45 30,241 .45
Accumulated depreciation 8,700.23 §,046.42 18,746.65
Office equipment 89.700,23 9,046.42 18, 746,65
Met value 20,541 22 -9.046.42 11,4%4.80
Office equipment 20,641.22 -8.046.42 11,434.80
6.Accrued wages and welfare
= 2018331 2017331
Accrued wages 5mlmﬂm 0.00
Grand total 500 000,00 0.00
7. Taxes and charges payable
Item 2098.3.31 2017.3.3
Value added tax 79,990,189 2837367
City conslruction tax 1.890.03 I,QEB.TE_
Addrional 1ax of education 135001 141868
Channel charge 0.00 283 74
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Stethite (Shanghai) Trading Company Limited
The footnote of the fAnancial statements

Audit Report March 31, 2018

Item 2018.3.31 2017331
Grand fotal £3,230.23 32.062.25
8.Paid-in capital
Increase | Decrease
Mame of Sharcholder 2017.3.1 of current | of cument 2018.3.31 Ferceniage %
year yaar
STERLITE &
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 148667240 1 486 672.40 100.00%
Grand total 1,485 67240 1,486 672.40 100.00%

The company received $226,875.90 capital contribution from STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED,
according to the current rate of 100:655.28, is equivalent tc RIMB 1,486,672.40,

8. Retained Earnings

Iterm 2018.3.31 2017.3.31
Cpening balance of Retained Eamings -233,518.80 722754749
Add:Net profit for the current year =274 321.87 | 483,235.83
nd -507,840.61 -233,518.80

Closing balance of Undistributed profit

10.Total operation revenue

item

Amount of current year

Revenue from main operations

23,578,687 .37

Amount of last year

10,308 157.57

Revenue from other operations

11.Total operation cost

item Amount of current year Amount of last year
Dperation cost 17,283,802. M1 3.821,818.31
Operation {ax and surcharge 42,722,683 45,839.85
Operating  expenses 7.26677
General and administration expense 6,516,663.4% 5,956,827.12
Financial expensas -7, 582,35 -E,5I34.2e1_ .I
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stecliee (Shanghai) Trading Company Limited
The foomote of the Eoancial starements
Audit Report March 21, 2018

12. Mon-operating income & expenses

Item Amount of current year Amount of last year
Mon-operating income 0.08 oM
Mon-operating expenses 52.01 0.05

Vil.Subsequent events

NONE

STERLITE (SHANGHAI) TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
April &, 2018

|
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STERLITE TECHMNOLOGIES UK VEMTURES LTD

Report of the Directors,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The directars present their report with the fnancial statements of te company for the year ended 31 March 2008,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The priscipal activity of the company in the year under review was thal ol an investeent compuy.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
The Compony has invested £2,009 %03 in Sterlite Conduspar Industrial LTDA, a 8% Joial Venture in Bruzil. The Brailian
company is a manfiecturer and trader af Optical Fibre Cables

MRECTORS
The dircciors shown below have bell affice dering the whole of the period from | Apeii 2017 to the date of this report.

A Aparwal
[ Ho

MERECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The disertors are respomsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the fimmeial statements i accordance with applicable  law
and reaulations,

Compuny law requires the disectors o prepare financia] stutements for cach financiot yoar. Under that Jaw the directors have clected
o prepare the financial statements in sccordance with United Kingdom Generally Avcepted Accounting Practice (Unitzd Kingdom
Accounting Stendoerds and applicable law). Under campary law the directors must not approve fhe finaneial staicroents unless  thay
are satisfied that they pive o true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company md of the profit or loss af the company [or that
perice, o preparing these finneial statements, the dircctons ang requined fo:

- select suitabie acoounling policics and then appdy them consistently;
- make judpements and accounting estimates thit are reasonable ard prudent,

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate svcounting records [hal are sufficient o show and scplein the company's
wransaetions and discinse with reasonable scouracy al any fime the financial position of e company and enalile them o ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the company
anl hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and deteetion of fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO ISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So fur us he dircctors are avare, there Is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Campanics Act 2006) of
which the compuny's auditors are unaware, end each dircetr hus laken all the sbeps hat be ought Lo have taken w A director in orer
o make himsell aware of any relevant audil information and to establish that the company’s suditors are aware o hal information.

AUDITORS
Thse auditors, Buther & Co LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

This report hias been prepured in sccordance willi the provisions al Purl 13 of the Compunies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
w3

b ,‘fﬂ@f”&

A Agarwal - Director

Pape 2



Report_of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Sterlite Technologies UK Ventures Lid

(pininn

We Duve gudited the fnancial statements of Storfiee Technologies UK Wenturcs Lid (the ‘company’) for the pear  endod
31 March 2018 which comprize the Ineome Stetement, Dalance Sheet and Motes o the Financial Statcments, including a sumemary ol
significant accounting palicies. The fAnancisl reporting famewerk that has been applicd in their preparalion is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporling Standard 102 The Ficancial Keporting Standavd applieable in
the UK and Republic of Lreland! (United Kingdoim Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This repart s inade salely to the company's members, as a body, in aceordance with Chapter 3 of Parl 16 of e Clompanies Act 20046,
Chur audit work has heen underdaken so (hat we might state Lo the company’s members hose matters we e required B smte (o them
in a Reporl of the Auditors and for no ofber purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not aceepl or  wssume
responsibility to anyone other then the company and the compuny's members a5 a body, for our sudit work, for this report, o for the
apinions we have fonmed,

In cur opinion the finenciel statements:

- pive o true and fair view of the stale of the company's affairs az ot 31 March 2018 and of its loss for the year then ended;
«  hove been properly prepared i sccordanee with United Kingdom Generully Aeeepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accardance with the requirenents of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in sceordanee with Infemational Stondards on Awditing (UK) (15As {UE)) and applicable law.  Chae
responsibilitics wnder those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
seetion of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our aodit
wf (e [nancial statcments in the UK, inciuding the FRC's Tthical Standard, and we hive fulfifled our other ethical responsibilities in
secordance with these requirements. We believe thar the sudit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinit

Conelusions relating fo going concern

We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters in relation fo which the 13As (LK) require us 1o report to you where:

- the ditectors’ use of the poing concem basis of sccounting in the preparation of the financial swtements is not appropriale; or
the directors have nel diselosed o the finaneis! statements any identified meterizl yacertaintics that may cast significant doubl
about the company's ability o continug 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting for & pericd of #f least twelve months from
the date when (he Goanc iad statements ave anthorised [or issue,

Other information
The directors zre responsible {or the other information. The other information comprises the infermalion in the Hepori of e
Direetors, but does not inchude the financial statesments and our Report of the Auditors thereon,

Chur opinion on the finsncial statements dogs not cover th other information and we do not express any form of assurance  conclusion
thereon,

In connection with our swdit of the financial satements, ou responsibility is to rend e wther informadion and, in doing 50, eonsiler
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit o
otherwize appears to be materially missteted. 1f, hased on (he work we hove performed. we conclude hat there is a. marncrial
misstalement of this other information, we are requived to report that faet. We have nothing to report in this regaed.

Opinion on otfier matters preseribed by fhe Companies Acl 2006

Fin our opinion, based v the work undertaken in the course of dhe audit:

- fhe information given i the Report of the Directors for the linancial year for which the finaneisl stalements are prepaed  is
eonsistent with the Rnencial statements, snd

- i Report of the Directors has been prepared in accardance with applicable legal reguirements.

Matters on which we are requived to report by excepiion
In the Fght of e knowledge snd understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audil, we bave noi
identified matceial misstalements in the Roport of the Direclors.

We live nothing to repar! in respeet of the following matters where the Companies Act 20006 requives us to repert to you if, in our

Dpinian:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or seturns adeguate for our zudit have ot been received from branches not
wisited hy ws; or

- the financial setements gee oot i agreement with the necounting records and returns; or

- cerain discloswes ol directors’ remuneration specified by faw are nol mads; o
we have not received abl the information aed explanations we reguin: for oy aodit;, or

- the direcloss were not entitled (o prepare the financial slalements in accordance with the small companics regime and ke
advantage of the small companies’ exemption from (he requirement to prepars a Strategic Reporl or in preparing the Repurd of the
Direckors.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Sterlite Technologies UK Ventures Lid

Responsibilitics of direclors

As explained more Golly in the Direciors' Responsivililies Statement sed oul on page two, the direelors are responsible for e
preparation of the financil statements and for being satisfied that they give a trus and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine necessary to enahle the preparation of finencial statements that are ree from material misstatement, whether due
Lo fromd of eorar,

Iy preparing sthe financinl stmements, the directors are roaponsible [of assessing the company's ability to continue a5 o poing  concem,
disclosing, #s applicable, matters related to going concem and using the guing concem basis of accounling unless the direclors either
intend o liguidate the company or o cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but fo do s

Crur responsitilitics for the audit of the financial statemonts

Our ahjeclives are to oblain roasonshle assurance about whetber the financial statements as o whole are fiee fvn material
misstaterncat, wheller due to frand or ervor, and to issue o Repoat of the Auditors that includes our opininn. Reasonable assurance s
g high level of sssurance, but is not 4 gusrastee dhat an mudit conducled in aceordance with [SAs (UK} witl abways detect u material
nisslatarmnent whin it exists. Missialements can arise o frawd or ervor and are considered material if, individoally or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied lo mlluesce the cconomic decisins of msers tuken on the basis of these fnencial
staternents.

A further description of our responsildlities for the audit of the financial statements is focated on the Financinl Reporting Council's
webaite at www fre.org ulkiouditersresponsibifities, This description forms parl of our Report of the Auditors.

Sanjeev Phadke (Senior Statuory Auwditor)
For aecl on beball of Buller & Co LTE
Chartered Accounlants

& Slululery Awdito

Third Floor

1246- 134 Baker Straet

London

:tu ?ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁl&’
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES UK VENTURES LTD

Income Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

TURNOVER
Acddmini stralive expenses

OPERATIMNG LOSS

[mtzrost piy able and similar expenses
1.OSS BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on boss

LS55 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Maoles

2018
i

1,088

{1,184}

26,387

(27.775)

(27.773)

The notes form part of these financial statermunts

2017

3.350

{3,350

25,746

{29,094

(29,046)
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES UK VENTURES LTD (REGISTERED NUMBER: 08550019)

Mates
FIXED ASSETS
lovestments 3

CURRENT ASSETS
Casl at bank

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one yeu q

NET CURRENT ASSETSALIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Aumnounts Talling due alter more than one yeor 3

NET LIABILITIES
CAPFITAL AND RESERVES
Called wp share capitul
Fetnined eamings

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Balance Sheet
31 MARCE 2018
MR
£ £
2,009,503
1,963
1.965
2,011,863
1116167
C104,29%)
3.150
{147 449

{104,299

2007
£ £

197020

i4,735)
1,966,291
2,042,815

(76,5324)

3,150
(79,674)

{To,524)

The financial stetsments have been prepared in acenedance with the provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Ack 2000 relating to

small companies,

The Tnamciel stetements were sulhorised ot issue by the Boand of Direetors on

behalf by:

<

S

;ﬂ. Agarwal - Direeior

The notes form part of these financial statements

ﬂﬁjuﬂf—ﬂﬂ.’ﬁ and were signed of it8
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STERLITE TECHNQLOGIES UK VENTURES LTD

Maotes to the Finaneial Statements
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Steglite Technulogias UK Ventures Lid is o private company, limited by shores, repistered in England und Wales. The
compuny's registercd number and registered office nddress can be found on the Company Information page.

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

These finuncial statements have heen prepared in accerdance with the provisions of Section 1A "Small Entities” of Finuucial
Reporing Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard appliceble in the LK and Republic of Trelend” and  the
Companics Aol 2006, The finaneiat statements have been prepared under the historcal cost comvention,

Investments in subzidiaries
Ivvestments in subsidiary nndertakings ane recognised at cost.

Taxalion
Taxation for the year comprises eument and deferred twe. Tux 15 recognised in the Income Statement, except 1o the extent  {hut
il relules Lo items reeogrised in olber comprehensive income o directly in equity,

Current or delered taxation assels and liabilites are not discounted.

Current fax is recognised at the amount of tax payable using the tax rates and faws ut ave heen enacled or  Zubstantively
cnacted by the balance sheet date.

Deeferred tax
Diferred tax is seeognised in respect of all timing differences dial have originated but not reversed at the balance shect date.

Timing differences arisc from the inclusion of inceme und exponses in lax gssessments m periods differend from these in
which they are recngnised in financial statements, Delerred fax is measured nsing tax rales and aws that have been  cnpcled
or substantively enscted by the yeer end and that are expected 1o apply to the roversal ot the firving difference,

Unrelicved lax losses and other deferred fax pssets e recogiised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be
yecoversd apainst the reversul of defiorred tay lahilities or other fubre xable pratids,

Going concern:

The financial stotements beve been prepared on o going concern busis. The parent compuny will provide the  neccssary
support 10 maintein the company a5 @ going concern, The fmmcial statements do ol inclede the adjustments that wouhl
result iF the company was unable Lo continue 03 8 going concern,

3 FINED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Shares
gToup
underlakings
£

COST
At April 2017 1,971,026
Addilions 38877
At 31 March 20018 2,008,903
NET BOOK VALLE
A1 31 March 2018 2,009,903
At 31 Mareh 2007 1,971,024

The shave invesiment represents a 58% holding in Sterlite Conduspar Tndustcist LTEMA, 2 comnpuaity ineorporated i Brazil,

Thess financial statements contain information about Sterlite Technologies UK Ventures Lid as an individual company anil
di not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group, The company is cxempt under section 401 of the
Companies Act 20006 a5 the company itzelf s # subsidivry undertaking und it parent umdertaking 35 not established under the
Law of an EEA state, The company is included in consolidated aceounts of its parent coimpany.

Pape 7 cotinned. .



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES UK YENTURES LTD

Nutes 1o the Financial Statements - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIL 2018

4, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
M8 2017
£ £
Other creditors - 6,700
&3 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
2018 2017
£ L
Amsounls owed o group onderakings 2.116,167 1042815

The purent company has provided a line al cradit of § 3,500,000, As at the vear cnil s of £2,116,167 (2017: £2.042 813)
has been drewn, Luterest is payuble in quarterly instalinents at the rale of 0,75%,

The amount drawn is repayable on demand, However, the lender has confirmed that the amount outstanding will not e
recafled within the mexé 12 months,

i, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As &t 31 March 2018 the compony owed & sum of £2,116,167 (2017; [2,042815) Lo Starlite Technologies Lid {ihe ultimate
paceit company ). Interest payable an this loan was £ 587 (2017 £25,746),

Pape &



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES UK VENTURES LTD

Detailed Profit and Less Account

THE YEAR EN MARCII 2018
2018
£ E
Incmmne -
Ixpenditure
Legal and Professional fees 185
Aarlitors' remwneration 1,000
o — |, 158
(1,18%)
Finance cosls
Oither interesi 26,587
NET LOSS (27,773)

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

2067

1,350
2,000

3,350

(3,350

23,744

(29,096)

Page 9
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Financial Statements for FY 2017-18



STERLITE CONDUSPAR INDUSTRIAL LTOA

L=
¥, Conduspar CNPJINF: 17 519, 305000122 e N
R et ey BALANCETE DE VERIFICAGAD Sterilite
EMCERRADO EM 11 DE DEZEMERO DE 2017
TWEIOTEE BXOrBE50E Bm MITaIES 48 [SES - RG]
ATNWG PASEND E PATRINONIO LIQUIDD
ATIVO CIRCULANTE FPASSNVO CIRCULANTE
DISPONIVEL EXIGIVEL A CURTO PRAZO
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COSTAS TSIELEPIS & CO

AUDIT | TAX | ADVISORY

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Sterlite Technologies Europe Ventures Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemants

Qualified Opinion

Ve have audited the financial slatements of Sterlita Technologies Furope Ventures Limited (the "Company™), wiidh
are: presented in pages 5 to 12 and comprise the statement of financial posiliar as at 31 March 2018 and the
Statements of profit or [253 and other camprehensive income, changes in-equity and cash flows for the pericd Trom 1
Aprll 2017 to 31 March 2018, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
palizics.

In our opinion, except for the offects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our reparl,
the accompanying financial slelemenss give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and of its finangial performance and Its cash Jows for the period from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2018 in
accordance with International Finandal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eu-opean Union and the
requirerrents of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Even though the bank balance have been agreed o bank stataments, it was not made possible Fowever [ obiain
bank confirmation reply from the Company's scle bank and as such we have niot een able to assess completaness

of bank balances,

We conclcted our audit in accordance with International Stardards on Auditing (1548). Dur respongibilities undar
those standatds are furlher described in the Audior's Respansiblities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
seclion of our rzport. We are indepandent of the Company in azeordaitce with the intemational Ethics Slandards
Board for Accountznts' Code of Ethics for Profossianal Accountantts {IESEA Code) together with tho ethical
requirements that are relovant to our audit of the financial slatements in Cyprus, and we have fulfilled aur other
ethical rospensibilities In accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code, We believa that the audt
ev dence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate 1o orovide a basis for aur qualified opinian.

Emphasis of Matter

We drow aftention to nota 2 of the financial slatements where It i indicated that the firancial statements have not
been prepared ol a going concern basis since il is the intenfion of *he Members to liguidate: the Cormpany as sonn
as arrangaments car be made, Dur opinian is not qual fisd in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Board of Directors is sesponsible for the ofrer infarmstion, The othar information comprises the additons
information to the statzrmant of profit or less and othar comprehensive income in pages 13 1o 15, but doos nat
inchicle the financial statements and ou- auditors repon theraarn,

Cur apinien on the financlal sta’ements does not cover tha ather informasion and we do not sxpress any forn of
assurance conclusior thereon.

In connection with cur audil of the finzncial statemeonts, our responsibility is to read the othor information and, in
daing so, consider whether the other information is matarially inconsistent with the financial statements or aur
knowladge cbtained in the audit o utheiwise appears to be materially misstaled. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmafion, we are required fo report that
fact. We hava nothing to repart in this regard.

Caostas Tsielzpis & Co Ltd
20, HElh Ocrober Str, Loulowsis Cou'l, 15t Flosr 3035 Limassce, Cyprus | PO Box 51637, 2507 Limasscl, Cyprus
T 1367 2EBF1000 | F, +357 253/9737 | E: infotbcs clopis.comaey wwaisisleoiz.comacy

- Z
Regizration Mo, HET9250 | Lzense:) Statotcny Auditers, ICPAT Curtificata Mo, Eia5/n,
Georga Talelepis, N5, FCA, Alenis Tslalepls, B5:, FCA, Antanis Christodeudldas, 45, FOCA, Costas Constantinou
Mizalas Popapanayiotou, 135c, 04, FOCA



Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

To the Members of Sterlite Technologies Europe Ventures Limited

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors ja responsible for the preparation of financial statements that glve a true and fair view in
areordance with Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap, 113, and for such intemal control as the Board of Directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matedal misstatement,

whether due to fraud or emor,

In preparing the financial staternents, the Beard of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ahility to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going
concern basie of accounting unless the Board of Directors either Intends to liquidale the Company of o cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative bul ta 4o so,

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohiectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
naterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or errof, and to issus an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reascnable assurance is a high lavel of assurance, but is not a guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs will atways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in {he aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influsnce tha
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainkain professional skepticism
throughaout the audit. We also:

. Tdentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or
errof, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and cbtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and approptiate to provide & basls for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve
callusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal contral,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and relaterd disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to confinue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertalnty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report o the
related disdosures in the financial statements of, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to maodify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtmined up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a golng concern.

. Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemients represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves a true and fair view,

We cormmunicato with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Ta the Members of Sterlite Technologies Europe Ventures Limited

Other Matter

This report, including the opinlon, has besp Erepared for and orly for the Company's members as 3 body in
accordance with Section 63 of the Auditors Law of 2017 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assuple responsibility for any other purpose or to any othor person to whese knowledge this repart ety

Antanis Chilstodoulides

Certiffed Public Accountant and Registered Auditor

for and on aehalf of

Costas Tsielepis & Cao Lid

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

Limassal, 5 April 2018



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Petiod from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

01/04/2017- 01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/03/2017
€

MNote €
Administration expenses {B93) {1,115
Operating loss 4 [8D3) {1.11%
Finanoe costs 5 {19} {15
{Loss) before tax (912) (1.134)
Tax & s it
Met loss for the period {912} §1.134)

Other comprehensive incomne -
912 (1.134)

Total comprehensive axpense for the year

The nates on pages 9 to 12 form an integral part of these financlal statements.
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 March 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Recejvables
Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Shara capital

Share premiurm
Accumulaled Josses

Tolal equity

Current liabilities
Trade and other payablos

Total equity and liahilities

Cn 5 April 2018 the Board of Cirectors of Sterlite Technolo

statoments for issua.

Cireclor

Mote

e L |

10

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

€ €
6.037 7.822
2,474 2,436
8.511 10.318
8.511 10.314
2.000 2.000
13.000 13.000
(6.489) (5.577)
8.511 9,423
- % 845
- EQ_E.‘
8.511 10.318

les Europe Ventures Limited authorised theszfinemeial

The notes on pages 9 L 12 form an ntegral part of these financal statements.

=
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Share Share Accumulated

capital premium losses Total

c c € €

Balance at 1 April 2016 2.000 13.000 (4.443) 10.557
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - (1.134) (1.1234)
Balance at 21 March 2016/ 1 April 201.6 2.000 13.000 (5.577) 0,423
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - (B12) {912}
Balance at 31 March 2018 2.000 13.000 {6.489) 8511

Companies which do not distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the relevant tax law, within two years
after the and of the relavant tax year, will be desmed to have distrlbuted as dividends 70% of these profits. Special
contribution for defence at 17% will be payable on such deemed dividends to the extent that the ultimate
shareholders are both Cyprus tax resident and Cyprus demiciled. The amount of deemed distribution Is raducad by
any actual dividends paid out of the profits of the relevant year at any time. This special contribution for defence is

payable by the Company for the account of the shareholders,

The notes on pages 9 ta 12 form an integral part of these finandial statements.

¥



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

D1/04/2017- (01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/0372017
€

MNote £
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax {913 (1134}

{912) (1.134)

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increaso) in recelvables 1.785 (7.822)
Decrease in trade and other payables {895) {104)
Cash used in operations (22} {5.062)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES o - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans from related companies e -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (22} {9.062)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the pericd 2.496 14.558
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pericd 8 474 2408

The: notes on pages 9 ta 12 form an integral part of these finarcial statements,
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

1. Incorporation and principal activities

Country of incorporation

The Company Sterlite Technologies Europe Ventures Limited (the "Cormpany”] was Incorporated in Gyprus on 23
June 2011 as a private limited fiability company under the provisions of the Cyprus Gompanies Law, Cap. 112. ls
registered office is at 221 Chiistodoulou Chatzipaviou, Helios Court, 1st flour, 3036, Limassal, Cyprus,

Princlpal activity

The Company did not carry out any operations during the year.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policizs have been consistently applied to all years presented n these financlal statements unkess othenvise slated,

Going concern basis

The financlal statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis since it is e intention of the members
to liguidate the Company as soon as arrangements can be made.

Basis of preparation

Thae financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internatienal Finanalal Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and the requirernents of the Cyprus Companies Law, Gap.113.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

During the current vear the Company adopted all the new and revisod International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) thal are relevant to its operations and are effective for accounting periods beglnning on 1 Jannuary 2017.
This adoption did not have a material effect en the accounting palicies of the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, standards and interpretations wete issued by the Intermational
Accounting Standards Board which wers not yet effective. Some of them ware adopted by the European Union and
ofhers not yst, The Board of Directors expects that the adoption of these accounting standards in future periods will
not have a material effact on the financial statements of the Company.

Finance costs

Inferest expense and other borrowing costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred,

Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Ttems included In the Company's financlal statements are measured using the currency of the primary

economlc environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial staterments are
presented In Euro (€), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(2) Transactions and balances
Forcign currency transactions are translated Into the functional currency using the exchanga rates prevailing

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
fransactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary assets and iabilities
denominated in forelgn currencies are recognised in profit or loss.




STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Tax

Current tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amaount eXpectad 1o be paid {o or recovered from the taxation
autherities, using the tax rates and laws that have bean enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting dafe.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's statement of financial positicn when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumen,

sh & st equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow staternent, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at hank.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The difference between the fair vaiue of the consideration recoived by tho
Company and the nominal value of the share ca pital being issued is taken fo the shara premium account.,

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRSs raquires the use of cerain critical avcounting
estimates and requires Management to exercise its judgment in the procass of applying the Company's accounting
policies. It alzo requires the use of assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liahbilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabiliies at the date of the financial stataments and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these esfimates are based on Management's bosi
knowledge of current everts and actions, actual resulis may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectaffons of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Jeedgerents

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabiities within the next financial vear are discussed below:

- Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination Is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Company recognises liabilities for antic pated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outrome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made,

4. Operating loss

01/04/2017- (01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/03/2017
£ )

Operating loss is stated after charging the following teme:
Auditors' remuneration 893 833
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

B. Finance costs

01/04/2017- 01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/03/2017
€

15
15

Bank charges

E‘Em

6. Tax

The tax on the Company's results before tax differs from thearetical amount that would arise using the applicable Gax
rates as follows:

01/04/2017-  01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/03/2017
€

€
{Loss) before tax {912} {1.134)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates (114} (142}
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 23 -
Tax effect of tax loss for the period o1 142
Tax charge - .

The corporation tax rate is 12,5%.
Due to tax losses sustained in the period, no tax liability anises on the Company. Under current legislation, tax
Insees may be carried forward and be set off against taxable income of the five succeading years, As at 31 March

2048, the balance of tax losses which is availzble for offset against future taxable profits amounts to €16 .488 for
which no deferrod tax asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

7. Receivables
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
e

£
Sharehalders’ current accounts - debit balances (Note 11.1) ' 6.037 7.822
6.037 7.822

The parent company's balance bears no interest and there is no specified repayment date.

The falr values of receivables due within one year approximate 10 their carrying amounis as presented above.

8. Cash at bank and in hand

Cash balances are analysed as follows

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
€ £

Cash at bank and in hand 2.474 2.496
2.47 Z.496

11



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VE NTURES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

9. Share capital
2018 2018 27 2017
Number of Mumbar of
shares £ shares €
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £1 each 10.000 10.000 10,000 10,000
[ &
Issued and fully paid
Balance at 1 April 2.000 2.000 2000 2,000
Balance at 31 March 2.600 2.000 2.000 2.000

10. Trade and other payables
21 March 2018 31 March 2017

€ €
Accruals L 835
= Has

The fair values of trade and othar payables due within one yoar appraximate fo thefr carrying amounts as presented
above,

11. Related party transactions

The Company is controfled by Sterlita Technologies Limited, ncorporated in India, which owns 100% af the
Company’s shares,

11.1 Parent company's current accounts - debit balances {Note 7)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
£ £

Sterlite Technologies Ltd 6.037 7.822
6.037 7,622

The parent company's accounts are interest tree, and have no specified repayment date.

12. Contingent liabilities

The Company had no contingent lizhiiities as at 31 March 201 a,

13. Commitments

The Company had no capitaf or other commitments as at 31 March 2018,

14. Events after the reporting period

There were no material events after the reparting period, which have & bearing on the understanding of the financiat
statoments,

Independent auditor's report on pages 2 to 4
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Pericd from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

01/04/2017- (01/04/2016-
31/03/2018 3170372017
€ €

Adrministration expanses

Auditors' rernuneration 893 803

Other professional fees - 225
893 1.119
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STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

FINANCE COSTS
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

01/04/2017- 01/04/2016-
31/03/2018  31/03/2017

€ €
Finance costs
Sundry finance expenses
Bank charges 19 15
19 15

14



STERLITE TECHNOLOGIES EUROPE VENTURES LIMITED

COMPUTATION OF CORPORATION TAX
Period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Page £ £
Met loss per income statement 5 {912)
Add:
Deemed interest 181
181
MNet loss for the year {731}
Apportionment to the relevant years of assessment 2018 2007
€ €
Perlod 1,/4/2017 - 31122017 - (548)
Period (117012018 - 31/3/2018 {183} -
(183) (548)
Pertad 01/01/2007 - 31/3/2017 o 284}
Lass brought forward (7.877)
Loss carried forward {8,708

15



ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
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ELITECORE TECHONOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

CORFORATE DATA
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FPage 3
EILTECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activily of Elitecore Technologies (Mauritius) Limted (the "Company™) is to provids computor
enginzering services in Mauritius.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The company's loss for the year s Rs. 24,227 (2017 profit, Rs. 93.421). Tae direciors do nol recommend
the payment of any dividend in respect of the pariod under reviaw.

DIRECTORS

Ihe present membership of tha Board is set out or page 2.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires tne cireclors (o prepare finarcial statemenls fo- each financial year which present
tairty the tinancial position, financial parformance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company. In

praparing those financial stalements, the diraciors are requirsd 1o

’ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

. make judgements ard estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

3 state whelher International [Ninancial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject 1o any maserial
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements: and

. prepare the finareial statzments on the gaing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to aresume that

the Campany will continue in businsss.

The directors confirm that they have complied with -he above requirements in proparing the financial
statements.

Ihe direclors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Cormpany and to enakle them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Aut 2001, They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and desection of fraud and
other irreqularities.

The direclors have made an assessment of the Company's abilily lo continue as a going concarn and have
no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in the year abead.

AUDITORS

The auditore, Mazars, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and wil be automatically
recppointed al the nexl annual genearal meeting,

Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ..oy /‘
and signed on its behalf by: E.ft)
.
L

Director MNlavin 5 herme Director N‘\\.{Hu‘y T{;_}n



Page 4
ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
UNMDER SECTION 166 (d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

We certify to the bast of our knowledge and balief that we have filed with the Reagistrar of Comparies all suc
returns as are required of Elitccore Technologizs (Mawsitius) Limited under the Tompanies Acl 2001 during
the financal vear ended 31 March 2018,

Stanhope Corporate & Management Services Ltd
5% Floor, Ebene Tower ,

52 Cybercity Ebene ,

Mauritius

Date:



MAZARS

Page 5
INDEPEMNDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Staternents
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Elitecore Technologies (Mauritius) Limited (“the
Company") on pages 12 to 21, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 218,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, staternent of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows far the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
-summary of sigaificant accounting pelicies.

In our apinion, the accempanying financial staternents on pages 12 to 21 give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the “Company at 31 March 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") and
comply with the Mauritius Companics Ac: 2007,

Basis for Qpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities underthose standards are further described inthe Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intzrnational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled cur
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the |[ESBA Code.

Other infermation

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate
Governance Report, Commentary of the Directars and Secretary's Certificate as required by the Mauritius
Companies Act zoa1, which we obtained prior to the date of the audit report. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the firancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other
inforrmation and, in doing so, cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financia! statements or our knowledze obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based cn the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are recuired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

LF L A
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Page &
INDEPENDENT AUDITCOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMEERS OF

ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Govemance for the Financial Statements

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with
Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whetner due
to fraud or error,

In preparing the finzncial statements, directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless directors either intends te liquidate the Company or to cease
cperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respensible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are
free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that includes
aur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken an the
basis of thess financial statemants.

As part of an audit in accordance with [5As, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professicnal
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

L] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis fer our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
ot internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not fer the ourpose of expressing an
opinion o1 the effectiveness of the Company's internal centrol.

" Evaluate the appropriateness of accourting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
cstimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a galng
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
audit report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, il such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusians are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.



Hage 7
INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Repert on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements {Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and eontent of the financial statements, inclucing the
disclesures, and whether the firancial statements represent the undeilying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among otner matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internzal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Mauritius Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you
on the fellowing matters. We confirm that:

a) we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as auditors;
b) we have obtaired all the information and explanations we have required; and
c) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from

our examination of those records.
Other matter

This repart, including the opinion has been preoared for and only for the Company's members, as a body,
in accardance with Section zo5 of the Mauritius Companies Act zoo1 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other persen to
wthom this report is shown or into whose hands it may corme save where expressly agreed by our prior

consent inwriting.

e
H_'_..r" =
Mazars

o
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Uds ysiﬁg;h Taukoordass, FCA
Licensed by FRC

Date: ] f MG 2018



ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Income

Operaling cxpenses
Operating profit
Other gaing - el

Expenses
Protess onal and adminisiralive cxpenses

(Lass) | Profit before taxation
Taxalion

{Loss) { Profit for the year
{¥her comprehsensive mcomea

Teotal comprehensive income for Lthe year

Malas 2018
Rs
5 6,427,512

Fage &

2017
Fs
10,014 281

(5.281.823)  (B.655.038)

B 1,145 689 1,368 245
7 (413,424) (99, 754)
(750,646)  {1.17D,962)
(18,381) B4 524

& (5,846)- (35,108)
(24,227) 53 421

(24,227) 53421

et o e s s e .

The noles on pagas 12 1o 21 form an inlegral parl of these financial statements.



ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Matos 2018 2017
Rs R

ASSETS
Current assets ,
Trade snd other recervablos o 3,689,468 1,750 332
“ash and cash equivalents 10 1,067,217 470 HES
Current tax asset 8 26,647
TOTAL ASSETS 4,783,332 4717 M5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Slaled capital 1 760,600 FR0,E00
Holainad earnings 1,693,253 1,217,480
Shareholders’ interest 2,653 853 2 RTROAD
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 12 2129474 1,504 027
Taxation a - 35108
Total liabilities 2129479 2054 135
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4783332 4 712,215

Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors onu.. ...
and signed on ifs bchal@ay :

-

| ravin Chavma

! N \ "p!,h'] 1 T e

The notes on padges 12 ta 21 form an integral par: of these Inancial statements.



ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2018

Al 31 March 2016
FProfit for the year

AF 31 March 2017
Loss for the year

A3 March 2008

Rs

Page 10

Stated Retained
capital carnings Total
Rs Rs Rz
760600 1,864,059 2.624 659
. 33421 S3 421
7a0,600 1.917 480 2678 0BO
5 (24,227) (24,227)
780,600 1,893,253 2.653,852

The notes on pages 12 1o 21 form an integral part of these financia stalements.



ELITECORE TECHNOLQGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 20138

Cash flow from operating activities
{LossWProfit hofare taxation
Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase in irade and her receivables
Increase in trade and other pavables

Cash used in operating actlivities

Tax paid

Met cash used in operating activities

Met decrease in cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and casn equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalenls al end of year

MNotes

10

Page 11

2018 2017

Rs R=

{18,381) BEL2G
----- {18,381} BB b2Y
{2,457,136) 18,509,985
130,452  [14,4498.008)
{2,345,065) f?d-Eé,:ﬂf-E_?lgil
{67,601) (139,233)

- (2,412,666) (688,732)
{2,412,666) (BB8,732)
3479 883 4,368,815
1,067 217 3.479,883

The notes on paces 12 to 21 form an integral part of these finarcial slatements,
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013

1 GEMNERAL INFORMATION

Elitccors Technologios (Mauritius) Limita¢ (the *Company”) was incorporated on 08 February 2012 as a
private conpany with limited liabilily under the Mauritius Companics Act 2001 in Mavritius. The registered
office of the Company is 40 Floor, Ebene Tower, 52, Cybercity Ebene, Mauritius..

The Company's principal activity of the Company is to arovide computer angincering services ir Mauritius.
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

| he principal accounting policies adopied in the preparation of these finarcial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to al the periods presented unless othenwize staled,

4

(i Basis of presentation

The financial statemeants have been prepared in accordance with and in compliance with International
Financial Repoiling Standards (“IFRS") and Inlernational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commilles
(“IFRIC") interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [“IASE") and is relatedl
bodies. The finzacial statements have been preparad under the historical cost conventior.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires (he use of certain critical accounting
astimates. It also requiras the directors i exarcise their judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a highor degree of judgment or complexily, or areas wherg
assJmptions and estimates are significant to the financial stalements are described in Note 3.

Changes it gccolinting policios and disclasures

Applicable of new and reversad Infernafional Financial Roportiing

In the currant yeaf, the company has approved all of the new and revised standards and Interpretations
iseLed by the International Accounting Standards Board ('|ASE") and Internafional Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committes {"IFRIC'} of the IASB that are relevant to its operaticns and efiective accounting
periods beginning on 01 March 2017,

Meaw and revised IFREs and IFRICE issued but not yol effective

The direciors have assessed the relevance of Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to the existing
Srandards that have been published and are mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on or afler 01
March 2017 or later perivds and conclude that these will not have a material impact tc the financial
statamenls for the vear endzd 31 March 2018,

Foreign currency translation

Funcfional and presenfalion cutrency

ttems included in the financial statements sre measured using the cunency of the prirmary economic

environmert in which the entity operales (“the functional currency”). The finandal statements are presented
in Maurtian Rupees {*Rs"), which iz the Company’s funclional and presentation currency.
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Transactions and balances

Fare gn currency lranssclions are translated inta the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at *he dates of the ransactions, Forgign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translafion al period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and latiliies
denominatad in fareign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit ar loss and other comprehensive
inoome, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign curency are translated using the cxchange
rate at the date when the fair value was determined. Translafion differences on assets anc liabilities are
carried at fair value a7 reported as parl of their value qain or loss. Non-mongstary items measured in terms
uf historical cost in a foreign currency are translaied using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transactions.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
zt the financial position date in the country where the Company operatas and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates posilions Lsken in E@x returns with respect fo situations inwhich
zpplicable tax ragulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the Lax authaoritiss.

Deterred income tax is recognsed in full, using the liabiity method, un all tempaorary diflerences grising
betwaen the tax bases of assats and liabilities and ther carrying amounts in the financial stataments.
Deferred income tax is determined using the tax rates {and laws) thal have been cracted or subslantively
enacled by the financial position date and-are expected to apply when the related deferred income laxassat
is realised or the deferrac income tax liability is settlad,

Ueferred income tax asssets on the tax losses are recognised o the extent that il s pobable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities ara offsel when lhers is @ legally enforceable right to offse” current
tax assets against current tax liabiities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relals lo
incomec taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable enlity or different taxable
entities where there is an inlention o settle the balances on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financal instruments are initially recognised on lha lrade date, which is the date thal the Company becomes
a parly to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financ al asseis and liahililies are offset and the net amounl is presenied in the stalement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right fo offset the amounts and intends either to
setile on a net basis or to realise he asset and scttlc the liability simutanecusly.

Financial instruments carried on the statemen: of financial posilion include rade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables. The particular recognilion methods adopled are
disclosed Below:
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ELITECORE TECHNCL OGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)

Financial azaois

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other seceivables (except prepayments) are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently
measurad gt amortised cosl using e eleclive inlerest method, less provision for impairmeant.

Cash and cash aquivalonts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and in hand. Cash equivalents are short lerm, hichly
liquid investments which are ~eadily converlible inlo known amounts of cash and which are su biect ta an
insigrificant risk of change in valuz.

Financial liabilities

A fingncial liability is classified as al fair value through profit or loss if it s clissilied as held-for-rading or
designated as such on initial recogntion. Dirsctly attribulable fransactions costs are recognised in the profil
aor lpss as incurrcd, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein, ncluding any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other non-derivative financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value any directly attributzble
transaclicn cosls. Subsequently to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using
tre effective interest method.

Trade and ether payables

Trade paysbles are stated at fair valus, and are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest methed,

Derecognitinn ef financial agsats and liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the conlraciual 1ichls o the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the righls lo receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction
in which substantially all the ricks and rewards of ownarship of the financial asset are translerred. Any
interest in such derecognised linancial essels lhal is created or retained by the Company is recognised 25
a separate asset or liability.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when ils contractual obl gatiors are discharged cr cancelled,
or expirad.

Offeeiling of fnancial instruments

Financial assets and liahilities are offset and the net amount presented an the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offsct the amounts and intends aither
to setlle on a net basis or to realise the asszet and sclle the llabilities simultaneously.
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments {continued)

Impairment

At the reporting date, the Company reviews 1o carrying amaourts of it assets to determine whether there
iz any irdicstion that those assets have suffered an imoszirmen: loss. If any such indicalon exisls, the
recoverabla smounl of the assel is estimelad o determine e exdent of he impairment loss, Where itis not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an irdividual asset, the Company estimates the recoverablo
amourt of the cazh ganerating unii to which the asset belongs. The carrying amount of an assat ar cash
generating unit is reflected at the ‘ower of cost and the recoverable amount, Imaairment losses, of reversals
thereo®, are recognised as expenses of income. An impairment loss reversal, bowever, cannot resull in a
carnying amaount exceeding original cost.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equily.
CGperating lzases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expanse ona slraahb-line basis over theleases tanm, excepl
of the relevant lease.

Conlingent rentals arising under the opereting leases are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentves and similar arrangement of incentives are laken into account when calculating the straight
line expensas.

Corporate social responsibility

Corporate social responsibility to the Company is celoulated at the rate of 2% on chargeable income far the
preceding year,

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies where the indivicual or companios has lhe ability, d recily or
indirecly, Lo conbol the olher parly or exercise sigieficanl inlluence over the other party in making financial
and operaling decisicns.

Provisiens

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company nes a present legal or constructive
obligalion that cen be eslimzlad reliably, and it is probable that an outflows of economic benefits will be
requirad Lo sellle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure sash flows
al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valus of money and the risks specilic
to the Fabilily. The increase in the provision due to the passage of limsa is recegnised as intorest cxponse,
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

[he Company reccgnizes revenus when the amount if revenue can be reliably measured and il is prchakle
thal Tuture sconomic benelils will low lo Lhe entily and when specilic crilera have been met for Company's
zctrvity a3 described bolow:

Rardering of servives

Rrvenua from rendering of services gre recognised in the accoldnding vear inownich the services are
renderad. (by refercnce fo the complation of the specific transaction assessed on the hasis ol the actual
senvice provides as a proportion of 1he 113l services 10 be provided).

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial nsk facors

The Company's activities expose it to a verity of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. This note presents information about the Company s
exposure to each of the said risks, the Company's objoclives, policies and processes for measuring ard
managing risk, anc the Company’s masagement of capital. [ wther quantitative disclosures are included
thraughaout these financial statements,

The board of dircctors has overall responaibility Tor Lhe eslablishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framewark. The Company's risk managemenl policles are astablished to identify and analyse
the risks facad by the Company o s=t approp-iste measures and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risks management policies and systoms are reviewed regularly to reflect changes n
markel condilions and on the Company's activities.

The Company's exposure to tha various types of risks associzted to its activity and f nancial instrumenis is
detailed below:

(a} Market risk

Markiet risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchanges rates and interest rates will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk managemen! ig lo manage and control mar<et risk expodures wilhin acceplable parameters, while
optimising the return. !

(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is lhe risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will ucuate because
il changes in foreign exchange rate, The Company holds inancial aesels and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, mainly the Uniled Slales Dollar {USDY). Consequenlly, the Company is exposed lo lhe
risk that the exchange rate of Rs relatve to the USE may change 'n a manner which have a malerial effect
on tha reperied values of the Company’s assets and liabilities which are denaminaled in USD.
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ELITECORE TECHNCLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2013
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Iarket risk (continued)

it Currency risk {confinued)

The currency profile of the Company's Tinancial assets and liabilities is summanzed as follows:
I

Financial Financial Financial Firancial

assets liabilities assals liahilties

2018 2018 M7 207

Rs Rs [ Rs

Maurilian Rupas 2,653,074 1,343,703 371,196 823,228
LD 2,899 480 1,175,799 1,541,019 1,175,799
5,625,554 3,019,502 4712213 1.8%9 027

The folowing table depicts the Company’s sensilivily to a 5% appreciation or depreaalion of United States
Dallar against Mauritian Rupee:

2018 2017
Rs Rs
Impact on pradt for the year 91,184 18,261

{if) Inferest rate risk

Interast rate ris< anses from the possibility that changes in interest ratas will affect future cash flows or the
fair valuas of financial insiruments. The Company has no exposure 1o interest rate risk as it has no interest
bearing financial assets and liabilitiss.

(i) Price risk

Equity atice risk is the risk if unfavourable changes in fair values of equities as e result of changes in the
value of individual shares. The Company has no exposure to equity price risk at year end.

(b} Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure lo credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparly will be unable to pay
armoures in full when due. With respect to credit risk arising from financia. assets which comprise of trade
and other receivables (axcluding prepayments) anc cash and cash equivalents, the Company’s cxposure
arises from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposurs equal to the carrying amouni of these
finencial assels al the reporling date. Cash and cash equivalents is ma ntained with reputablc banks. The
risk is minimal on the trade and other receivables as it is with related parties. The Company also limits its
credil exposure by transacting with related partizs. '

(=] Liquidity risk

Liquidily risk is the risk that the Company will net be able to meet its financial obligation as they fall dus.
The Company's approach to manzging liquidity s to ensure, as far as possible, Whal it will always have
sJfficient liquidity to meet its lianilities when due, under both normal and stressed concitions, withoul
incurring unacceptable lcsses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company mansges
liquidity risk by mainlaining adeguale cash ressives to neet its obligations as they fall due and threugh
financing from related parties.
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LINITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
fc) Liguidity risk {continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's linancial liabilites at 31 March 2018
based on contractual uncisnnunied paymants;

Due within 1 Due watrin 1
year Total yer Total
2018 2018 2017 2017
Rs Rs Re ]
Trade and olher payables 1,988 688 1,948 688 062 387 DEZ ART

{d) Capital management

The Company’s objeclives when inanaging capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
gaing eoncern in order to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
mantain an cplimal capital struclure to reduces the cost of capital.

The Company manages ts capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in lignt if changes in economic
conditions. To mainlain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend paymants to
shareholders. or issue new shares.

(e} Fair values

The managemean assessed the far valuz of trade and other receivables (excluding prapaymenls), cash and
cash equivalenis and trade and other payahles approximate their carrying amounts, largely due to the shart-
term maturities of these instruments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS)

The Company makes eslimales and judyemenls that affeet the reported amounts of assets anc liabilities
within the next yaar, Estimates and judcements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
expetience and cther factors, including expectations of fulure events that are belisved to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Detarmination of functicnal currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is crifiical since recording of transactions and
exchange differances arising thareon are dependent on the functional currency selecled . As deseribed in
Mole 2, the directors have considered those faclors therein and have determired that the functional currency
of the Company is the Mauritian Rupes ["Rs").

5 TURNOVER
2018 2017

Rs R=

Service fees 6427.512 10,014,251

e e i e e e e e i



EUTCCORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
WOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018
3 OPERATING FROFIT

The following items have been charged in arriving at the operating profit:

Salaries and related expensas (Mote B{a))
Rartzl{hote 14)

Professional foas

FProvision of impainment on trade receivalls

G{a) SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES

Zalaries and othe- related expenses
NPF, MSF and Lewvy

Mumber of emplovess at end of the year

7 OTHER GAINE - NET

Met foreign exchange gain on oparations

8 TAXATION

2Ma
REs

4 976,257
441,629
90,338

2018
Ks

4,886,770
B0 4R7

Mumber
2 4

2018
Rs

413,424

Page 19

2017
Rs

7,209,022
733,732
241,105

(2.041)

2017
ks

8172077
126,945
5 Y, )22

Murrbor

The Company, being the holder of a Category 1, Glohal Business Licence, is liable to income tax in Mauritius
on lts taxahle profit at tha rate of 15%. The Company's fereign sourced income is eligible for a forsign tax
credit which is computed as the higher of the Mauritian tax and the foreign tax on the respactive foreign sourced
income. The toreign tax for 8 GBLT company is based on either the foreign tax charged by the foreign country
or a presumed amount of foreign tax: the presumed amount of foreign tax is based on 80% of the Mauritian
tax on the relevant forsign sourced income. (In camputing its tolal foreign lax credit, the Company is allowed
to pool all its foreign sourced income.) Capital gains are outside the scope of the Maurilian tax while trading
profits made by the Campany frorr Lhe sale of shares are exempt from tax

Capital gains are outside the scope of the Mauritian tax whils trading profits made by the Company from the

sale of shares are exempt from tax.



Page 20
ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

Reconcilizlion belween lhe accounting loss and the actuzl income lax expense is presented below:

2018 201

Rs R

{Loss) / Profit betore fax {18,381) HE LU
Tax calculaled al 15% (2017;15%) {2,757) 13,230
Incame not subject to tax - (3C8!
Cxpanses nat deduclible for tax surposes a 4,228
Tax losses not utilized _ 2757 -
Corporate sacial responsibility 5,846- 17,908
Tax charge for the vear 5,846- 35,108

Incame tax liahility

20138 2017

Rs R

At baginning of vear’poriod 35,108 139,238
Charge for the year/period 5,846 35108
Paid during the yearlperod (67,601) (138,239)
At end of vear/preriod (26,647) 35,108

The company had accumulated tzx losses of USD 2,757 at 21 March 2018 (2017: Nil) and is thereforc not
liable to incere tax, The accumulated loss is availlable for set off against Tulure taxable profits up the
following years:

2018 2017
Rs Fs
Year ended 31 March 2015 - -
Year ended 31 March 2018 - -
Year ended 31 March 2020 E 5
Year ended 31 March 2021 - -
Year ended 31 March 2022 . 2,757 -
2,757 -

9 TRADE AMND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018 207
Rs Rs
Trade receivables (Note 13) 28612237 510,041
Doposits and othcr receivables 1,016,370 851,430
Frovisian for impairment (139,139) {129,135
3,689,458 1,232,332

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
Rs Rs

Cash at bank i 1,067,217 . 3.479 6063
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ELITECORE TECHNOLOGIES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018

i1 STATED CAPITAL

2018 Ay 2018 2007
Mumber Mumber R= F=

Iszued and fully paid:
Ordinary sharss of Ra. 100 each 7,608 750G 760,600 TE0.600

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 2017
Rs Fs
Amount due to related company (Note 13) 1,036,660 1,036,660
Accruals and other payzbles 1,092,618 GEZ 357
2129478 1999.027

The canying amounts of trade and ather payzbles approximate their fair values,

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name of Nature of Volume of transactions Balances Debif / (Credit)
company fransactions '

Sterlite

Technologics Loans and

| imited Advances - 19,453,087 {1,036,660)  (1,036,660)
Sletlite

Technologies Project

Lirmited managemaent 6,427 512 10,147,281 - -
Sterlite

Technologies

Limited Advances 2,302,196 18,753,848 2,812,237 510,014

The amounts dus to the relaled companies are unsacured, interest free and repayable in demand.

14 COMMITMENTS

Cperating lease comrmimernits
The future aggregate minimum lease paymeants under operating leases, payable wilhin one year is nil at 31
March 2018 (2017: 1,457 839). Durirg the year ended 31 March 2018, an amount of Rs 441,629 (2017 Rs

733,732) was rccognised in the statemenl of profit or loss and olher comprehensive income as aperating
lease expense.

15 REPORTING CURRENCY
The financial statemenis are presented ir Mauritian rupee (Rs).
16 HOLDING COMPANY

The ultimate holding company s Sterite Technalagies | imiled, a company incorporated i1 India and listed
on tha BSE and NSC Stock Cxehange in India.
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors' report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to provide global IT products and services.

The Company undertake projects on turnkey basis, providing hardware, software, technology,
business solutions, infrastructure development, services for system development, installations,
maintenance, support, consulting, outsourcing, contracting activities in information technology,
telecommunication and network security sectors.

There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activity during the financial
year.

Ultimate holding company

The ultimate holding company is Sterlite Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in India

and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India.

Results

RM

Profit for the financial year 382,221

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial
year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.

Dividend

Mo dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial
period. The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the current financial
year
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the
date of this report are:

Navin Ashok Kumar Sharma

Vaibhav Mehta

Khadijah binti Sood

G Vijaya Kumar a/l Gopal (resigned on 7 May 2018)
Zaiton Binti Sutor @ Sitor (appointed on 7 May 2018)

Directors' benefits

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the date of incorporation, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit
by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a
firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial
financial interest.

Directors' interests
The directors in office at the end of the financial year did not have any interest in shares in the

Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

Indemnity and insurance costs

During the current financial year, no indemnity was given to or insurance effected for any
directors or officers of the Company.

Other statutory information

(a) Before the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position of the
Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

{1} to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there
were No Known bad debts and that no aliowance for doubtful debts was necessary
and
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Other statutory information (contd.)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(if) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown
in the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to
an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

(i) it necessary to write off any bad debts or to make any allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of the financial statements of the Company; and

(i) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Company
misleading.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

As at the date of this report, there does not exist;

(i} any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(i) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.

In the opinion of the directars:

() no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations when they fall due;
and

(iiy noitem, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Company for the financial year in
which this report is made
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Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

RM

Ernst & Young 35,000

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Emst &
Young, as part of the terms of its audit engagement against claims by third parties arising from
the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young
during or since the financial year.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated %H\ D bew
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Mavin Ashok Kumar Sharma
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YOGENDRA S. RAJPUT
NOTARY
4 GOVT. OF INDIA
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Statement by directors
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Navin Ashok Kumar Sharma and Vaibhav Mehta, being two of the directors of Elitecore
Technologies Sdn. Bhd., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 10 to 35 are drawn up in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and of its financial performance and the
cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated Zﬁ""‘ .\Lf e bor
Ze|%

MNavin Ashok Kumar Sharma Vaibhav Mehta

tm—
=

Statutory declaration
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Navin Ashok Kumar Sharma, being the director primarily responsible for the financial
management of Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 10 to 35 are in my opinion correct, and |
make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the

provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act in India. /-_.:
' % EHMTRA
/(
) [ e HEE..'I‘-'-::- €234 08
n Q* Anmoduiad
e \%
gxp, OH 24-00:cled
Navin Ashok Kumar Sharma <

Company Director

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Navin Ashok Kumar Sharma at
Ahmedabad in Indiaon 2 3% y}PHmbgr 2 l‘*}j

TRUE Ccop A
YOGEND 7 AJPUT

NOTARY
5 GOVT. OF INDIA
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd., which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as
set out on pages 10 to 35.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2018, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("By-Laws”) and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

infarmation other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The directors of the Company are respansible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Company
and our auditors' report therean.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd. (contd.)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (contd.)
Information other than the financial statements and auditors' report thereon (contd.)

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Auditors’ responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of
Jssurance. but is not 3 quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
rnqtp_rl,‘-ﬂ misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from traud or error and are
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd. (contd.)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (contd.)

Auditors’ responsibility for the audit of the financial statements (contd.)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors;

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

th

We communicate with the directers regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sianificant deficiencies in
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Iindependent auditors' report to the members of
Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd. (contd.)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Other matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section
266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

= -

Ernst & Young
AF: 0039
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
28 September 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Note RM RM
Revenue 4 7,326,706 4,565,471
Cost of sales 5 (6,019,962) (3,554,278)
Gross profit 1,306,744 1,011,193
Other income 12,319 -
Administrative expenses (507,851) (677,838)
Profit before tax 6 811,212 333,355
Income tax expense 7 (428,991) (80,005)
Profit net of tax, representing total
comprehensive income 382,221 253,350

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the
financial statements.
10
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2018

Non-current assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to holding company

Tax payable

Net current assets

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

Retained earnings
Total equities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

13
14

11
12

2018 2017

RM RM
(restated)

17,831 16,297
3,852,241 2,344 136
1,376,836 1,158,989
5,329,077 3,503,125
5,346,908 3,519,422
2,559,257 2,216,070
1,380,606 214 776
79,031 142 783

4 018,894 2573629
1,328,014 945,793
100 100
1,327,914 945 693
1.328,014 945 793
5,346,908 3,519,422

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the

financial statements.

1
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Statement of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

Distributable

Share retained
capital profits Total
RM RM RM
At 1 April 2017 100 945,693 945,793
Total comprehensive income for the year - 382,221 382,221
At 31 March 2018 100 1,327,914 1,328,014
At 1 April 2016 100 692 343 692,443
Total comprehensive income for the year - 253,350 253,350
At 31 March 2017 100 945 6393 945,793

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the
financial statements.
12
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statement of cash flows
For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
RM RM
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 811,212 333,355
Adjustments for:

Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (12,319) 67,903
Operating profit before working capital changes 798,893 401,258
Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables (1,608,105) 269,489

Trade and other payables 343,187 1,005,412

Intercompanies 1,178,149 (3,402,492)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from operations 712,124 (1,726,333)

Tax paid (494,277) (174,412)
Met cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities 217,847 (1,900,745)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and bank balances 217 847 (1,900,745)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,158,989 3,059,734
Cash and bank balances at the end of financial

year 1,376,836 1,158,989

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the

financial statements.
13
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

1. Corporate information

Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd. ("the Company") is a private limited liability company,
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company is located at Level 2, No 11, Jalan PJU 1A/41B NZX Commercial
Centre, Ara Jaya, 47301, Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

The ultimate holding of the Company are Sterlite Technologies Limited which is incorporated
in India. The ultimate holding company is listed on the National Stock Exchange of India.

The principal activity of the Company is to provide global IT products and services.

The Company undertake projects on turnkey basis, providing hardware, software, technology,
business solutions, infrastructure development, services for system development,
installations, maintenance, support, consulting, outsourcing, contracting activities in
information technology, telecommunication and network security sectors.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 28 September 2018.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS") and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. These financial statements also comply with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), except when
otherwise indicated.

14
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:

On 1 April 2017, the Company adopted the following new and amended MFRSs and IC
Interpretation mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

Description or after

MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to MFRS 107) 1 January 2017
MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses (Amendments to MFRS 112) 1 January 2017
Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle -

Amendments to MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the scope of disclosure requirements in MFRS 12 1 January 2017

Adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any significant impact
on the financial performance or position of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of
issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

Description or after
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions 1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 140: Transfer of Investment Property 1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transaction and

Advance Consideration 1 January 2013
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2015 - 2017 cycle 1 January 2019

15
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (contd.)

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

Description or after

Amendments to MFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation 1 January 2019
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 118 (Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement) 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 128 Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 2 Share-based Payment 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral

Resources 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 134 Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets 1 January 2020
Amendments to MFRS 138 Intangible Assets 1 January 2020

Amendments to IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2020
Amendments to IC Interpretation 18 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments 1 January 2020
Amendments to IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2020
Amendments to IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transaction and

Advance Consideration 1 January 2020
Amendments to IC Interpretation 132 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costd January 2020
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Deferred

16
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (contd.)
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

MFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. MFRS 8 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required,
but comparative information is not compulsory. The assessment is based on currently
available information and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable
and supportable information being made available to the Company in 2018 when the
Company adopts MFRS 9.

Based on the analysis of the Company'’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March
2018 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the
Company have assessed the impact of MFRS 9 to the Company's financial statements
as follows:

(i} Classification and measurement

The Company does not expect a significant impact on its statement of financial position
or equity on applying the classification and measurement requirements of MFRS 9.

Loans and receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to
give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. The
Company analysed the contractual cash flow characteristics of those instruments and
concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost measurement under MFRS 9.
Therefore, reclassification for these instruments is not required.

(ii) Impairment

The Company will apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses on
all trade receivables.

17
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2. Significant accounting policies {contd.)

2.3

2.4

Standards issued but not yet effective (contd.)
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including MFRS 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue which depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e when “control® of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual years beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The directors anticipate that
the application of MFRS 15 will not have a material impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Company's financial statements. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of MFRS 15.

Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates ("the functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is the

Company's functional currency.

(b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the
functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency spot rate ruling at the reporting date.

18
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.4

2.5

2.6

.7

Foreign currencies (contd.)
(b) Foreign currency transactions (contd.)

All differences are taken to the profit or loss with the exception of all monetary
items that forms part of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net invetsment,
at which time they are reclassified to profit or loss. tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
The gain or loss of the item that gave rise to the translation differences (translation
differences on items whose gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is aso recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss respectively).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and bank balances include cash
on hand and at banks which have insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the
lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can
be estimated reliably

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
gstimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
-‘aqu-rgr{ to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed If the effect of the time value
af maney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-ltax rate that
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Elitecore Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.8

Taxes

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the country where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current taxes are recngnised in prcﬁt or loss.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except
where the deferred tax liability arises from the recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised

20
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Taxes (contd.)

(c)

Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

- Where GST incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case GST is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and social security
contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated
absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entittement to future compensated absences. Short
term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leaves are recognised
when the absences occur.

Defined contribution plan

As required by law, the Company makes contributions to the Employees Provident
Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined
contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related service is performed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when
payment is made

Mo revenue will be recognised unless and until

a clear contractual arrangement can be evidenced.
delivery has been made in accordance with that contract
it required, contractual acceptance criteria have been met; and

the fee has been agreed and collectability is probable
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.1

212

Service contracts

Where the outcome of a contract can be reliably estimated, contract revenue and
contract costs associated with the contract are recognised as revenue and expenses
respectively by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is
measured by the proportion of the total cost incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated cost to complete each contract.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the year in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and
variations in contract work, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in
revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured.

When the total of costs incurred on service contracts plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses) exceeds progress billings, the balance is classified as amount due
from customers on contracts. When progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses), the balance is classified as amount due to
customers on contracts.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment
assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units ("CGU")).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount Impairment losses recognised in
respeci of a OGU of aroups of CGUs are allocated o reduce the carrying amount of

the assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis

There is no impairment losses of non-financial assets recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
2.13 Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables. All financial assets of the Company are
classified as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised, and through the amortisation
process.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having
maturity dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-
current.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired

Loans and receivables
T ol o o bl e e .-.-.:.4-“-...-. uH + - ..-.-...1. .-nq.qha t e ~y : =Ta e ,..I
['o determine whether there is u-..-J':,u IVE EVIQence i an xdirment 1935 0N financia)

e mbe ":-']" bean incurred the Company considers factars such as the probahbility of

________________ - iy b | .-\_-\.H.p.-«_- , e

insolvency or significant fmanmal difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

2.13

2.14

Financial assets (contd.)
Loans and receivables (contd.)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable becomes
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.

If in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases as a result of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reserved to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities, within the scope of MFRS 139, are recognised in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Other financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities include trade payable, other payables and amount
due to intermediate and immediate holding company

Trade payabie, other payables and amount due to intermediate and immediate holdina

company are recognised initially at fair value plus directly atlnibutable ransaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
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2. Significant accounting policies {contd.)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Financial liabilities (contd.)
Other financial liabilities (contd.)

For the other financial liabilities, gain and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Share capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable
incremental transaction costs. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in
the period in which they are declared.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on

current/non-current classification. An asset as current when it is:

- expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
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3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future.

3.1

3.2

Critical judgements

There are no significant critical judgements made by management in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

Judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
Details of the income tax expense are disclosed in Note 7.

Deferred tax assets

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company has recognised deferred tax assets of
RMA17 831 Details of the deferred tax are disclosed in Note 8
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4. Revenue

2018 2017
RM RM
Revenue from rendering of services 7,326,706 4,565,471
5. Cost of sales
2018 2017
RM RM
Cost of sales represents cost of services rendered 6,019,962 3,554,278
6. Profit before tax
The following amounts have been included in arriving at the profit before tax:
2018 2017
RM RM
Auditors' remuneration 35,000 35,000
Rental expenses 243,749 285,298
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (12,319) 67,903
Realised loss on foreign exchange 14,175 41,601
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y A

Income tax expense

Malaysian income tax:
- Current year
- Underprovision in prior year

Deferred tax (Note 8):
- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences
- Overprovision in prior year

Income tax expense

2018 2017
RM RM
180,121 181,033
250,404 g
430,525 181,033
38,066 (101,028)
(39,600) =
(1,534) (101,028)
428,991 80,005

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2017:

24%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows:

Profit before tax

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%
(2017 24%)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Overprovision of deferred tax in prior year

Underprovision of income tax expense in prior years

Tax expense for the year
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2018 2017
RM RM
811,212 333,355
194,691 80,005
23,496 -
(39,600) .
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8. Deferred tax assets

2018 2017
RM RM
At beginning of the financial year (16,297) 84731
Recognised in profit or loss (1,534) (101,028)
At end of the financial year (17,831) (16,297)
Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Deferred tax assets (20,787) (16,297)
Deferred tax liability 2,956 -
(17,831) (16,297)

The component and movement of deferred tax liability and assets during the financial year is
as follows:

Deferred tax liability:

Unrealised
foreign
exchange
difference
RM
At 1 April 2017 (16,297)
Recognised in profit or loss 19,253
At 31 March 2018 2,956
Deferred tax assets:
Unrealised
foreign
exchange
Provision difference Total
RM RM RM
At 1 April 2016 - B4 731 84 731
Recognised in profit or loss - (101,028) (101,028)
At 31 March 2017 : (16,297) (16,297)
At 1 April 2017
Recognised in profit or loss (20,787 (20,787
At 31 March 2018 (20 787 :2[’_‘} '-‘EI?J
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9. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Third parties (Note (a))
Unbilled receivables (Note (b))

Amount due from customers on contract (Note 10)

Other receivables
Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and bank balances

Less: Amount due from customers on contract

Total loans and receivables

2018 2017

RM RM

(restated)
1,649,188 1,344 265
900,000 900,000
1,303,701 -
99,352 89,871
3,952,241 2,344 136
1,376,836 1,158,989
(1,303,701) :
4,025,376 3,503,125

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on 30 to 60 days days terms. They
are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial

recognition.

(a) Trade receivables

Ageing analysis of trade receivables

Neither past due nor impaired

1 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired

More than 90 days past due not impaired

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

2018 2017

RM RM
1,551,761 1,344,265
97,427 -
1,649,188 1,344,265

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good

payment records with the Company.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

Receivables that are past due but not impaired is related to customer with good track record

with the Company.

(b) Unbilled receivables

Linpnien racaivanies are raglaen 1t the cpryires merrarmer where |mynieoe haue mnd

been issued as at reporting date.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Amount due from customers on contract

Service contract costs incurred to date
Attributable profits

Less: Progress billings
Amount due from customers on contract

Share capital
Number of ordinary shares
2018 2017
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning/end of the
financial year 100 100

2018
RM

1,485,343
631,255

2,116,598
(812,897)

1,303,701

Amount

2018 2017
RM RM

100 100

Retained earnings

The Company may distribute dividends out of its entire retained earnings under the single tier

system.

Trade and other payables

Deferred revenue (Note (a))

Other payables (Note (b))

Total trade and other payables

Add: Amount due to holding company

Less: Deferred revenue

Total financial liahilities carried at amortised cost

(a) Deferred revenue

2018 2017

RM RM
(restated)

1,215,000 1,215,000
1,344 257 1,001,070
2,559,257 2,216,070
1,380,606 214,776
1,215,000 1,215,000
2,724 863 1,215,846

Deferred revenue represents income arising from fees billed but not yvet earned

(b) Other payables

Other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on an average term

of 30 days.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Amount due to holding company

The non-trade amounts due to holding company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand. Further details on the related party transactions are disclosed in Note
15

Related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following significant transactions between the Company and related parties took place at
terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

2018 2017
RM RM
Operating expenses recharged by
holding company 2,510,865 -

Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments - as lessee

The Company has not entered into any commercial leases under a non-cancellable operating
lease arrangement.

Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at reporting
date approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include liquidity risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the
management of these risks. It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the
Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company's exposures to the above-

mentioned financial risks and the aobjectives, policies and processes for the managemenl of
these nsks
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18. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

(a)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Company manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the
availability of funding so as to ensure that refinancing, repayment and funding needs
are met. As part of its overall liquidity management, the Company maintains sufficient
levels of cash to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, the Company
strives to maintain available banking facility at a reasonable level to its overall debt
position. As far as possible, the Company raises committed funding from either through
its immediate and intermediate holding companies, or through financial institutions and
balances its portfolio with some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost
effectiveness.

As of reporting date, the Company's financial liabilities are repayable on demand or are
due within one year.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should
a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and bank
balances), the Company minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit
rating counterparties.

The Company’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. Receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

All the Company's trade receivables at the reporting date are from Malaysia.

At the reporting date, 62% of the Company's trade receivable were due from one major
customer. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are past due but not impaired s disclosed
o R sl o
I TeRLE I
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18. Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

(c)

d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s income and operating cash flows are not substantially dependent of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has no interest-bearing financial
assets or liabilities.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to various currencies, mainly United State Dollars ("UsSD"M.
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities together with expected cash flows
from highly probable purchases give rise to foreign exchange exposure.

There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign currency exposure. Exposure
to foreign currency risk is monitored on an on-going basis and the Company endeavors
to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level.

The net financial liabilites of the Company that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the Company are related to amount due to ultimate holding company. At
the reporting date, such foreign balances amount to RM1,380,606 (2017: RM214,776).

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk_

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company's profit net of tax to a
reasonable change in USD assuming all other variables are held constant at the
reporting date.

Profit, net of tax

2018 2017
RM RM
RM against USD
- strengthened 5% (2017: 5%) 52,463 8,161
- weakened 5% (2017 5%) (52,463) (8,161)

19. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders' value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes

N economic conditions

T

l'o maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust

e divided payment 0 sharenoigers, relurn capital to sharenoiders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended 31
March 2018. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements
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20. Comparatives

The comparative figures below have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017

2017 Reclassification 2017
RM RM RM
(previously (restated)
stated)
Statement of financial position
Trade and other receivables (Note 9) 2,244 136 100,000 2,344 136
Trade and other payables (Note 13) 2,116,070 (100,000) 2,216,070
Notes to financial statements
2017 Reclassification 2017
RM RM RM
(previously (restated)
stated)
Note 9
Trade and other receivables
Third parties 2,144 265 (800,000) 1,344 265
Unbilled receivables - 900,000 900,000
Other receivables 89 871 - 98 871
2,244,136 100,000 2,344,136
Note 13
Trade and other payables
Deferred revenue 1,215,000 - 1,215,000
Other payables 901,070 (100,000) 1,001,070
2,116,070 {100,000} 2,216,070
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